Q Tech



Contents
B &

Contents B &

Corporate Information NAIER 2
Corporate Profile REINEA 5
Five-Year Financial Summary AFUBRE 6
Chairman’s Statement EEWmE 9
Management Discussion and Analysis ERENmES T 22
Biographical Details of Directors and EERaRERBECEBRFE 35
Senior Management

Directors’ Report EEe®RE 44
Corporate Governance Report EERRE 88
Environmental, Social and RR g kEams 119
Governance Report

Independent Auditor’s Report BB AR E 151
Consolidated Financial Statements CXCi v e 161
Notes to the Financial Statements B 75 3R 3R MY 5 168

2018 FH E#MBE (KE)BERLA @



Corporate Information
NEIER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. He Ningning (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Jiangiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hu Sanmu (Vice President of Sales)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang
Mr. Ng Sui Yin
Mr. Ko Ping Keung

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ng Sui Yin (Chairman)
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang
Mr. Ko Ping Keung

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang (Chairman)
Mr. Ng Sui Yin
Mr. Ko Ping Keung

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. He Ningning (Chairman)
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang
Mr. Ko Ping Keung

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ko Ping Keung (Chairman)
Mr. Ng Sui Yin
Mr. Fan Fugiang

@ Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018

CELPEIE:D
T 385 4 (F7RAH)
=A%k (HEHER)

BYFHITES
MRFERE

RInELE
mRBEE

BEREEE
RWELE (ZE)

PR R E
mRBELE

FMWEES
MREE S (R

RimERE
BRBELE

REZE®
CEEFEIET-D)
RS
ERBLA
EREERES
BRBEE (ZE)

RHELEE
SBEREE



COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Zhihua

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Room 1715, 17/F
Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street
Shatin, New Territories
Hong Kong

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF

CHINA (THE “PRC”)
No. 3 Taihong Road

Hi-tech Industry Park
Kunshan

Jiangsu Province
PRC

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.qtechglobal.com

LEGAL ADVISER AS TO HONG KONG LAW
Sidley Austin

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Corporate Information

DNEER

DNEME
BELE

BEREMEE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

BRTEEXMA

BB

¥ RDH
L1155
%8 E S
17181715

RAZEARKLNME ([HE]) B
MERETEERBR

H B

LERAE

B

BB EXRAER
A 4T BR35%

NGNS
www.qtechglobal.com
BAEEERM
BREEAE A

B EEm

S AT
MEEHED

2018F 3 ESABE (RE)ARAT @



Corporate Information
NEIER

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Bank of China Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

China Merchants Bank Company Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman lIslands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
Stock Code: 1478

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wang Jiangiang
Mr. Cheng Zhihua

@ Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018

FEEREIT

FEERBETRNDBRAA
FRETIERITIRNDER DA
RERITE D AR A A
RERIT (FE)GRQA
BEERITER AR
BERITRDBR AR

RHOBFEETRE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman lIslands

BRERGEBEFETOE

BEEPRELHBLABRAA
BB

BT

2ERKBER1835%

A M
17481712-171655 48

% 101X 55%
IR 5% - 1478
RERE

Tlemkt
B2kt



Q Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a leading mid-to-high end
camera and fingerprint recognition module manufacturer in the
PRC. The Group is primarily engaged in the design, research and
development, manufacture and sales of camera modules and
fingerprint recognition modules, and centred on mid-to-high end
camera and fingerprint recognition module market for Chinese
branded smart phone and tablet PC manufacturers. The Group
is one of the first few manufacturers in the PRC to use chip on
board (“COB”) and chip on flex (“COF”) technologies and molding
on board (“MOB”) and molding on chip (“MOC”) technologies in
the manufacture of camera modules, as well as to produce ultra-
thin camera modules with resolutions of 48 mega pixels and
above, dual/multiple camera modules, 3D modules, under-glass
fingerprint recognition modules and other fingerprint recognition
modules with various technologies on a mass production scale.
Currently, the Group’s product mix covers camera modules
ranging from 2 mega pixels to 48 mega pixels, dual/multiple
camera modules, 3D modules, fingerprint recognition modules,
automotive camera modules and outdoor sports camera modules.
The Group is dedicated to become a technology company which
provides intelligent vision systematic solutions for intelligent mobile
terminals, through continuously building up capabilities of optical
design, computing vision, deep learning and system integration,
with an aim to let the machines see clearly and better understand
the world.
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Five-Year Financial Summary
LFUBME

(In Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands, except per share amounts or (AT T £Z 258805 5 HEHHESN)
otherwise indicated)

For the year ended 31 December BE+-A=1+—HLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
=N —TtF TR “Z-1f ZZT-WF

Consolidated

&t
Operating results RexE
Revenue WA 8,135,161 7,938,958 4,991,158 2,202,395 2,161,084
Gross profit EF 353,108 882,733 422,437 240,571 352,579
Finance costs BMEKA (44,146) (16,912) (5,548) (9,948) (23,171)
Profit before taxation B 7% A1 71 1,330 509,515 214,587 114,701 239,077
Income tax Frie®t 13,069 (73,238) (23,832) (12,702) (43,571)
Profit for the year FRBEF 14,399 436,277 190,755 101,999 195,506
Attributable to: BB
Owners of the Company VNN 3 14,399 436,277 190,755 101,999 195,506
Non-controlling interests RS - - - - -
14,399 436,277 190,755 101,999 195,506
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(In Renminbi (“RMB’) thousands, except per share amounts or

otherwise indicated)

For the year ended 31 December

Five-Year Financial Summary
LFUBHRE

(ANEBT T FRErESEHEHEI)

BEZE+=-HA=+—HLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Sl —T—t+F T —F£-F —ZT—F
Consolidated
=i
Basic earnings per share BERGREF|
(RMB cents) (AE¥5) 13 39.8 18.4 10.1 31.8
Diluted earnings per share BEekan
(RMB cents) (ARES) 1.3 38.9 18.1 9.8 290.6
Assets and liabilities EERER
Non-current assets FERDEE 2,210,953 1,953,154 826,185 453,930 359,954
Current assets REEE 4,228,658 4,147,096 3,694,144 1,536,731 1,942,579
Total assets BEEM4E 6,439,611 6,100,250 4,520,329 1,990,661 2,302,533
Bank borrowings RITHE RN 1,178,241 1,078,119 335,432 142,164 712,679
Other liabilities HiafE 3,157,935 2,876,474 2,616,932 630,940 465,566
Total liabilities GEEE 4,336,176 3,954,593 2,952,364 773,104 1,178,245
Net assets BEEFE 2,103,435 2,145,657 1,567,965 1,217,557 1,124,288
Total equity ExmmE 2,103,435 2,145,657 1,567,965 1,217,557 1,124,288
Key Financial Ratio TEBBL R
Gross profit margin (%) EFIE (%) 4.3% 11.1% 8.5% 10.9% 16.3%
Net profit margin (%) BT 2 (%) 0.2% 5.5% 3.8% 4.6% 9.0%
Gearing ratio (%) ERE B E (%)
(Note 1) (H15t1) 56.0% 50.2% 21.4% 11.7% 63.4%
Rate of return on common FEEERE %)
Stockholders’ equity (%) N 0.7% 20.3% 12.2% 8.4% 17.4%
Current ratio (times) MBI (1)
(Note 2) (Hitz) 1.0 1.1 1.3 2.0 1.7
Quick ratio (times) REIL X (£F)
(Note 3) (H1i3) 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.7 1.5
Net asset value per share ARARIERE A
attributable to owners of BHEBRIEE
the Company 1.86 1.92 1.45 1.18 112
Price per share as at 31 R+=-—A=+—H
December (HKD) TR ER
(B TT) 4.45 11.00 4.00 1.59 2.20
Price earnings ratio (Note 4) A X (Hfit4) 299.93 23.10 20.29 13.19 5.46
Market capitalization as at RTZA=+—H
31 December (HKD thousand) & (BT L) 5,036,164 12,271,567 4,327,084 1,634,447 2,200,000
Dividend per share (RMB cents) &I S
(AEES) - 7.80 3.50 - 4.06
Dividend vyield (%) PR B Y s - 0.90% 1.21% - 2.10%
EBITDA (Note 5) BRTER
B 51 A
(Hi5t5) 281,217 662,232 284,155 167,098 293,574
Note 1:  Gearing ratio represents the balance of bank borrowings and — #/i77 : BABEBHREEHEZE HKRHE
related parties’ loans as of the end of the year/period divided by TERAMEERERGERAER
total equity as of the end of the year/period. F R R
Note 2:  Current ratio represents total current assets divided by total  ff772 : REHLRIEHEZE HRKNRHE
current liabilities as of the end of the year/period. ERAEBERIARSAERT-
Note 3:  Quick ratio represents total current assets less inventories  f/573 : FEHRIEHEZE HRNRHE
divided by total current liabilities as of the end of the year/ EREREGFEBRULRSEER
period. ZE o
Note 4:  Price earnings ratio represents the market price of shares ffii4 : TRAREEHEZE HAHEKREHEMN
divided by earnings per share as of the end of the year/period. LA IRIRES -
Note 5:  EBITDA represents earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) + #7725 © EBITDAIE 2R 1A (EBIT) +IT &
depreciation cost + amortization cost. BR B
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Five-Year Financial Summary
LFEUBME
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Dear Shareholders,

We are very honored to present to the shareholders the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year”), the fifth
annual results of Q Technology (Group) Company Limited since its
listing on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the global political and economic situation
remained unstable. On one hand, international trade protectionism
continued to heat up, and the mitigation prospect is uncertain. On
the other hand, the impact of the US dollar interest rate hike and
the start of the reduction of balance sheets by different countries
or economic entities have not yet fully reflected. The risk of
economic downturn is gradually expanding.

Under such a macroeconomic background, the PRC economy,
despite its stable performance, was inevitably affected. According
to the data released by National Bureau of Statistics of China
on 21 January 2019, China’s gross domestic products (GDP)
recorded a year-on-year increase of 6.6% in 2018, dropped by
0.2 percentage points from that of 2017, representing the lowest
growth rate in the past 28 years.

Under the tough operation environment, the development
of China’s smartphone brands has still performed well. With
breakthroughs in product innovation and brand influence in both
the domestic and overseas markets, China’s smartphone brands
seized a higher market share and saw increases in both product
average selling price and sales volume. Based on the data
released by an independent market research institute, despite
the decline in total sales volume of global smartphones in the
first three quarters of 2018, the top four China’s smartphone
brands recorded a year-on-year increase in global market share
and also product unit price. Meanwhile, the demand for China’s
smartphone brands for photo-taking effects and privacy protection
of smartphones as well as the consistent appearance of products
facilitated the innovation of dual camera modules, triple camera
modules, multi camera modules, 3D modules and optical under-
glass fingerprint recognition modules, which further enhanced the
significance of relevant products in smartphones and contributed
to the relatively sound business performance of the Group under a
severe peripheral environment.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Looking back to the Year, with the trust and support of our core
customers and the relentless efforts of all of our employees, the
Group’s strategy of expanding sales scale was well realised, the
products sales volume recorded a rapid growth, among which the
sales volume of camera modules reached approximately 263.89
million units, representing an increase of approximately 53.0% as
compared with approximately 172.45 million units of last year;
while the sales volume of fingerprint recognition modules reached
approximately 107.55 million units, representing an increase of
approximately 33.2% as compared with that of last year. The rapid
growth in product sales volume was mainly due to the following
three reasons: (i) the Group determined the “expanding sales
scale” as its core strategy for the Year in early 2018 with clear
objectives; (ii) the customer structure of the Group has gradually
improved, the Group is in a good cooperation with a newly big
customer, the customer recognition and influence are significantly
improved, and the market share was further secured; and (iii)
the popularity of dual/multiple camera modules is increasing, the
market demand for camera modules is still growing steadily, and
some dual/multiple camera modules were purchased on a splitting
basis, resulting in the increase in sales volume.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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Looking back to the Year, the core strategy of the Group’s
vertical integration has continued to deepen and has made good
progress. The Group’s investment in Newmax Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Newmax Technology”) (a company listed on the Taipei
Exchange in Taiwan, stock code: 3630) has initially demonstrated
results, and close cooperation between both parties has gradually
generated synergy and positive impact on the performance
of Newmax Technology. According to the audited annual
financial report of 2018 and other reports disclosed by Newmax
Technology, the monthly revenue of Newmax Technology achieved
a year-on-year increase of 100% or above from May 2018 to
December 2018, and net loss attributable to shareholders for 2018
was significantly reduced by approximately 40.8% to a net loss of
approximately NT$310,677,000 from a net loss of approximately
NT$525,017,000 of 2017. The gross profit margin of Newmax
Technology in 2018 was approximately —0.8%, representing a
year-on-year improvement of approximately 26.8 percentage
points. In terms of technology, the Group and Newmax Technology
have realised comprehensive technical cooperation and resource
integration in optical under-glass fingerprint recognition modules
and 3D structured light modules, and thereby accelerated
introduction of projects from a number of customers. In terms
of cost control and customer resources, we will further enhance
customer stickiness by serving customers with more cost-effective
solutions by increasing procurement ratios and sharing resources.
In the future, both the Group and Newmax Technology will display
their respective advantages and complement each other to jointly
promote customer development, capacity improvement, technical
progress and services enhancement, and strive to achieve win-win
results for customers, the Group and Newmax Technology.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Looking back to the Year, the sales revenue of the Group
reached approximately RMB8,135,161,000, representing an
increase of approximately 2.5% as compared with approximately
RMB7,938,958,000 of last year. The growth in sales income was
way below the growth in sales volume, which was mainly due to
the rapid decline in the average selling price of overall products
as a result of taking time in product mix optimisation. The average
selling price of camera modules was approximately RMB23.86
during the Year, representing a decrease of approximately 30.3%
as compared with approximately RMB34.22 of last year, which
was mainly due to the following factors: (i) the Group’s cooperation
with a new customer was still at a preliminary stage, mainly
supplied low-end camera modules with resolutions of 2 mega
pixels to such customer and hence dragged down the overall
product mix of camera modules; and (ii) the proportion of sales
volume of camera module products with resolutions of 10 mega
pixels and above in the sales volume of camera module products
decreased by approximately 4.7 percentage points as compared
with that of 2017. The average selling price of fingerprint
recognition modules was approximately RMB17.10, representing a
decrease of approximately 32.2% as compared with approximately
RMB25.23 of last year. This was mainly due to that the selling
price of coating fingerprint recognition modules declined rapidly as
a result of its maturing technique and the increasing fierce market
competition, whilst the adoption of new products such as optical
under-glass fingerprint recognition modules was still at preliminary
stage and unable to offset the downward pressure on product
average selling price, which resulted a drop in average selling price
of the fingerprint recognition module products.

@ Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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During the Year, the Group’s gross profit margin was approximately
4.3%, representing a decrease of approximately 6.8 percentage
points from approximately 11.1% of last year. Such a decrease
in gross profit margin was mainly due to that: (i) the Group’s
cooperation with a new customer was still at a preliminary stage.
The products supplied to such customer are mainly low-end
camera modules with resolutions of 2 mega pixels, resulting an
increase in the proportion of low-pixel camera modules with low
added value, and the average selling price of camera module
products fell, while at the same time, the investment in capacity
expansion and automation equipment caused the increase
in depreciation of fixed assets, labour and other costs, and
thus affected the overall gross profit margin of camera module
products; (i) the sales price of coating fingerprint recognition
modules dropped substantially, while the proportion of optical
under-glass fingerprint recognition modules which commenced
bulk shipment in the second half of 2018 has yet to improved,
which affected the overall gross profit margin of the fingerprint
recognition module products; and (iii) the central parity rate of RMB
against US dollar rose from 6.5342 at the end of 2017 to 6.8632
as at the end of 2018, representing a depreciation of RMB by
more than 5%. The increase in certain USD-denominated material
cost could not be effectively passed on to customers.

During the Year, the proportion of the Group’s products with
resolutions of 10 mega pixels and above in sales volume of
camera modules decreased by approximately 4.7 percentage
points to approximately 43.5% (the proportion of the products with
resolutions of 13 mega pixels and above in 2017: approximately
48.2%, starting from 2018, the mid-to-high end camera
module products are divided into the category of 10 mega
pixels and above). For sales volume of fingerprint recognition
modules, coating fingerprint recognition modules accounted
for approximately 72.0% (2017: approximately 75.0%), and
fingerprint recognition modules adopting cover lens accounted
for approximately 16.2% (2017: approximately 25.0%), while
the under-glass fingerprint recognition modules accounted for
approximately 11.8% (2017: N/A).
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

During the Year, the Group continued to strengthen its research
and development (“R&D”) on camera modules, and unswervingly
strived for new materials, new processes and new products. On
one hand, the Group focused on cost-effective and more stable
module miniaturization technology, while it had successfully
made mass production of the front miniaturised module solution
integrating Molding on Chip (MOC) and Fixed Focus (FF) lens
motor integration solution in the first half of the Year, it also
researched and developed the brand new miniaturization
processes such as technology of Filter and Metal in Holder
(FAMIH), and further reduced module size; independently
developed auto-focus (AF) lens motor integration solution,
and a number of integrated technologies with more compact
structure and smaller volume, and achieved fruitful results to meet
customers’ needs in new designs like ultra-high screen ratio, water
drop screen and perforated screen. On the other hand, taking the
advantages of high-magnification optical zoom and super wide-
angle field of view of standard SLR cameras as the benchmark,
the Group enhanced the ability of small cameras in “seeing
clearly” and “understanding” the world. During the Year, the Group
mainly focused on the R&D of periscope camera modules with
multi-fold optical zoom, for which it had achieved technological
breakthroughs to overcome major difficulties such as the design
and assembly of motors, prism and telephoto lens, and further
marched toward mass production.

The Group has seized the development opportunities arising from
the transformation of 2D to 3D in optical imaging and commenced
its mass sale of the front 3D structure light modules to customers
in the third quarter of the Year, becoming the first camera module
manufacturer in mass production and sale of 3D structure light
modules in China. At the same time, the Group also accelerated
the development of the new generation of 3D modules such
as time of flight (ToF) modules to cater for needs in internet of
things (loT) applications such as sweeping robots, unmanned
supermarkets, unmanned aerial vehicle, virtual reality (VR),
augmented reality (AR), mixed reality (MR), security monitoring
and other related products, and thereby consolidate the Group’s
leading position in the 3D module technology and provide the
highest quality products and experiences for customers. The
Group believes that it is a long-term trend that the 3D modules
will be gradually become the standard configuration for mid-to-
high end mobile phones. Based on the current solid foundation
of the Group in structured light solutions and ToF solutions, the
application of 3D imaging technique of smartphones is expected
to facilitate the Group in benefiting from the next round of product
structure improvement cycle.
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Looking back to the Year, the infinity display design had
gradually become the standard configuration of flagship projects
of smartphone brands. Driven by the strong demand of end
consumers and under the favorable environment of lower
production cost of display, the design was further popularized
among medium-end mobile phones. The Group fully grasped
the opportunities in the under-glass fingerprint recognition and
successfully developed the second-generation optical under-
glass fingerprint recognition modules through the cooperation
with Newmax Technology and under-glass fingerprint recognition
solutions suppliers. The Group has successively secured
the qualification of a major supplier for important models of
various major China’s mobile phone brands and received high
industry recognition, and is expected to maintain such technical
advantages in next year.

Since 2017, the Group has continuously increased investment in
automation to achieve production automation and intelligence.
After the preparation and commissioning in the first half of the
Year, the production efficiency and the first pass vyield in the
second half of the Year had gradually improved. Looking forward
to the future, the Group will continue to invest in the projects of
chip on board (“COB”) process automation, testing automation
and logistics automation, try to carry out digital smart factory
infrastructure by building In Line smart manufacturing line, digital
equipment management system and energy management system.

Generally speaking, affected by various factors such as increase in
industry concentration of smartphone brands, cyclical extension of
smartphones replacement, and industry reshuffle and integration
of camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules, the
competition in camera module and fingerprint recognition module
industries was still very intense. The directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) believe that only when constantly and deeply
promoting intelligent manufacturing, R&D of new technology and
vertical integration, firmly propelling the strategies in platform,
components as well as system integration, then the Group will
be able to maintain its relatively long-term competitiveness and
provide high-end and high quality products and quick response
services for our general customers.
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PROSPECTS

Experienced the challenging year of 2018, the Directors believe
that the macroeconomic situation is still full of challenges in 2019.
Both trade protectionism and geopolitical relations may cause
a fluctuation in global economic development. On 21 January
2019, in Davos, Switzerland, the International Monetary Fund
(IMF) announced that the world economic growth forecast for
2019 will be lowered to 3.5%, the lowest growth rate in the past
three years. The Directors are well aware that the prospect of the
intelligent mobile communication terminal industry remains highly
uncertain under the macro-economic environment. The Directors
believe that under the current situation, the Group should strive
to consolidate its advantages in the industry and establish its
technological advantages by promoting the R&D of new materials,
new processes and new products, improve product structure
by optimising customer structure, build the systematic ability
of intelligent vision products by promoting vertical integration,
and enhance the risk prevention capability by strengthening
internal control management, thereby better cope with potential
fluctuations of situation in 2019.

However, the Directors remain unswerving in continuously
promoting the development of intelligent visual system products,
and cautiously optimistic about the business development of the
camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules in the coming
year, and believe that:

()  Camera modules will remain one of the end-consumers’
most concerned smartphone components, which will lead
to continuous improvement in product specifications of
camera modules. The design of triple camera modules
and multi camera modules will be the upgrading path of
major specifications of mobile phone brands in 2019. Some
medium-end mobile phones projects with dual/multi camera
in one frame solutions may adopt the separable procurement
model with the development of algorithm. However, no matter
what plan will be adopted, the demand for high pixel camera
modules will inevitably increase with the higher requirements
on shooting effects. The potential market and the higher
technical threshold will bring favorable conditions for the
development of the Group.
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(i

(i)

The Group’s customer mix has been significantly improved
than the past since the Group has established comprehensive
cooperative relations with all the top four China’s mobile
phone brands in terms of sales volume, which will effectively
reduce the risks on high customer concentration. Although
the Group is still at the preliminary stage regarding the
cooperation with an individual core customer, however, it has
been highly recognized by such customer. The Group will be
committed to improving the penetration of related customer
and optimizing the product mix supplied to such customer.
The future business growth can be more stably based on the
explicit long-term trend of the pursuit for image effects by
the mobile terminal, which will facilitate the Group in giving
better display through its accumulated reserves of capacity,
technology, talents and capital.

The infinity display design gradually becomes the dominant
trend of mobile phones, although traditional capacitive
fingerprint recognition module products are facing a
development pressure, under-glass fingerprint recognition
modules which replace them can generate higher added-
value. As the leader in the second-generation optical under-
glass fingerprint recognition modules, the Group will continue
to benefit from the upgrading specification. Currently, the
under-glass fingerprint recognition modules of the Group have
acquired supplier qualifications for various brand flagship
phones of major branded manufacturers. The Group has
fully mastered the trend in the design of new products and
is expected to maintain the leadership in the upgrading and
replacement of relevant products.
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(iv)

Camera modules are one of the most important human-
machinery interactive interfaces during the loT era. Major
Chinese mobile phone brands have successively launched
smartphones with 3D modules with different technologies
and functions such as face recognition in 2018. Although
3D modules are currently used in mobile payment and
screen unlocking with slow growth in penetration due to their
limited application scenarios, the development of application
softwares may help bring more application scenarios with
the lower cost resulted from the maturity of the supply chain
of 3D modules. The Group still believes that 3D modules
will become one of important trends in the upgrading of the
specifications of mobile phones in the future. As the first 3D
structure light modules manufacture with mass production
in China, the Group has accumulated abundant technical
reserves and the ToF plans are also ready to provide
customized module solutions applicable to different scenarios
based on customer demands, which may become a new
driver for sales growth and specification improvement in
camera modules.

[t has become the common development goal of domestic
and overseas vehicle brands to improve driving safety and
the operation experience of users through Advanced Driver
Assistance System ADAS, Surround View, In-cabin Monitoring
and other intelligent driving systems, which will promote
application increase and specification improvement of vehicle
camera modules. In 2018, the Group successfully achieved
mass production and sales of in-cabin monitoring camera
modules and obtained precious experience. Meanwhile, the
Group successfully obtained the Tier 2 supplier qualification
of domestic vehicle brands and is expected to fully conduct
the business in 2019.
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The Group will adhere to the mission of “providing intelligent
vision systematic products for intelligent mobile terminals” and
strengthen its capacity development in three aspects, namely
optical design, computing vision and system integration, continue
to enhance the R&D of new products and new processes and
improve its precision manufacturing capability, and proactively
carry out marketing activities to enhance its customer relationship,
aggressively expand overseas renowned smartphone branded
customers and continuously enhance the core competitiveness of
the Group. The Group will focus on developing high-end camera
modules, multi camera modules, 3D modules, periscopic camera
modules, under-glass fingerprint recognition modules and other
high-end products, provide assistance to Newmax Technology,
our associate, in the development of camera module lens, 3D
module lens and under-glass fingerprint recognition module lens,
with an effort to strengthen the technical cooperation and resource
integration between camera modules and key components such
as lens, at the same time striving to achieve a breakthrough in the
application of camera modules in non-mobile-phone sector.

The Group will endeavour to achieve the following objectives in
2019: (i) shipment of camera modules in 2019 will increase by not
less than 30% comparing with that of the previous year, of which
the proportion of shipment of camera modules with resolutions of
10 mega pixels and above will account for not less than 50%; (ii)
shipment of under-glass fingerprint recognition modules in 2019
will account for not less than 40% of the shipment of fingerprint
recognition modules; and (iii) with a constant demand from
customers and the Company’s business development, production
capacity of camera modules will be gradually expanded to not
more than 50 million units per month by the end of 2019 and the
production capacity structure is further adjusted to the direction of
under-glass fingerprint recognition modules when the production
capacity of fingerprint recognition modules remains basically
unchanged.
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The Directors are confident in leading the Group to embrace the
challenges, and make further efforts to achieve good development
and strive to create greater value for the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”).

AWARDS AND HONOURS

During the Year, the Group continued to adhere to our customer-
oriented service strategies, always considered the provision
of good personal experience for customers as our operation
direction and devoted our best efforts to satisfy customers’
needs in product R&D, sales delivery, after-sales service, product
quality and technology innovation, and gained high recognition
of the Group’s products and services from the industry, local
governments and our customers.

In February 2018, Kunshan Q Technology Limited (‘Kunshan QT
China”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was awarded
the “Top Ten Enterprises with Economies of Scale in 2016-2017”
granted by the People’s Government of Kunshan City;

In May 2018, Mr. He Ningning, the Chairman of the Company, was
awarded the Friend of Kunshan “Twin Lotus Award” to appreciate
his contribution towards the reform and opening-up of Kunshan
and is one of the ten outstanding economic figures who got this
honor;

In November 2018, Kunshan QT China received the award of

“Hi-tech Benchmarking Enterprise” granted by the People’s
Government of Kunshan City;
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In November 2018, Kunshan QT China won the “Best Quality E—NF+—A BIUEHKFTHAELE
Award” of 2018 granted by Xiaomi Communication Co., Ltd. EEI%% e F Mg/ N K BRI A
(/NKBHFMTABRAR), one of the most well-known global BE/“ﬂﬁﬁgéﬁ’\ji??f}\ifh (EERE

smartphone manufacturers; %]

In December 2018, Kunshan QT China won the “Global Best —Z—N\E+ -/ BIUTiAPHZEE

Partner Award” of 2018 granted by ZTE Corporation, one of the &2 B ZE & 5 8 F # Mg & B @A IR D

most well-known global smartphone manufacturers; and RARIBERE _—_E—NFE[2EES
ERHE] &

In January 2019, Kunshan QT China was awarded the “Top —Z—HNF— A EILEH}PHEER
Ten Intelligence Production Transformation Enterprise” and |ULTH ARBNEZ [ +EE bt
“Top Economies of Scale Production Enterprise” granted by the 2 | F [IRIE R RZAEEDE | BE o
People’s Government of Kunshan City.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the Year, the revenue of the Group was approximately
RMB8,135,161,000, representing an increase of approximately
2.5% as compared with approximately RMB7,938,958,000 in
the year 2017. The increase in revenue was mainly attributable
to the significant increase in the sales volume of camera module
products by approximately 53.0% as compared with that of the
year 2017 and the significant increase in the sales volume of
fingerprint recognition module products by approximately 33.2%
as compared with that of the year 2017 resulting from the Group’s
strategic expansion in its scale. However, due to the fact that the
product structure optimisation takes time, the average selling price
of camera module and fingerprint recognition module products
decreased substantially year-on-year, resulting in that growth rate
in revenue was less than the growth rate in sales volume of camera
module and fingerprint recognition module products.

Cost of sales

For the Year, the cost of sales of the Group was approximately
RMB7,782,053,000, representing an increase of approximately
10.3% as compared with approximately RMB7,056,225,000
in the year 2017. The increase in the cost of sales was
mainly attributable to that: (i) the total investment in raw
materials increased by approximately 6.8% to approximately
RMB6,691,781,000 as compared with that of 2017; (ii) the
increase in the total number and remuneration of the Group’s
employees, labour dispatchers and interns resulted in the
increase of approximately 37.8% in labour costs to approximately
RMB511,514,000 as compared with that of 2017; and (i) the
depreciation expenses arisen from the production plants and
equipment as result of the investment in capacity expansion
which increased significantly by 72.4% to approximately
RMB185,264,000 as compared with RMB107,444,000 of 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the Year, the gross profit of the Group was approximately
RMB353,108,000 (2017: approximately RMB882,733,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 60.0% as compared
with that of 2017, while the gross profit margin was approximately
4.3% (2017: approximately 11.1%). The decrease in gross profit
margin was mainly attributable to that: (i) the Group’s cooperation
with a new customer was still at a preliminary stage. The products
supplied to such customer are mainly low-end camera modules
with resolutions of 2 mega pixels, resulting an increase in the
proportion of low-pixel camera modules with low added value,
and the average selling price of camera module products fell,
while at the same time, the investment in capacity expansion and
automation equipment caused the increase in depreciation of
fixed assets, labour and other costs, and thus affected the overall
gross profit margin of camera module products; (ii) the sales price
of coating fingerprint recognition modules dropped substantially,
while the proportion of optical under-glass fingerprint recognition
modules which commenced bulk shipment in the second half of
2018 has yet to improved, which affected the overall gross profit
margin of the fingerprint recognition module products; and (iii) the
central parity rate of RMB against US dollar rose from 6.5342 at
the end of 2017 to 6.8632 as at the end of 2018, representing
a depreciation of RMB by more than 5%. The increase in certain
USD-denominated material cost could not be effectively passed on
to customers.

Other revenue

For the Year, other revenue of the Group was approximately
RMB133,113,000, representing an increase of approximately
279.3% as compared with approximately RMB35,099,000 in the
year 2017. The increase in other revenue was primarily due to:
subsidies or incentives received by the Group that were granted
by local governments at different levels were approximately
RMB103,908,000, representing an increase of approximately
5283.7% as compared with approximately RMB16,659,000 of
2017.
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Other net loss

For the Year, the Group had other net loss of approximately
RMB50,2283,000, representing an increase of approximately
109.9% as compared with other net loss of approximately
RMB23,931,000 in 2017. Such other net loss was primarily
attributable to: (i) net exchange loss of approximately
RMB44,613,000 due to the depreciation in exchange rates of RMB
against US dollar during the Year; (ii) a net realised and unrealised
loss on foreign currency option contracts was approximately
RMB2,341,000; (iii) loss on disposal of assets was approximately
RMB15,687,000; and (iv) a net realised and unrealised gain
on foreign currency forward contracts was approximately
RMB12,418,000.

Selling and distribution expenses

For the Year, the selling and distribution expenses of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB18,562,000, representing an
increase of approximately 15.7% as compared with approximately
RMB16,045,000 of 2017. The ratio of selling and distribution
expenses in turnover was approximately 0.2%, which was at
similar level of approximately 0.2% of 2017. The increase in
selling and distribution expenses was mainly attributed to the
increase of sales staff’s total salaries as a result of the expansion
in the sales scale and increase in number of staff, and increase in
entertainment expenses in relation to the sales activities during the
Year.

Administrative and other operating expenses

For the Year, total administrative and other operating expenses of
the Group increased from approximately RMB64,955,000 of 2017
to approximately RMB81,201,000, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 25.0%. The increase in administrative
and other operating expenses was mainly attributable to the
following factors: (i) an increase of approximately 49.3% in staff
salaries and labour expenses from approximately RMB18,899,000
of last year to approximately RMB28,219,000 resulting from the
business expansion during the Year; and (ii) reversal of provision
for doubtful trade receivables of approximately RMB9,555,000 in
the last year, and no such reversal was incurred in the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

R&D expenses

For the Year, total R&D expenses of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB266,198,000, representing a decrease
of approximately 1.2% as compared with approximately
RMB269,556,000 of 2017. The R&D expenses for the Year was
mainly utilised in the Group’s continuous R&D investments in new
products and new processes, so as to allow the Group to develop
the products such as camera modules with higher pixels, dual
camera modules with different functions and applications, camera
modules with smaller size, 3D modules, camera modules applied
in automotive and smart home areas, more miniature fingerprint
recognition modules with higher definition and optical under-
glass fingerprint recognition modules, as well as to optimise and
enhance the standards of production automation.

Finance costs

For the Year, the finance costs of the Group were approximately
RMB44,146,000, increased by approximately 161.0% from
approximately RMB16,912,000 of 2017, which was primarily due
to the combined effect of the year-on-year increase in the Group’s
daily average balance of bank borrowings as compared with that
of 2017 and the increase in interest rate of USD borrowings.

Income tax expenses

For the Year, the income tax expenses of the Group was
approximately RMB-13,069,000, while the income tax expenses
of 2017 was approximately RMB73,238,000, which was mainly
attributable to tax effect of additional deduction ratio on R&D costs
increased from 50% in 2017 to 75% in 2018.

Profit for the Year

Based on the foregoing, the profit of the Group for the Year
amounted to approximately RMB14,399,000 (2017: approximately
RMB436,277,000), representing a decrease of approximately
96.7% as compared with that of 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Bank borrowings

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank borrowings amounted
to approximately RMB1,178,241,000, representing an increase of
approximately 9.3% from approximately RMB1,078,119,000 as at
31 December 2017. The maturities of all of those bank borrowings
are not more than 1 year.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank borrowings were
denominated in RMB and/or USD. The overview of the Group’s
cash flow for the Year and 2017 was set out as follows:
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For the year ended 31 December
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2018 2017
—B-N\F —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR¥ETTT
Net cash (used in)/generated from ESES) (BT EEN
operating activities IR & F 5 (172,505) 2,221,513
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEERBELE (FTAM
investing activities IR & ¥ 5 386,521 (2,118,977)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEES (FTA) EEX
financing activities ReFHE (584,005) 311,626

As at 31 December 2018, the cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB99,920,000, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB365,062,000 from approximately
RMB464,982,000 as at 31 December 2017. The decrease in cash
and cash equivalents was mainly due to net cash outflow from
operating activities and financing activities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Operating activities

For the Year, the Group’s net cash outflow of operating activities
amounted to approximately RMB172,505,000, while there
was a net cash inflow of operating activities of approximately
RMB2,221,513,000 in 2017. The Group’s cash flow recorded
a net outflow from its operating activities, which was primarily
attributable to: () parts of customers of the Group made their
payment due at the beginning of each month, which resulted
in a balance of trade and other receivables of approximately
RMB3,031,367,000 as at 31 December 2018, representing a
substantial increase of approximately RMB996,322,000 from
approximately RMB2,035,045,000 of the same time of last year.
The turnover days of accounts receivable of the Group for the
Year was approximately 113 days, representing an increase of
approximately 9 days from approximately 104 days of last year;
and the Group usually makes its payment due at the end of
the previous month, which resulted in a balance of trade and
other payables of RMB3,061,432,000, representing a slight
increase of approximately RMB231,315,000 from approximately
RMB2,830,117,000 of the same time of last year; and (i) a
decrease in gross profit margin of the Group for the Year.

Investment activities

The net cash inflow generated from the investment activities of the
Group in the Year amounted to approximately RMB386,521,000,
which was mainly due to: (i) the expenses for plant expansion
and purchasing equipment amounted to approximately
RMB493,496,000; and (ii) the net cash inflow of purchase
and redemption of other financial assets of approximately
RMB873,486,000.

Financing activities

The net cash outflow used in the financing activities of the Group
during the Year amounted to approximately RMB584,005,000,
which was mainly due to: (i) the inflow of bank borrowings of
approximately RMB1,537,615,000 and the cash outflows for
repaying bank borrowings of approximately RMB1,883,980,000;
(i) the payment of final dividend of year 2017 of approximately
RMB91,622,000; and (iii) the subscription amount of
RMB54,593,000 paid by employees was received for subscription
of the ordinary shares of the Company upon their exercise of
share options in accordance with the share option scheme of the
Company.
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BEEERWED T

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2018, the gearing ratio of the Group,
which is defined as the balance of bank borrowings and related
parties’ loans divided by total equity at the end of the Year, was
approximately 56.0%, representing an increase of approximately
5.8 percentage points as compared with approximately 50.2% as
at 31 December 2017, which was mainly due to: (i) the balance
of the Group’s bank borrowings increased by approximately
RMB100,122,000 as at 31 December 2018 as compared with that
of the same time of last year; and (i) the payment of the Group’s
final dividends of year 2017 of approximately RMB91,622,000 in
the Year resulted in a decrease in its net assets of approximately
RMB42,222,000 as at the end of the Year.

Treasury policies

The Group’s treasury policy was disclosed in the prospectus of
the Company dated 20 November 2014 (the “Prospectus”), and
was amended by the risk management committee (the “Risk
Management Committee”) of the Company on 24 March 2016,
the details of which were disclosed under the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section of the 2016 annual report.
The Board, the Risk Management Committee of the Company
and the staff at the relevant positions always remain alert to the
performance and risk assessment of the wealth management
products so as to ensure that the wealth management operation
does not pose excessive risk to the principal amount. At the same
time, the Company also pays close attention to the liquidity and
debt asset position of the Group in order to ensure the sufficiency
of its working capital and maintain the debt asset ratio at a
reasonable level.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures for the year ended
31 December 2018.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group did not hold any significant investment for the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the assets pledged by the Group
included bank deposits, trade receivables and bills receivables of
approximately RMB462,174,000, which were used as guarantee
for bank borrowings and bills payables.

EMPLOYEE POLICIES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of employees
2,874 (excluding staff under labour service agreements and
internship agreements) (as at 31 December 2017: 2,526).
The Group is committed to providing all staff with fair working
environment, providing newly recruited staff with induction
training and job technical counseling to help them to adapt
to job requirements quickly, providing all staff with clear job
responsibilities guidelines and for employees at different positions
with on-the-job training together with other training programmes
to help improving their skills and knowledge, and strived to
provide all staff with competitive remuneration packages. For the
Year, the remuneration of the employees (including staff under
labour service agreements and internship agreements) of the
Group was approximately RMB623,001,000 (2017: approximately
RMB463,868,000).
includes performance bonus, medical insurance and provident

Apart from basic salary, the package also

fund (staff under labour service agreements and internship
agreements are treated according to the laws and regulations of
the PRC).
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Meanwhile, the Company has granted a total of 60,228,000
share options to its staff on 26 October 2016, 9 June 2017 and 7
December 2018 respectively pursuant to a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) adopted on 13 November 2014
(details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in sections
D1 headed “Share Option Scheme” of Appendix IV “Statutory
and General Information” of the Prospectus respectively. The
Company granted 39,425,000 share options in total to 165 staff
(including two executive Directors, Mr. Wang Jiangiang and Mr. Hu
Sanmu) on 26 October 2016 in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme, and grantees may apply to exercise the share options
by phases from 1 April 2018 upon fulfilling certain conditions
(please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 26
October 2016 for details), and the Company has accepted the
applications from 151 staff (including two executive Directors, Mr.
Wang Jiangiang and Mr. Hu Sanmu) to issue a total of 14,706,000
ordinary shares during the Year, at the exercise price of HK$4.13
per share and total consideration received was approximately
HK$60,736,000; a total of 1,567,800 options granted on 26
October 2016 were waived as a result of the resignations of 15
staff during the Year. On 9 June 2017, the Company granted
8,083,000 share options in total to 48 staff (none of the grantees
are Directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates) in accordance
with the Share Option Scheme, and the grantees may apply to
exercise the share options by phases from 1 April 2018 upon
fulfilling certain conditions (please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 9 June 2017 for details), and the Company
has accepted the applications from 25 staff to issue a total of
1,419,200 ordinary shares during the Year, at the exercise price
of HK$6.22 per share and total consideration received was
approximately HK$8,827,000; a total of 1,197,600 options and
1,645,000 options granted on 9 June 2017 were waived as a
result of the resignations of 10 staff and personal reasons of 9
staff respectively during the Year. In addition, on 7 December
2018, the Company granted 12,720,000 share options in total
to 83 staff (none of the grantees are Directors, chief executive or
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates) in accordance with the Share Option Scheme, and
the grantees may apply to exercise the share options by phases
from 1 April 2020 upon fulfilling certain conditions (please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 7 December 2018
for details), and no option granted on 7 December 2018 was
exercised during the Year.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily due to certain
receivables, payables, cash balances and loans that are
denominated in foreign currencies other than RMB arising from
the operating activities such as bank borrowings, product sales
and purchase of raw materials. The Group is also exposed to
currency risk from the exchange or translation of USD and Hong
Kong Dollars into RMB. During the Year, the Group recorded
an exchange loss of approximately RMB44,613,000 as the
sales income of the Group was still mainly settled in RMB but
various raw materials for production and some equipment for
production were purchased from overseas and settled in USD, and
depreciated more than 5.0% in the RMB against USD exchange
rate for the Year. As affected by multiple factors such as politics,
economic, and supply and demand, the trend of RMB against USD
in the future is subject to great uncertainties. It is difficult to adjust
the business mode of the Group in the short run. Therefore, the
profit or loss of the Group may still be affected by exchange rate
fluctuation in the future. The Company will, on one hand, strive
to strengthen the expansion of overseas business continuously
to increase USD income; on the other hand, the Group will
coordinate actively with suppliers receiving settlement in USD to
seek the consent of certain suppliers to purchase domestically or
arrange settlement in RMB, so as to reduce the demand for USD.
Meanwhile, the Group will enhance monitoring of the exchange
rate fluctuation on a daily basis, adjust the proportion of USD
deposits to total deposits balance and the proportion of USD
loans to total loans balance from time to time with reference to the
analysis of exchange rates fluctuation trend, fix the future foreign
exchange costs by properly using currency derivative instruments
such as foreign exchange forwards and options, and take into
account of costs during the price quotation for purchase or sales,
S0 as to strengthen the management of foreign exchange risks and
strive to reduce foreign exchange loss. However, the Group is also
clearly aware that there are many factors affecting exchange rates,
and the mechanism to determine exchange rate is complicated
and fickle, thus it is difficult to estimate its trend. Therefore, the
profit or loss of the Group may still be affected by exchange rate
fluctuation.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL
OFFERING

On 2 December 2014, the shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
were initially listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange by
global offering. The net proceeds from the above global offering
was approximately HK$658,000,000 (after deducting relevant
listing expenses). As at 31 December 2018, the fund raised was
fully utilised in accordance with the intended use of the global
offering.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING OF
SHARES

On 12 December 2016, the Company completed the placing
of 40,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each under a
general mandate granted to the Directors by the Shareholder
to two placees, namely Value Partners Hong Kong Limited and
The People’s Insurance Company (Group) of China Limited,
who and whose ultimate beneficial owners are third parties
independent of the Company and its connected persons, at the
placing price of HK$3.90 per placing share. The net proceeds
from the above placing was approximately HK$154,428,000,
after deducting the related placing commission, professional
fees and all related expenses. As at 31 December 2018, the
fund raised was fully utilised. Among the utilised net proceeds: (i)
approximately HK$70,000,000 was utilised for capital expenses; (i)
approximately HK$70,000,000 was utilised for R&D activities; and
(i) approximately HK$14,428,000 was utilised for general working
capital. The capital utilisation was consistent with the intended use
of the net proceeds of the placing.
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On 29 December 2017, the Company completed the placing of
20,000,000 new ordinary shares under a general mandate granted
to the Directors by the Shareholders to not less than six placees,
being professional, institutional and/or other investors, who and
whose ultimate beneficial owners are third parties independent of
the Company and its connected persons, at the placing price of
HK$10.80 per placing share. The net proceeds from the above
placing was approximately HK$214,218,000, after deducting
the related placing commission, professional fees and all related
expenses. As at 31 December 2018, the fund raised was fully
utilised. Among the utilised net proceeds: (i) approximately
HK$171,374,000 was utilised for capital expenses; and (ii)
approximately HK$42,844,000 was utilised for R&D activities. The
capital utilisation was consistent with the intended use of the net
proceeds of the placing.

DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the Year.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017 of RMB7.8 cents (equivalent to
HK$9.6 cents) per share, and was paid in June 2018.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the eligibility to attend the 2018
annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from 21 May 2019 to 24 May 2019. All transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 20
May 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
MANAGEMENT

The Group has strictly complied with the applicable environmental
protection laws and policies in the jurisdictions where the
respective members of the Group are located. During the Year,
the Group had continued to revise, improve and implement a
number of internal rules and regulations in relation to environmental
protection management such as the implementation of
Wastewater Management Regulations, Waste Gas Management
Regulations and Greenhouse Gas Management Measures, and
to further perfect the wastewater, waste gas and greenhouse
gas treatment system in order to strengthen its management
and control in production and domestic sewage so as to ensure
that the wastewater discharge is in compliance with statutory
requirements, and clarified the ranges, procedure and instrument
of collecting the data of greenhouse gas for the effective
management of greenhouse gas of the Group in the long run and
prepared for reducing carbon emissions. As the same time, the
Group had also amended and implemented certain regulations
and measures including improving the Fire Safety Management
Regulations and Emergency Plan, held fire drills with particular
focus on strengthening of self-check of the fire control facilities and
improving the fire prevention and control capability, and Kunshan
QT China successfully obtained the compliance certificate in
terms of work safety granted by Administration of Work Safety
and Environmental Protection of Kunshan Hi-tech Industrial
Development Park.

Particulars of the environmental protection management of
the Company are disclosed in the Environmental, Social and

Governance Report.

@ Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EERGREEB2EBEFE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company currently
consists of six Directors, comprising three executive Directors,
namely Mr. He Ningning, Mr. Wang Jiangiang and Mr. Hu Sanmu,
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu
Chia-Hsiang, Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Ng Sui Yin.

Executive Directors

Mr. He Ningning ({f/2888) (“Mr. He”), aged 48, was appointed as
a Director on 5 May 2014 and was re-designated as an executive
Director on 13 November 2014. Mr. He has been the chairman
of the Board and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) of the Board of the Company since 13 November
2014. He is primarily responsible for overall strategic planning
and formulation of investment strategies of our Group. Mr. He
founded Kunshan QT China in October 2007 and has more than
20 years of experience in the electrical and electronic industries.
Prior to founding the Group, Mr. He served as a sales officer of
Samsung Electro-Mechanics Dongguan Co., Ltd. (R = £ &
BB AR, a manufacturer of electronic components, from
July 1992 to April 1997 where he was primarily responsible for
sales and delivery management. In November 2000 and June
2004, Mr. He founded Surewheel Asia Pacific Limited (&R
g K AR A 7)) (“Surewheel”), a company principally engaged in
agency sales of printheads, and Shenzhen Xike Dexin Telecom
Equipment Co., Ltd. CRII M AN EERERMEEERLAF)
(“Shenzhen CK”), a company principally engaged in the research,
development and sales of complete handsets components, and
has been the chairman of Surewheel and Shenzhen CK. Mr. He
is primarily responsible for the strategic planning. In December
2004, Mr. He founded CK Telecom Limited ( 78 A] 3 {5 2 17 55 48
GAR) BR AT (“Heyuan CK”), a company principally engaged
in the sales and manufacturing of complete handsets and handset
components and modules, and has been the chairman of Heyuan
CK. Mr. He is primarily responsible for the strategic planning of
Heyuan CK. Mr. He is the sole director and the sole shareholder
of Q Technology Investment Inc. (“QT Investment”), a controlling
shareholder of the Company as at the date of this report. Mr. He
received his bachelor’'s degree in science, majoring in weather
dynamic, from the Peking University in July 1992 and his master’s
degree of business administration from the University of California
in March 2002. Mr. He is also the step-brother of Mr. Wang
Jiangiang, an executive Director and chief executive officer (the
“Chief Executive Officer”) of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEEB ZBEFS

Mr. He is also a director of each of Q Technology (Great China)
Inc. (formerly known as “CK Telecom (Great China) Inc.”), Kunshan
Q Technology (Hong Kong) Limited (“Kunshan QT Hong Kong”),
Kunshan QT China and Kunshan Q Tech Microelectronics (India)
Private Limited (“India QT”), each of which is a subsidiary of the
Company.

Mr. Wang Jiangiang (£ #3&) (“Mr. Wang”), aged 47, was
appointed as a Director on 5 May 2014 and was re-designated
as an executive Director on 13 November 2014. Mr. Wang was
appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 8
July 2016 and is primarily responsible for operation and business
management of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang
served as a supervisor of the quality assurance department of SAE
Magnetics ( RZe#1 S T8 ) , a computer hardware manufacturer,
from October 1995 to September 1996, where he was primarily
responsible for product quality assurance. From August 1998 to
January 2005, he served as the sales assistant manager of the
Shenzhen office of Samsung Electro-Mechanics (H.K.) Limited
(ZESH(BE)BRRAA),

components, where he was primarily responsible for the sales of

a manufacturer of electronic

the electronic components. From February 2005 to April 2014 and
December 2005 to April 2014, respectively, Mr. Wang served as
the chief financial officer of Shenzhen CK and Heyuan CK where
he was primarily responsible for audit management and budgeting.
Mr. Wang received his bachelor’s degree in engineering, majoring
in fluid machinery and engineering, from the Sichuan University of
Science and Technology (POJIl T #£8% ) in June 1995. Mr. Wang
is the step-brother of Mr. He.

Mr. Wang is also a director of Kunshan QT Hong Kong, Kunshan

QT China, Chengdu Q Technology Limited (“Chengdu QT”) and
India QT, each of which is a subsidiary of the Company.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Hu Sanmu (# = K) (“Mr. Hu”), aged 43, is the vice
president of sales of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the
expansion of sales network and maintenance of relationship with
customers. Mr. Hu was appointed as an executive Director of the
Group since 8 July 2016. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Hu held
various positions in VTech (Shenzhen) Electronic Limited (12 5 i
BEFEMS CRINARLQF), a company principally engaged in
manufacturing of telecommunication products, from July 1998 to
November 2002, where he last served as a mechanical structure
engineer and was primarily responsible for the mechanical design.
From November 2002 to August 2004, Mr. Hu held various
positions in Tianjin Amphenol Kae Co., Ltd. (KZZ EHLINEE
FABAR), a manufacturer of interconnect products, where
he last served as a sales engineer and was primarily responsible
for maintaining the relationship with existing customers and the
expansion of sales network. From July 2004 to November 2009,
Mr. Hu held various positions in Van Telecom Limited ( M 22 &} %
BRAF]), a company principally engaged in manufacturing and
sales of precise connectors, where he last served as the sales
director and was primarily responsible for sales management
and product planning. Mr. Hu received his bachelor’s degree in
engineering, majoring in mechanical design and manufacture from
the Xi’an University of Science and Technology ( P % Rl # A £2) |
previously known as Xi'an Mining Institute ( FEZ &2 226k ) | in July
1998.

Mr. Hu is also a director of Kunshan QT China, which is a
subsidiary of the Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ko Ping Keung (&%) (“Mr. Ko”), aged 68, JP, was
appointed an independent non-executive Director (the “INED”),
a member of each of the audit committee (“Audit Committee”)
of the Board, the remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) of the Board, the Nomination Committee and the
chairman of the Risk Management Committee of the Company
on 31 May 2017. Mr. Ko holds a Bachelor of Science (Honours)
degree from The University of Hong Kong, and holds a Master
of Science degree and a Doctor of Philosophy degree from the
University of California at Berkeley. He is an Adjunct Professor of
Peking University and Tsinghua University and Emeritus Professor
of Electrical & Electronic Engineering and the former Dean of the
School of Engineering of The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology. Mr. Ko was the Vice Chairman of Electrical
Engineering and Computer Science Department of the University
of California at Berkeley from 1991 to 1993 and a member of Bell
Labs in USA from 1982 to 1984. Mr. Ko is an independent non-
executive director of each of Henderson Investment Limited (Stock
code: 0097), Henderson Land Development Company Limited
(Stock code: 0012) and VTech Holdings Limited (Stock code:
003083) respectively, all of which are Hong Kong listed companies.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018

BYFATES

BREBAXE([BEE]) 685 AF
Wt R-_T—+FERA=F+—HEZ
EAARRRBULIIERNITES ([BULIF
WITEE]) BRZEEKE ([E%
ZEg]) FHEESENE ([FMWE
Bgl) REAZEgKERRREEZ
BEXIFR RLERBEEBEAERE L
(g )B4+ EB0 PURFEEERARK
MABEEERSBELHELIBMNE
Bt B8 -FAILRRBENEFEAS
REHR BERNRABIRERKSE
ITREAERABERIERR -8 EER
— AN FE-AN=ZFHBEHIER
BREMNMMNBEERIREEFITREK
ERHMEZBRBITE IR —AN_FEE
— QW N\EFHREAERNE R ERZEBel
Labs)K B e A ER DRI AR B L™
AEEREIFEERERAT (RO :
0097) - EEIKFEMEBR AR (KRMHK
5R:0012) REZEEBEER AR (&K
5% :00803) 2 B IEHITES ©



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EERGREEB2EBEFE

Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang (A R ##) (“Mr. Chu”), aged 49, was
appointed as an INED, the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company on 13 November 2014.
From June 1997 to June 2002, Mr. Chu served at various positions
in Hewlett-Packard Taiwan Ltd. (BRE&RFHRMHBER A F ), which
is a provider of computing devices, testing and skilled solutions,
and last served as a sales expert and was primarily responsible
for overseeing its sales department in respect of the computing
devices. From May 2002 to August 2004, Mr. Chu served as the
investment manager of CDIB Venture Capital Corp. ( # Z 53¢
BRI ERMABR DA, which was a wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Development Financial Holding Corporation ( #F Z
e miE AR B R A F) (Stock Code: 2883) listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange and was primarily engaged in enterprise
operations, management, and consulting services. Mr. Chu was
primarily responsible for exploring and assessing investment
plans and post-investment management. In January 2014, Mr.
Chu established WK Innovation Ltd. (Zz&IFRHBER AT,
a venture capital firm, and served as the managing director and
acted as its chairman and chief executive officer, where he was
primarily responsible for its strategic planning. From August 2004
to January 2014, Mr. Chu served as the general manager of WK
Technology Fund (E&REIZEE, previously known as EFlAI%
WERMDABRAT), aventure capital firm. Mr. Chu was primarily
responsible for exploring and assessing investment plans and
post-investment management. He was the legal representative
of Litmax Electronics Inc. (&ZEHXBRHBR A A, Stock code:
4995) and Raydium Semi-conductor Corporation ( ¥ @& RHL AL (0 &
R /A A, Stock code: 3592), each of which is listed on the Taiwan
Cretai Securities Market (R 2B HFBEEE+H L) .

Mr. Chu received his bachelor of science degree in electrical
engineering from the National Tsing-Hua University in Taiwan
in July 1993 and his master’s degree in management from the
National Cheng-Kung University in Taiwan in June 1995. Mr. Chu
served as an executive council member of the Taiwan Private
Equity & Venture Capital Association ( &/ AR EFERELE
from May 2008 to May 2010.
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Mr. Ng Sui Yin (REE) (“Mr. Ng”), aged 50, was appointed as
an INED, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
each of the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management
Committee of the Company on 13 November 2014. Mr. Ng
was previously the financial controller of Beijing Gas Blue Sky
Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 6828). He is now the financial controller
and company secretary of Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited,
a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
(Stock code: 0894). Mr. Ng has extensive experience in the areas
of finance, audit, tax, bankruptcy, information technology and
business development. Mr. Ng has been admitted as a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an
associate of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since April 2001
and April 2009, respectively. Mr. Ng was registered as a certified
tax advisor of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong in July 2010. He
received his Honours Diploma in Accounting from the Hong Kong
Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University)
and Master’'s degree in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from City University of Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Fan Fugiang (38 E3) (“Mr. Fan”), aged 41, was appointed
as chief financial officer of the Company on 8 July 2016. Mr. Fan
is primarily responsible for financial management, securities affairs
and risk control functions. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fan held
various positions in Heyuan branch of the Bank of China, a state-
owned bank principally engaged in providing a range of corporate
banking, personal banking, investment banking and other services,
from July 1996 to June 2011 and last served as the general
manager of Heyuan High-tech Zone sub-branch of Bank of China
and vice general manager of the corporate department of Heyuan
branch of Bank of China, where he was primarily responsible for
the grant of the credit facilities, risks management and international
settlement. From May 2013 to April 2014 and July 2011 to April
2014,
financial officer of Shenzhen CK and Heyuan CK, and was primarily

respectively, Mr. Fan served as the assistant to the chief

responsible for legal compliance matters and risk control. Mr. Fan
received a professional certificate from Guangdong International
Finance College (JE R BIF 4 B2 4% ) located in the PRC, in July
1996, majoring in international finance. He received a graduation
certificate from the Central Party School of Guangdong Provincial
Committee (F HEHRAE Z E ) located in the PRC, in January
2008, majoring in public management, and received a graduation
certificate from South China University of Technology (I # T X
£)in July 2016, majoring in administrative management. Mr. Fan
was one of the joint company secretaries of the Company before
his resignation on 21 November 2017.

Mr. Fan is also a director of Zhuhai Q Technology Limited and
Shenzhen Q Technology Limited, which are the subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Fan received the Top Ten Distinguished Employees (+1£&
T ) Award of Heyuan branch of Bank of China for the years 2005
and 2006 and the Innovative Employee Award (4t T1E% ) by
Heyuan branch of Bank of China for the year 2007.
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Mr. Liu Tongquan (Bl & &) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 41, is the
production director of the Group and the assistant general
manager of Kunshan QT China. Mr. Liu is primarily responsible
for the process engineering and production management. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Liu served as a production manager of
Kunshan Giantplus Optoelectronics Technology Co., Ltd. (&L
EENBHMAMRAT), a LCD display manufacturer, from July
2002 to November 2007, where he was primarily responsible for
production management. Mr. Liu received his bachelor's degree
in engineering, majoring in measurement and control technology
and instrumentation, and his bachelor’'s degree in economics
from Wuhan University ( £ X2 ) in June 2002 and July 2002,
respectively.

Ms. Le Yanfang (£#35) (“Ms. Le”), aged 35, is the senior
human resources manager of our Group. Ms. Le is primarily
responsible for management of human resources of our Group.
Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Le served as the head of the
human resources department in AVCON Information Technology
Co., Ltd. (EFEERMBKRMNOBMRAA), a company principally
engaged in the provision of the multi-media communication system
solutions, and was primarily responsible for formulating human
resources policies and human resources affairs from October 2007
to December 2010. Ms. Le received her graduation certificate from
Jiujiang Vocational and Technical College ( J1;T B % 4% fiT 22B% )
in June 2004, majoring in electronic technology and application.
Ms. Le completed an online programme in human resources
management provided by Nankai University ( £ 5 A2 ) in January
2012.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EERGREEB2EBEFE

Mr. Liu Tilun (2381 ) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 50, is the vice president
of technology center of the Group. He is mainly responsible for
the management of R&D, trail production and mass production
processes of new products, new materials and new technologies.
Mr. Liu has more than 17 years experience in optical and electronic
field. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu served as an engineer
in charge, project manager, senior project manager and project
director of opto-mechanical department successively in Liteon
Technology Co., Ltd., and held position of opto-mechanical
engineer of consumption image department of Kinpo Electronics,
Inc. from May 1998 to May 2003. Mr. Liu was graduated from
National Taipei Industrial Technology College (NTIT) in 1993,
majored in mechanical engineering.

Mr. Cheng Zhihua (22 1t) (“Mr. Cheng”), aged 43, was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company on 21
November 2017. Mr. Cheng graduated from the Jinan University
(B2 KE) with a bachelor of accounting degree in 1999 and
further obtained a master of business administration degree from
the Jinan University in 2010. Mr. Cheng is also a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is currently
a financial director of a private company in Hong Kong and has
more than 20 years of experience in handling accounting and
compliance matters at various companies and accounting firms in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Cheng has been a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 2017.
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Directors’ Report
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The Directors of the Company are pleased to present the annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Year.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL
OFFERING

Details of use of proceeds from Global Offering of the Company
are set out in the “USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL
OFFERING” in the Management Discussion and Analysis on page
32 of this annual report.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING OF
SHARES

Details of use of proceeds from placing of shares of the Company
are set out in the “USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING OF
SHARES” in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages
32 to 33 of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design, research and
development, manufacture and sales of mid-to-high end camera
modules and fingerprint recognition modules.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five accounting years are set out on pages 6 to 8 of this
annual report.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 162.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 9 to 21 of this
report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing can be found in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 9 to 21. Also, the financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group and particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the Year
are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 22 to 34 of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the Group Five-year Financial Summary
on pages 6 to 8 of this annual report. In addition, discussions
on the Group’s environmental policies, relationships with its
stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Group are contained in the
Chairman’s Statement, the Management Discussion and Analysis,
the Corporate Governance Report, the Environmental,

and Governance Report and this Directors’ Report on pages 9

Social

to 21, pages 22 to 34, pages 88 to 118, pages 119 to 150, and
pages 44 to 87 respectively. These discussions form part of this
Directors’ Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the businesses and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet
its immediate and long-term business goals. During the Year, there
were no material and significant dispute between the Group and its
employees, customers and suppliers.
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FINAL DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: RMB7.8 cents
(equivalent to HK9.6 cents) per share).

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder has waived
or agreed to waive any dividends for the Year.

For determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend the annual
general meeting (the “AGM”), the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 21 May 2019 to 24 May 2019. All
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 20
May 2019.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the trading between the Group and its major
customers and suppliers were as follows:

The Group’s purchases from its largest supplier accounted for
approximately 14.1% (2017: approximately 13.3%) of the total
purchases of the Group whilst the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 40.9% (2017: approximately 39.3%)
of the total purchases of the Group.

The Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
37.3% (2017: approximately 37.8%) of the total turnover of the
Group whilst the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 83.5% (2017: approximately 79.7%) of the total
turnover of the Group.
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During the Year, none of the Directors, their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any shareholders of
the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any beneficial
interest in any of the five largest suppliers or customers of the
Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2018
are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements of
the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company did not issue any
shares or debentures during the Year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution to the
shareholders of the Company subject to the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles of Association”). As at 31 December
2018, the aggregate amount of the Company’s reserves (including
share premium and retained profits) available for distribution
to the equity holders of the Company was approximately
RMB1,020,682,000 (2017: approximately RMB986,162,000).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date

X

RAFEERNEEARES HAHHHEARF

of this report are: = (N

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. He Ningning (Chairman) N EELE (£FE)N

Mr. Wang Jiangiang T fi#oR S

Mr. Hu Sanmu = AREE

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang™" F K F 5 A AR

Mr. Ko Ping KeungM#"H =) 3R 5 5t A NARM

Mr. Ng Sui Yin ™ Rim & % A e

A member of audit committee of the Company A KRARBZREEEHE
R member of remuneration committee of the Company R ARaHMEEEK S
M member of risk management committee of the Company M ARaRBEREEGKE
N member of nomination committee of the Company N ANGIRBEEEGKE

BERABERMAEL41)R84(2)1& - +
RAEXERVNRELESHBERME
EHAERTHEERABRRBAEFAGLE
BEE

In accordance with articles 84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Wang Jiangiang and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang will
retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM.

RAFE BESEEEAANRAEHEHE
MIEmEREBSEE T

During the Year, no Director resigned from his/her office or refused
to stand for re-election to his/her office due to reasons relating to
the affairs of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

EENRGREEEZBABE

EENREEEBZEAABREFBHRN
KREREISEFA3E »

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 35 to 43 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with our Company, among which, the term of office for each of Mr.
He Ningning and Mr. Wang Jiangiang is 36 months commencing
from the month in which the Company’s Shares were listed on
the Stock Exchange (i.e. December 2014); the term of office for
Mr. Hu Sanmu is 36 months commencing from 8 July 2016. On
2 December 2017, Mr. He Ningning, Mr. Wang Jiangiang and Mr.
Hu Sanmu renewed their service contracts with the Company for
a term of 36 months commencing from 2 December 2017. The
service contract of each executive Director may be terminated by
not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party
on the other party.

Each of the INEDs has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company, pursuant to which the term of office for each of Mr.
Chu Chia-Hsiang and Mr. Ng Sui Yin is 3 years commencing from
2 December 2014, being the date on which the shares of the
Company were initially listed on the Stock Exchange; and Mr. Ko
Ping Keung’s term of office is three years commencing from 31
May 2017. On 2 December 2017, Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang and Mr.
Ng Sui Yin signed letters of appointment with the Company for a
term of 36 months commencing from 2 December 2017.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the AGM
has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to which the Company, its holding company, its
controlling shareholder or subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares (in
relation to the positions held pursuant to equity derivatives) and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance,
Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFQ”)) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded
in the register required to be maintained by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO; or otherwise to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

(a) Interest in the Shares of the Company

EERFETBRAERKS A
FERORESTHER 2ER

RZEB-NE+_A=+—8 K27
EERTETHRABRARR A M H HE
EE (ERRBRAVIESTIEES M
BRI ([EZ R EIEGERA ) EXVEL) /Y
fetn - MR (ERBRATET AR
FANKREEMRRE) MESFTHEAZR
BEF LG ERAEXVEFET R85 #H
3@ NNCIDC BN = 9iN-C)
HREEGRPIEI2EH BRARAERE
B & RC M A - SRR AR BB 8% 1 PR
HEMRTAEFETESRINGRE
SPRI (RSP A ) ZBRE AR B KB
PTEEZR AN T -

(a) REDFRG 2 HERE

Approximate

Number of percentage
Name of Directors/ Capacity/ issued of the issued
Chief Executive Nature of interest Shares held Position held Shares
(Note 2)
sz
EE IETH B BT NEFERT
ABHE 27 V% £:1:3-1 ROBE ®R BRHED L
(Hfat2)
He Ningning Interest of a controlled 752,191,000 Long position 66.46%
s corporation (Note 1) HE
Ry rEER (Hret1)
Wang Jiangiang Beneficial owner 10,644,800 Long position 0.94%
T BEmEE A (Note 3) HRE
(H1iE3)
Hu Sanmu Beneficial owner 1,973,000 Long position 0.17%
H=x EnBEAA (Note 4) WA
(Htit4)
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Notes:

Mr. He Ningning, an executive Director and the chairman of the
Board, is the sole beneficial owner of QT Investment which owned
approximately 66.46% of the issued Shares of the Company as at 31
December 2018. Under Chapter XV of the SFO, Mr. He Ningning is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by QT Investment.

The percentage represents the number of Shares divided by
1,181,722,200 issued Shares of the Company in total as at 31
December 2018.

On 2 April 2019, an aggregate of 483,600 Shares were issued to Mr.
Wang Jiangiang pursuant to the exercise of 483,600 share options
granted to him by the Company under the Share Option Scheme on
26 October 2016, at an exercise price of HK$4.13 per share. Since 2
April 2019, Mr. Wang Jiangiang has been the beneficial owner of an
aggregate of 11,128,400 Shares of the Company.

On 2 April 2019, an aggregate of 360,000 Shares were issued to
Mr. Hu Sanmu pursuant to the exercise of 360,000 share options
granted to him by the Company under the Share Option Scheme on
26 October 2016, at an exercise price of HK$4.13 per share. Since
2 April 2019, Mr. Hu Sanmu has been the beneficial owner of an
aggregate of 2,333,000 Shares of the Company.
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(b) Interest in Underlying Shares

(b) RAEBRD z2HER

Approximately
percentage of
the underlying
Shares over
the Company’s

Number issued
of underlying Shares M2
Shares in (assuming
respect of that the share
Name of Directors/ Capacity/ the share options are
Chief Executive Nature of interest options granted Position held exercised in full)
HER 5
HEAR S BT
B 45 (Hii2)
PRERE BMABES
B TETH BREN (RBERE
ABHR 5/ EnitE HERGHE ®¥E E2HIHE)
Wang Jiangiang Beneficial owner 967,200 Long position 0.09%
TR EnBEAA (Note 1and83) A&
(Htat123)
Hu Sanmu EmlEEA 720,000  Long position 0.06%
=R (Note 1and 4) &
(Htat1k4)
Notes: Byt -

1. Details of the above share options have been disclosed in the

following sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and note 26

to the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

The percentage represents the number of underlying Shares
divided by 1,131,722,200 issued Shares of the Company in
total as at 31 December 2018.

On 2 April 2019, Mr. Wang Jiangiang exercised 483,600 share
options granted to him by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme on 26 October 2016, at an exercise price of HK$4.13
per share. Mr. Wang Jiangiang is interested in the remaining
483,600 share options granted to him.

On 2 April 2019, Mr. Hu Sanmu exercised 360,000 share
options granted to him by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme on 26 October 2016, at an exercise price of HK$4.13
per share. Mr. Hu Sanmu is interested in the remaining 360,000
share options granted to him.
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(c) Interest in Associated Corporation
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(c) REBEE zER

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

Number of shares in

Name of Directors/ Name of associated Capacity/Nature issued shares associated

Chief Executive corporation of interest held corporation

FIESTIEN P

B XEAH DS AY &6y ERITRG

AEHE BB EE S8 B RntE K& EE BOL

He Ningning QT Investment Beneficial owner 1 100%
fEE ERRE ERERA

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of R EXFIEBEEIIN R_TE—N\F+ =

the Directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares, and underlying shares (in respect
of positions pursuant to equity derivatives) or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange or as recorded in the register
referred to in the SFO or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, no contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Shareholder
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2018, so far as the Directors were aware
of, the following persons (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares (in respect of positions pursuant to
equity derivatives) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO as follows:

R-E—N\F+_A=+—H8H ®AR
BEEMA THAL (BRARAESER
FETHRABNN) RIRMDSEERG (82
BERATETEMBENIFESMEE)
REE RN EFH R E P 3365
TRARN BTN ERMAZ SR
BT

Approximate
percentage of

total issued

Shares in

Capacity/Nature Number of the Company

Name of Shareholder Long/short position of interest Shares held (Note 1)

HEEAT

ERITRHA

BRRAE BE/ KR 517/ EmER R G & B BYFEI

2y

QT Investment Long position Beneficial owner 752,191,000 66.46%

FEIRE e ExEAA (Note 2)

(Brzt2)

Note: Wit -

1. The percentage represents the number of underlying Shares 1., ZEHEDLLIEHEAEDZNABIRMHEE

divided by 1,131,722,200 issued Shares of the Company in total as
at 31 December 2018.

2. Mr. He Ningning is directly interested in the entire interest of
Q Technology Investment, which owned approximately 66.46%
of the issued Shares of the Company in total as at 31 December
2018.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company has not been notified of
any other person (other than a Director or a chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or a short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares (in respect of positions pursuant to equity
derivatives) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December
2018.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the schemes disclosed in the section headed “Share
Option Schemes” below, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provide that each Director, secretary
or other officer of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which any of them may incur or sustain in or about the execution
of the duties in their respective offices. The Company has taken
out and maintained appropriate insurance to cover potential legal
actions against its Directors.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company has not come into
any permitted indemnity provision with the Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group or
existed during the Year.
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DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group had donated RMBZ20,000 to the
Chamber of Commerce of Kunshan High-tech Zone. Save as
disclosed above, the Group had not made other charitable or other
donations of HK$10,000 and/or above during the Year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING YEAR

Saved as disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 22 to 34, there were no other important events affecting
the Group that had occurred after 31 December 2018 and up to
the date of this report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five individuals
with the highest emoluments for the Year are set out in notes 6
and 7 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Mr. Ko Ping Keung, an INED of the Company, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of VTech Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 00303) since 30 January 2018, which is a Hong
Kong listed company.

Saved as disclosed above, there were no other important changes

in the information of Directors required to be disclosed in this
report pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 13 November 2014, the Company adopted the pre-IPO
share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and
Share Option Scheme and granted a total of 59,935,000 share
options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to the eligible
participants with an aim to reward their contribution to the Group
made or possibly made. On 26 October 2016, the Company
granted an aggregate of 39,425,000 share options under the
Share Option Scheme to the eligible participants, on 9 June 2017,
the Company granted a total of 8,083,000 share options under
the Share Option Scheme to the eligible participants, and on 7
December 2018, the Company granted a total of 12,720,000
share options under the Share Option Scheme to the eligible
participants. Details of the schemes are set out below:

A. Share Option Scheme
1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme:

The Share Option Scheme is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions that the Eligible
Participants (as defined in paragraph 2 below) had or
may have made to the Group. The Share Option Scheme
will provide the Eligible Participants with an opportunity
to have a personal stake in the Company with a view to
achieving the following objectives:

()  motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going
business relationship with the Eligible Participants
whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long-term growth of the Group.
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Participants of the Share Option Scheme:

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an
option to the following persons (collectively the “Eligible
Participants”) to subscribe for such number of new
Shares as the Board may determine:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
and

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers,
distributors and such other persons who in
the sole opinion of the Board will contribute or
have contributed to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

Total number of Shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme and percentage of the total
number of issued Shares as at the date of this report:

At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 19 May 2017, an ordinary resolution was passed
by the Shareholders to approve the refreshment of the
maximum number of Shares that may be issued upon
the exercise of all options which may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company to not exceeding 10% of the
total number of Shares in issue of the Company as at
the date of approval by the Shareholders of the refreshed
limit. On the date of approving such ordinary resolution
(i.,e. on 19 May 2017), the total number of Shares in
issue of the Company was 1,095,597,000 shares,
therefore, the maximum number of Shares relating
to the options that may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company were refreshed to 109,559,700 Shares,
representing approximately 9.68% of total number of
1,181,722,200 Shares in issue on the date of this report
(i.e. on 25 March 2019).
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Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Share Option Scheme:

The maximum number of Shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company (including exercised
and outstanding options) to each Eligible Participant in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue of the Company as at
the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess
of this 1% limit shall be subject to:

(i)  the issue of a circular containing the identity of the
Eligible Participant, the numbers of and terms of
the options to be granted (and options previously
granted to such Eligible Participant), the information
as required under Rules 17.02(2)(d) of and the
disclaimer required under 17.02(4) of, the Listing
Rules; and

(i) the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting
and/or other requirements prescribed under the
Listing Rules from time to time with such Eligible
Participant and his/her close associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) (or his/her associates if the
Eligible Participant is a connected person (as
defined in the Listing Rules)) abstaining from voting.
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The period within which the options must be exercised
under Share Option Scheme to subscribe for Shares:

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time in the
period after the date upon which the option is deemed
to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10
years from that date subject to the provisions for early
termination set out in the Share Option Scheme.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised:

There is no minimum period for which an option granted
must be held before it can be exercised unless otherwise
imposed by the Directors.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls
must or may be made, or loans for such purposes must
be repaid:

Options granted must be taken up by eligible
participants within 21 days of the date of grant, upon
payment of HK$1.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Board but shall
not be less than the highest of: (i) the official closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must
be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities; (i) the average of the
official closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.
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10.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme:

The Share Option Scheme remains in force for a period
of 10 years commenced from 13 November 2014.

The total number of share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme on 26 October 2016:

On 26 October 2016, the Company granted a total of
39,425,000 share options (representing approximately
3.78% of the 1,041,771,000 shares of the total
number of issued Shares on the date of grant of the
relevant share options (i.e. on 26 October 2016) and
approximately 3.48% of 1,131,722,200 shares of the
total number of issued Shares as at the date of this
report (i.e. on 25 March 2019)) under the Share Option
Scheme to 165 Eligible Participants. During the Year, the
Company accepted the applications from 151 grantees
(including two Executive Directors, Mr. Wang Jiangiang
and Mr. Hu Sanmu) to issue a total of 14,706,000
ordinary shares to such grantees. A total of 1,567,800
share options were waived as a result of the resignations
of 15 grantees during the Year.

10.
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11. The period within which the options granted under the
Share Option Scheme on 26 October 2016 must be
exercised to subscribe for Shares:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as
notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance
with the following manner:

(i)  upon, among others, the revenue (“revenue”) of
the Company for the year ending 31 December
2017 increases by not less than 25% as compared
with the revenue for the year ended 31 December
2016, up to 40% of the share options granted
(rounded down to the nearest whole number) shall
be exercisable during the period from 1 April 2018
to 31 December 2018 (both days inclusive);

(i) upon, among others, the revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2018 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 25% from the
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016, up
to 30% of the share options granted (rounded down
to the nearest whole number) shall be exercisable
during the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December
2019 (both days inclusive); and
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(i) upon, among others, the revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2019 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 25% from the
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016, up
to 30% of the share options granted (rounded down
to the nearest whole number) shall be exercisable
during the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December
2020 (both days inclusive).

12. The basis of determining the exercise price of share

options granted on 26 October 2016:

The exercise price per Share in respect of the share
options granted on 26 October 2016 under the Share
Option Scheme is HK$4.13 per Share.

13. The total number of share options granted under the

Share Option Scheme on 9 June 2017:

On 9 June 2017, the Company granted a total of
8,083,000 share options (representing approximately
0.74% of the 1,095,597,000 shares of the total number
of issued Shares on the date of grant of the relevant
share options (i.e. on 9 June 2017) and approximately
0.71% of the total number of 1,131,722,200 issued
Shares as at the date of this report (i.e. on 25 March
2019)) under the Share Option Scheme to 48 Eligible
Participants. During the Year, the Company accepted
the applications from 25 grantees to issue a total of
1,419,200 ordinary shares to these grantees. A total of
1,197,600 options and 1,645,000 options were waived
as a result of the resignations of 10 staff and personal
reasons of 9 staff respectively during the Year.

12.

13.
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14. The period within which the options granted under
the Share Option Scheme on 9 June 2017 must be
exercised to subscribe for Shares:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as
notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance
with the following manners:

(1) Share Options One:

() upon, among others, the revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2017 increases by not
less than 25% as compared with the revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2016, up to
40% of the share options granted (rounded
down to the nearest whole number) shall be
exercisable during the period from 1 April 2018
to 31 December 2018 (both days inclusive);

(i) upon, among others, the revenue for the
year ending 31 December 2018 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less
than 25% from the revenue for the year ended
31 December 2016, up to 30% of the share
options granted (rounded down to the nearest
whole number) shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019
(both days inclusive); and
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(i)

upon, among others, the revenue for the
year ending 31 December 2019 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less
than 25% from the revenue for the year ended
31 December 2016, up to 30% of the share
options granted (rounded down to the nearest
whole number) shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020
(both days inclusive).

(2) Share Options Two:

)

upon, among others, the revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2018 increases by not
less than 20% as compared with the revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2017, up to
40% of the share options granted (rounded
down to the nearest whole number) shall be
exercisable during the period from 1 April 2019
to 31 December 2019 (both days inclusive);
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(i) upon, among others, the revenue for the
year ending 31 December 2019 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less
than 20% from the revenue for the year ended
31 December 2017, up to 30% of the share
options granted (rounded down to the nearest
whole number) shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020
(both days inclusive); and

(i) upon, among others, the revenue for the
year ending 31 December 2020 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less
than 20% from the revenue for the year ended
31 December 2017, up to 30% of the share
options granted (rounded down to the nearest
whole number) shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2021 to 31 December 2021
(both days inclusive).

15. The basis of determining the exercise price of share
options granted on 9 June 2017:

The exercise price per Share in respect of the share

options granted on 9 June 2017 under the Share Option
Scheme is HK$6.22 per Share.
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16.

17.

The total number of share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme on 7 December 2018:

On 7 December 2018 the Company granted a total of
12,720,000 share options (representing approximately
1.12% of the 1,131,722,200 shares of the total
number of issued Shares on the date of grant of the
relevant share options (i.e. on 7 December 2018) and
approximately1.12% of the 1,131,722,200 shares of
the total number of issued Shares as at the date of this
report (i.e. on 25 March 2019)) under the Share Option
Scheme to 83 Eligible Participants. Such share options
were not exercisable during the Year.

The period within which the options granted under the
Share Option Scheme on 7 December 2018 must be
exercised to subscribe for Shares:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as
notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance
with the following manner:

()  upon, among others, the audited revenue
(“revenue”) of the Company for the year ending 31
December 2019 increases by not less than 20% as
compared with the revenue for the year ended 31
December 2018, up to 40% of the share options
granted shall be exercisable during the period from
1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020 (both days
inclusive);

16.

17.
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(i) upon, among others, the revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2020 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 20% from the
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018,
up to 30% of the share options granted shall be
exercisable during the period from 1 April 2021 to
31 December 2021 (both days inclusive); and

(i) upon, among others, the revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2021 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 20% from the
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018,
up to 30% of the share options granted shall be
exercisable during the period from 1 April 2022 to
31 December 2022 (both days inclusive).

18. The basis of determining the exercise price of share
options granted on 7 December 2018:

The exercise price per Share in respect of the share

options granted on 7 December 2018 under the Share
Option Scheme is HK$4.65 per Share.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018

iy F(EFEFH)BEE=_Z=
ZF+-_A=+—HLEFE
ZEEWARBEE_ZT—N
F+-_A=+—HIEFE=
EWAZFELAEREBE
MER20% I H 2 &%
0%/ EHE =T = —
FNMA—HE-_ZT-—%F
+=—A=+—HBHMH (8E
BEMA)ATIIE: &

iy F(HPBRE)HEF
——¥+-A=+—H8ItF
EZEERAREBEE-Z
—N\F+ZA=+—HILF
EEERAZFEREGER
8 fE NMER20%  FriR it~
REZ0%EREHBE =T
T HFNA—HEZE—-—
F+-_A=+—HBHBE(®
FEEMAB)A T116-

18. R=Z—N\E+= A+ BEH
HERRHE 2 1T A B e R

RZZE—NEFE+ZAEARE
BREERE O BRER S
M ERBROBITEERETR
4,658 T °



B. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

1.

Purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was a share incentive
scheme established to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that the Pre-IPO Eligible Participants (as
defined in paragraph 2 below) had made to the Group.
The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme provided the Pre-
IPO Eligible Participants with an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company with a view to achieving
the following purposes:

()  motivate the Pre-IPO Eligible Participants to
optimise their performance efficiency for the benefit
of the Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain relationships
with the Pre-IPO Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the
longterm growth of the Group.

Participants of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

The Board might, at its discretion, offer to grant an
option to subscribe for such number of new Shares
as the Board might determine to the full-time, key
employees of the Group who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, had contributed to the Company and/or any of
the subsidiaries (the “Pre-IPO Eligible Participants”).
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Total number of Shares available for issue under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme:

The number of Shares in respect of which options were
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
59,935,000 Shares (representing approximately 5.99%
of the total number of issued Shares immediately
following completion of the Global Offering (as defined
in the Prospectus) and approximately 5.30% of the
total number of issued Shares of 1,131,722,200 Shares
as at the date of this report (i.e. on 25 March 2019)).
These options were granted on 13 November 2014 to
subscribe for 59,935,000 Shares. No further options will
be offered or granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, as the rights to do so have been terminated.

The period within which the options must be exercised
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe for
Shares:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as
notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance
with the following manners:

()  up to 50% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the year
commencing on 1 January 2015 and ending on 31
December 2017;

(i)  up to 75% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her less the number
of Shares in respect of which the option has
been exercised or lapsed (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the year
commencing on 1 January 2016 and ending on 31
December 2017; and
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(i) up to 100% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her less the number
of Shares in respect of which the option has
been exercised or lapsed (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the year
commencing on 1 January 2017 and ending on 31
December 2017.

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is exercisable during the years when such
option becomes vested.

As at the date of this report, none of share options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
remained outstanding, and the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme had lapsed accordingly.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is RMBO0.4 per Share.

Except for the above, the principal terms of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, which were confirmed
and approved by resolutions in writing of all of the
Shareholders passed on 13 November 2014, were
substantially the same as the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

During the Year, none of share options granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme had been exercised
or remained outstanding, and the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme had lapsed accordingly.
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Details of changes during the Year in share options granted

under the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Ny
EE

Number of underlying Shares comprising share options

REBEBEES S MR LBRERSF
ERCNNE

BREVRZEBROEE
Options Options
Outstanding Lapsed/ Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Forfeited asat
1 January during during during during 31 December
Category Date of grant Exercise period 2018 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2018
RZB-N% RZB-NE
-f-8 tZA=t-8
HATEN AER HATER
B RIHEH s ERE RERRHE RERTE RERTEH &M/ RK BRE
Directors
iz
Wang Jiangiang 26 October 2016 please refer to the paragraph under 1,612,000 - 644,800y - - 967,200
“The period within which the
options granted under the Share
Option Scheme on 26 October
2016 must be exercised to
subscribe for shares” on pages 62
t0 63
TH% ZE-RETACTRE ELME0R6E [N -F—~ETA 1612000 - (644,800)7" - - 967,200
ZTRRRERRET HRLNER
BHABRNTRERI A3
Hu Sanmu 26 October 2016 please refer to the paragraph under 1,200,000 - (480,000 - - 720,000
“The period within which the
options granted under the Share
Option Scheme on 26 October
2016 must be exercised to
subscribe for shares” on pages 62
t0 63
#=K ZE-RETRZTRA F2H%E62563E [ NMETAE 1,200,000 - (480,000)77 - - 720,000
ZTREREERETERLHBR
BOABROTRER HE
Directors (in total) 2,812,000 - (1,124,800) - - 1,687,200
E%(aif) 2,812,000 - (1,124,800) - - 1,687,200
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Number of underlying Shares comprising share options

BREVRZEBROEE
Options Options
Outstanding Lapsed/ Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Forfeited asat
1 January during during during during 31 December
Category Date of grant Exercise period 2018 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2018
RZZ-NE RZB-NF
-B-B tZR=1-H
HATEN ER HATEN
LY RERH Lt EhRE REREH EERfE AERTEH *%/8% BRE
Employees 26 October 2016 please refer to the paragraph under 33,953,000 - (13,581,200) - (1,567,800) 18,804,000
“The period within which the Note 1)
options granted under the Share
Option Scheme on 26 October
2016 must be exercised to
subscribe for Shares” on pages 62
t063
k& ZE-R"ETAZTRA ERME0R608 (M5 —7FTA 33953000 - (13,581,200) - (1,567,800) 18,804,000
TR RREERET HRLOER (Hi1)
BHABROTRERI &%
Employees 9 June 2017 please refer to the paragraph under 3,548,000 - (1,419,200) - (237,600) 1,891,200
Share Options One “The period within which the Note 2)
options granted under the Share
Option Scheme on 9 June 2017
must be exercised to subscribe for
Shares: (1) Share Options One” on
pages 64 to 65
EE(BhE-) ZE-tERANR F2NEMEE RZF—CFAR 3548000 - (1,419,200) - (237,600) 1,891,200
NEREBRETER N NERE (Hi2)
HRERGTRER: (1) BiE-]
3%
Employees 9 June 2017 please refer to the paragraph under 3,005,000 - - - 2,605,000) 400,000
Share Options Two “The period within which the
options granted under the Share
Option Scheme on 9 June 2017
must be exercised to subscribe for
Shares: (2) Share Options Two” on
pages 65 to 66
[EE (Bl ZE-tERANA #5ME65%608 [N_F—+ERA 3005000 - - - (2,605,000) 400,000
NEREBRETER N NERE
HRBRG RN (2) BiE]
§%
Employees 7 December 2018 please refer to the paragraph under - 12,720,000 - - - 12,720,000
“The period within which the options
granted under the Share Option
Scheme on 7 December 2018
must be exercised to subscribe for
Shares” on pages 67 to 68
&2 “E-N\ETZAtA FRME6TZ60E (=5 -\F+Z - 12,720,000 - - - 12,720,000
A REEBRE R NNERE
TRBRGTESR] &%
Employees (in total) 40,506,000 12,720,000 (15,000,400) - (4,410,400) 33,815,200
EE(43) 40,506,000 12,720,000 (15,000,400) - 4,410,400) 33,815,200
Total 43,318,000 12,720,000 (16,125,200) - (4,410,400) 35,502,400
a3 43,318,000 12,720,000 (16,125,200) - (4,410,400) 35,502,400
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Notes:

1. On 2 April 2019, Mr. Wang Jiangiang exercised 483,600 share
options, Mr. Hu Sanmu exercised 360,000 share options, and a total
of 8,964,600 share options were exercised by the employees on
the same date. The exercisable price per share was HK$4.13. The
weighted average closing price immediately before the date on which
the share options were exercised was HK$7.19 per Share.

2. On 2 April 2019, a total of 90,000 share options were exercised by
the employees. The exercisable price per share was HK$6.22. The
weighted average closing price immediately before the date on which
the share options were exercised was HK$7.19 per Share.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in accordance
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The annual results of the
Group for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
which comprises all the three INEDs, namely Mr. Ng Sui Yin, being
the chairman, Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, certain related party transactions as set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements also constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company under the
Listing Rules, and are required to be disclosed in this report
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as
disclosed in this report, none of the related party transactions
constitutes a continuing connected transaction or connected
transaction as defined under the Listing Rules.
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During the Year, the Group has certain continuing connected
transactions which were exempted from the notice and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements, but subject
to the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details of those
transactions are set out below:

Purchase Agreement in respect of the purchase of
precise connectors from Van Telecom Limited (“Van
Telecom PRC”)

On 13 November 2014, the Company entered into a purchase
agreement (the “Van Telecom PRC Purchase Agreement”) with
Van Telecom PRC, pursuant to which Van Telecom PRC agreed
to supply the precise connectors to the Group for a term from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. On 16 December 2016,
the Company and Van Telecom PRC renewed the Purchase
Agreement (the “Renewed Van Telecom PRC Purchase
Agreement”), pursuant to which, Van Telecom PRC agreed to
continue to supply to the Group precise connectors for a term
commencing from 1 January 2017 and expiring on 31 December
2019. On 13 July 2018, the Company and Van Telecom PRC
entered into a supplemental purchase agreement (the “Van
Telecom PRC Supplemental Purchase Agreement”) to revise the
annual caps of transactions under the Renewed Van Telecom
PRC Purchase Agreement for the three years ended 31 December
2020. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 13 July 2018.
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The price for the precise connectors supplied by Van Telecom PRC
under the Van Telecom PRC Supplemental Purchase Agreement
was determined by reference to the price at which comparable
types of precise connectors that are sold by independent suppliers
to the Group under normal commercial terms in the ordinary
course of its business and such price shall be no less favourable
to the Group than was available from independent suppliers. In
considering whether to purchase from Van Telecom PRC, the
Group sought quotations from at least two independent third
parties offering the same or comparable products. The Group
purchased the precise connectors from Van Telecom PRC if the
price and quality of the products offered were comparable to or
more favourable to the Group than those offered by independent
third parties for the same or comparable products.

Van Telecom PRC is wholly owned by CK Telecom Inc. (‘CK
Telecom”), which is in turn wholly owned by Mr. He Ningning,
an executive Director, the Chairman and controlling shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. As such, Van
Telecom PRC is a connected person of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total transaction
amount under the Renewed Van Telecom PRC Purchase
Agreement and the Van Telecom PRC Supplemental Purchase
Agreement was approximately RMB85,000 and the annual cap
amount for the Year was RMB100,000.
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Supply Agreement and Supplemental Supply Agreement
in respect of the supply of camera modules and
fingerprint recognition modules to CK Telecom Limited
(“Heyuan CK”)

On 13 November 2014, the Company entered into a supply
agreement (the “Heyuan CK Master Supply Agreement”) with
Heyuan CK, pursuant to which the Group agreed to supply
the camera modules to Heyuan CK for the production of its
products for a term from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.
On 29 December 2014, the Company and Heyuan CK entered
into a supplemental supply agreement (the “Heyuan CK Master
Supplemental Supply Agreement”) to revise the annual caps of
transactions agreed by Heyuan CK Master Supply Agreement. On
16 December 2016, the Company and Heyuan CK renewed the
Heyuan CK Master Supply Agreement (the “Renewed Heyuan CK
Supply Agreement”), pursuant to which, Heyuan CK agreed to
continue to purchase camera modules and fingerprint recognition
modules from the Group, for a further term commencing from 1
January 2017 and expiring on 31 December 2019. On 2 June
2017, the Company and Heyuan CK entered into a supplemental
supply agreement (the “Heyuan CK Supplemental Supply
Agreement 1”) to revise the annual caps of transactions under
the Renewed Heyuan CK Supply Agreement for the three years
ended 31 December 2019 under the Renewed Heyuan CK Supply
Agreement. On 13 July 2018, the Company and Heyuan CK
entered into a supplemental supply agreement (the “Supplemental
Heyuan CK Supply Agreement II”) to revise the annual caps for
the transactions under the Supplemental Heyuan CK Supply
Agreement | for the three years ending 31 December 2020. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
13 July 2018.
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The price for the camera modules and fingerprint recognition
modules supplied by the Group under the Heyuan CK
Supplemental Supply Agreement | and Heyuan CK Supplemental
Supply Agreement |l was determined by reference to the raw
material costs and production costs to be incurred by the Group
and the profit margin, which is expected to be comparable with
the level of profits derived from the Group’s sales to independent
customers, subject to adjustments arising from the expected
quantity, quality, delivery schedule, specifications and market
competition.

Heyuan CK is wholly owned by CK Telecom which is in turn wholly
owned by Mr. He Ningning, an executive Director, the Chairman
and controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company. As such, Heyuan CK is a connected person of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total transaction
amount under the Heyuan CK Supplemental Supply Agreement
| and Heyuan CK Supplemental Supply Agreement Il was
approximately RMB25,939,000 and the revised annual cap
amount for the Year was RMB60,000,000.
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Property Sub-Lease Agreement entered into by
Chengdu QT, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and Chengdu CK Technology Limited
(“Chengdu CK”) (“Chengdu CK Sub-Lease Agreement”)

On 6 June 2014, Chengdu QT, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a lease agreement with
Chengdu CK (the “Chengdu CK Sub-Lease Agreement”), pursuant
to which, Chengdu CK agreed to sub-lease certain portion of
the premises situated on the 6th floor, Block 12, Zone C, Tianfu
Software Park, No. 219 Tianhua Er Road, Gaoxin District,
Chengdu, the PRC (# BIRK &R T = ¥ [@ K2 — 321958 R T 8L (4 &
CIEE121R6/E ) , with total gross area of approximately 242 sg.m. to
Chengdu QT for a term from 6 June 2014 to 31 December 2016.
On 16 December 2016, Chengdu QT and Chengdu CK renewed
the Chengdu CK Sub-Lease Agreement (“the Renewed Chengdu
CK Sub-Lease Agreement”), pursuant to which, Chengdu CK
agreed to continue to sub-lease certain portion of the premises
situated on the 6th floor, Block 12, Zone C, Tianfu Software Park,
No. 219 Tianhua Er Road, Gaoxin District, Chengdu, the PRC
(FEKETSFERE K219 RNTEHHRERCEI2IR6E) ,
with total gross area of approximately 242 sqg.m. to Chengdu
QT, for a term commencing from 1 January 2017 and expiring
on 31 December 2019. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 16 December 2016 for details.

The landlord of the premises sub-leased by Chengdu CK to
Chengdu QT is an independent third party, the rent under the
Chengdu CK Sub-Lease Agreement and Renewed Chengdu CK
Sub-Lease Agreement to be paid by Chengdu QT to Chengdu CK
is determined with reference to the market rent for similar premises
in the vicinity and the rent, utilities and management fees payable
by Chengdu CK under the tenancy agreement entered into with
the Landlord and on normal commercial terms, and such prices
shall be no less favourable to Chengdu QT than is available from
independent third parties.

Chengdu CK is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenzhen CK, which
is in turn owned as to 90.0% by Mr. He Ningning, an executive
Director, the Chairman and controlling shareholder (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company and as to 10.0% by Mr. Wang
Jiangiang, an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer,
respectively. As such, Chengdu CK is a connected person of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total transaction
amount under the Chengdu CK Sub-Lease Agreement and
Renewed Chengdu CK Sub-Lease Agreement was approximately
RMB90,000 and the annual cap amount for the Year was
RMB130,680.

Property Lease Agreements entered into by Kunshan
QT China, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Van Telecom PRC (the “Van Telecom PRC
Property Lease Agreements”)

Kunshan QT China, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into two factory building and dormitories lease
agreements (collectively the “Van Telecom PRC Property Lease
Agreements”) with Van Telecom PRC on 23 June 2016 and 16
September 2016 respectively, pursuant to which, Van Telecom
PRC agreed to lease certain factory buildings and worker’s
dormitories situated on No. 1999 Hanpu Road, Kunshan, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC ( 1 BIJT & & & 1L 2 5 19995% ) to Kunshan
QT China for a term up to 31 December 2018. On 16 December
2016, Kunshan QT China renewed the lease agreements with Van
Telecom PRC (the “Renewed Van Telecom PRC Property Lease
Agreement”), pursuant to which, Van Telecom PRC agreed to
continue to lease certain factory buildings and worker’s dormitories
situated on No. 1999 Hanpu Road, Kunshan, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC (HF BT & & & 1L T2 # #81999%% ) to Kunshan QT
China for a term commencing from 1 January 2017 and expiring
on 31 December 2019. On 13 July 2018, Kunshan QT China and
Van Telecom PRC entered into a supplemental property lease
agreement (“the Supplemental Van Telecom PRC Property Lease
Agreement”), pursuant to which, Van Telecom PRC agreed to lease
certain factory buildings and worker’s dormitories situated on No.
1999 Hanpu Road, Kunshan, Jiangsu Province, the PRC (# &
TTE A B ILTE#EEE19995% ) and part of the additional factories
situated on Building No. 3, 1999 Hanpu Road, Kunshan, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC (BT & & B ILTEBIK19995735% /5 ) to
Kunshan QT China, for a term commencing from 1 January 2018
and expiring on 31 December 2020, to revise and supersede
the Renewed Van Telecom PRC Property Lease Agreement. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
13 July 2018.
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The property leased by Van Telecom PRC to Kunshan QT China
is its own property, the rent under the Supplemental Van Telecom
PRC Property Lease Agreements paid by Kunshan QT China to
Van Telecom PRC was determined with reference to the market
rent for similar premises in the vicinity and on normal commercial
terms, and such prices offered by Van Telecom PRC shall be
no less favourable to Kunshan QT China than is available from
independent third parties.

Van Telecom PRC is wholly-owned by CK Telecom, which is in
turn wholly-owned by Mr. He Ningning, an executive Director, the
Chairman and controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company. As such, Van Telecom PRC is a connected
person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total transaction
amount under the Renewed Van Telecom PRC Property Lease
Agreements and Supplemental Van Telecom PRC Property Lease
Agreement was approximately RMB2,847,000 and the annual cap
amount for the Year was RMB3,549,600.

The Heyuan Youhua Purchase Agreement in respect

of the purchase of voice coil motors, linear motors

and bi-directional VCM (“VCM, LM and bi-directional
VCM?”) from Heyuan Youha Micro Electronic Technology
Company Limited (“Heyuan Youhua”, formerly known as
Huizhou Youhua Micro Electronic Technology Company
Limited)

On 6 December 2016, the Company entered into a purchase
agreement (the “Heyuan Youhua Purchase Agreement”) with
Heyuan Youhua, pursuant to which Heyuan Youhua agreed to
supply the VCM and LM to the Group for a term from 1 July
2017 to 31 December 2019. On 13 July 2018, the Company and
Heyuan Youhua entered into a supplemental purchase agreement
(“Supplemental Heyuan Youhua Purchase Agreement”) to revise
the annual caps for the transactions under the Heyuan Youhua
Purchase Agreement for the three years ending 31 December
2020, pursuant to which, Heyuan Youhua agreed to supply VCM,
LM and bi-directional VCM to the Group. For details, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 13 July 2018.
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The price for the VCM, LM and bi-directional VCM supplied by
Heyuan Youhua under the Supplemental Heyuan Youhua Purchase
Agreement was determined with reference to the price at which
comparable types of VCM, LM and bi-directional VCM are sold
to the Group by independent suppliers under normal commercial
terms in the ordinary course of business, and such price shall
be no less favourable to the Group than that were available
from independent suppliers. In considering whether to purchase
from Heyuan Youhua, the Group sought quotations from at least
two independent third parties offering the same or comparable
products. The Group purchased the VCM, LM and bi-directional
VCM from Heyuan Youhua if the price and quality of the products
offered was comparable to or more favourable to the Group than
those offered by such independent third parties for the same or
comparable products.

Heyuan Youhua is owned as to 0.39% by Mr. Hu Sanmu,
an executive Director of the Company, and as to 54.10% by
Shenzhen Handi Venture Capital Investment Co., Ltd., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Shenzhen CK which is in turn owned as to
90.0% by Mr. He Ningning, an executive Director, the Chairman
and controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company, and as to 10.0% by Mr. Wang Jiangiang, an executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer. As such, Heyuan Youhua
is a connected person of the Company for the purpose of the
Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total transaction
amount under the Heyuan Youhua Purchase Agreement and
Heyuan Youhua Supplemental Purchase Agreement was
approximately RMB76,126,000 and the annual cap amount for the
Year was RMB90,000,000.
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Huangshi C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement in
respect of the purchase of flexible printed circuit board
and rigid-flex printed circuit boards (“FPCs and Rigid-
Flex PCBs”) from C-Flex Electronic (Huangshi) Ltd.
(“Huangshi C-Flex Electronic”)

On 2 June 2017, the Company entered into a purchase agreement
(the “Huangshi C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement”) with
Huangshi C-Flex Electronic, pursuant to which Huangshi C-Flex
Electronic agreed to supply the FPCs and Rigid-Flex PCBs to the
Group for a term from 1 July 2017 to 31 December 2019. On 13
July 2018, the Company and Huangshi C-Flex Electronic entered
into a supplemental purchase Agreement (the “Supplemental
Huangshi C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement”) to revise the
annual caps for the transactions under the Huangshi C-Flex
Electronic Purchase Agreement for the three years ending 31
December 2020. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 13 July 2018.

The price for the FPCs and Rigid-Flex PCBs supplied by Huangshi
C-Flex Electronic under the Supplemental Huangshi C-Flex
Electronic Purchase Agreement was determined with reference to
the price at which comparable types of FPCs and Rigid-Flex PCBs
are sold to the Group by independent suppliers under normal
commercial terms in the ordinary course of business, and such
price shall be no less favourable to the Group than was available
from independent suppliers. In considering whether to purchase
from Huangshi C-Flex Electronic, the Group sought quotations
from at least two independent third parties offering the same or
comparable products. The Group purchased the FPCs and Rigid-
Flex PCBs from Huangshi C-Flex Electronic if the price and quality
of the products offered was comparable to or more favourable to
the Group than those offered by such independent third parties for
the same or comparable products.
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Huangshi C-Flex Electronic is wholly owned by Shenzhen Handi
Venture Capital Investment Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Shenzhen CK which is in turn owned as to 90.0% by Mr. He
Ningning, an executive Director, the Chairman and controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, and
as to 10.0% by Mr. Wang Jiangiang, an executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer. As such, Huangshi C-Flex Electronic is a
connected person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total transaction
amount under the Huangshi C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement
and the Supplemental Huangshi C-Flex Electronic Purchase
Agreement was approximately RMB24,749,000 and the annual
cap amount for the Year was RMB90,000,000.

Kunshan KEIRAKU Purchase Agreement in respect of
the purchase of connectors and holders (“connectors
and holders” from Kunshan KEIRAKU Precision
Co.,Ltd(“Kunshan KEIRAKU”)

On 13 July 2018, the Company and Kunshan KEIRAKU entered
into a purchase agreement (‘the Kunshan KEIRAKU Purchase
Agreement”), pursuant to which, Kunshan KEIRAKU agreed
to supply to the Group connectors and holders, for a term
commencing from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated

13 July 2018.

The price for the connectors and holders supplied by Kunshan
KEIRAKU under the Kunshan KEIRAKU Purchase Agreement was
determined with reference to the price at which comparable types
of connectors and holders are sold to the Group by independent
suppliers under normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of
business, and such price shall be no less favourable to the Group
than was available from independent suppliers. In considering
whether to purchase from Kunshan KEIRAKU, the Group sought
quotations from at least two independent third parties offering
the same or comparable products. The Group purchased the
connectors and holders from Kunshan KEIRAKU if the price
and quality of the products offered was comparable to or more
favourable to the Group than those offered by such independent
third parties for the same or comparable products

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018

BEOREEFRRYITEBAIERER
RARI(EARIANz2E2ETFRE)E
EHA mMAIET DR BERNTEEFE
FRERAQEERABRE (0 R B AT
&) MEELEERNITESRITHER
TR EHEA0.0% % 10.0%HE2 - E
I EAALEEFRELTRUBAR
RIFAEAT o

2T - NF+_A=+—HLF
B RBEEMALEEFRERELEA
TETFHREFAHZETORSBE
4B AN R #24,749,0007T NEE 7 F
EXR5R%E A AKRE0,000,0007T e

FROBLELREIXRARLAFA (R
WEEBEEES XBRFRE([E
B XERFEDIINELELRE
i =&

RZE—N\FE+LA+=B ARFHEE
BT U B ([EILEERE
ezl Bt BELUBZERAERAEER
RHEEZS TELFRE - HEH_ZT
—\F—HA—BRBE_FT_FTF+_A4
=t+t—Hl #FEARIARZZE—NF
+tA+t=B22%-

BIIBERERUBLERBHEHED
RS XRLTRERD2EFH LM
BN B EXBBREPIRIEEREEGK
MAREHEENRBAERZS XREFR
EMERET ARASBEREENEH
BERASERNBLHERMERSE &
ZREEMELUBEBEER A5ES
KELMFEREHRMBRXFABERNE L
OB RE - MRE I ELEMEH
EmmEELEEREHMERKFEE
mEV BB N BEMREEERERE R
SEEMES AAEERAEBEER
B XM RFE



Kunshan KEIRAKU is owned as to 97% by CK Telecom
(Hangzhou) Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by CK Telecom
Asia Pacific Limited. CK Telecom Asia Pacific Limited is wholly
owned by Mr. He Ningning, an executive Director, the chairman
and the Controlling Shareholder of the Company (as defined in
the Listing rules). Accordingly, Kunshan KEIRAKU is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total transaction
amount under the Kunshan KEIRAKU Purchase Agreement was
approximately RMB Nil and the annual cap amount for the Year
was RMB9,000,000.

The INEDs have reviewed the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions of the Company and confirmed that such transactions
have been:

()  entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(i) entered into on normal and fair commercial or better terms;
and

(i) entered into in accordance with the agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable for the interests of
Shareholders as a whole.

The independent auditor of the Company was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and by reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The independent auditor
of the Company has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in this section in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the relevant
independent auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company, and so far as the Directors are aware of, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float as required by the Listing
Rules during the Year and up to the latest practicable date prior to
the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ COMPETING BUSINESS

A deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) was
entered into by Mr. He Ningning, the Chairman and an executive
Director and QT Investment (a company wholly-owned by Mr. He
Ningning) (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) in favour of
the Company on 13 November 2014, pursuant to which each of
the Controlling Shareholders will not, and will procure its/his close
associates (other than members of the Group) not to directly or
indirectly be involved in or undertake any business (other than
the Group’s business) that directly or indirectly competes, or may
compete, with the Group’s business or undertaking, or hold shares
or interest in any companies or business that compete directly or
indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from time to
time except where the Controlling Shareholders hold less than 5%
of the total issued share capital of any company (whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange or any other stock exchange) which
is engaged in any business that is or may be in competition with
any business engaged by any member of the Group and they do
not control 10% or more of the composition of the Board.

The Company has received the annual written confirmation from
the Controlling Shareholders in respect of the compliance and
enforcement of the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition by the
Controlling Shareholders during the Year.
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The INEDs have reviewed the Deed of Non-Competition entered
into by the Controlling Shareholders as to whether the Controlling
Shareholders had abided by the Deed of Non-Competition. The
INEDs confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders had not been in
breach of the Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.

Apart from the business of the Group, none of the Directors or
their respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in
any business which competed or might compete with the business
of the Group during the Year.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE
RECOMMENDED

If the Shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the Shares of the Company,
they are advised to consult a professional adviser.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board
has resolved that a resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM to re-appoint KPMG, Certified Public Accountants as the
independent auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
He Ningning

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2019
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to
the Company’s Shareholders and protecting and enhancing
Shareholders’ value through good corporate governance.

The Directors of the Company recognise the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the
management structures and internal control procedures of the
Group so as to achieve effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Year.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct governing the securities transactions by the Directors.
Following a specific enquiry made by the Company on the
Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising
the management of the business affairs and the overall
performance of the Group. The Board sets the Group’s values
and standards and ensures that the requisite financial and
human resources support are in place for the Group to achieve
its objectives. The functions performed by the Board include but
are not limited to formulating the Group’s business plans and
strategies, deciding all significant financial (including major capital
expenditure) and operational issues, developing, monitoring
and reviewing the Group’s corporate governance and all other
functions reserved to the Board under the Company’s articles
of association (the “Articles of Association”). The Board has
established Board committees and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference which are published on the respective websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board may from
time to time delegate certain functions to management of the
Group if and when considered appropriate. The management
is mainly responsible for the execution of the business plans,
strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it
from time to time.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and are
entitled to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense.

Composition

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive and independent
non-executive Directors so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgment.
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During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Board
comprises the following six Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Ningning (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Jiangiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hu Sanmu (Vice President of Sales)

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)

Mr. Ko Ping Keung
Mr. Ng Sui Yin
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

Mr. He Ningning, the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and
an executive Director, is the step-brother of Mr. Wang Jiangiang,
the Chief Executive Officer of the Group and an executive Director.
Save as aforesaid, there was no financial, business, family or other
material relationship among the Directors.

The INEDs have brought a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and independent judgment to the Board.
Through active participation in the Board meetings and serving on
various Board committees, all INEDs will continue to make various
contributions to the Company.

Throughout the Year, the Company had appointed three INEDs,
representing half of the Board members, and has met the
requirement of the Listing Rules that the number of INEDs must
represent at least one-third of the Board members, and met
the requirement that at least one of the INEDs has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation in writing
from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. On 13 August 2018, QT Investment, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, participated in the B round of
financing of the non-listed company, Smartsens Technology
(Cayman) Co., Limited (“Smartsens”), and obtained a total
of 602,373 preference shares of Smartsens, representing
approximately 0.42% of total shares of Smartsens as at the
date of this report (256 March 2019).

engaging in development of semiconductor solutions, which

Smartsens is a company

was founded on 9 March 2017 and registered in the British
Cayman Islands. Mr. Ko Ping Keung, an INED of the Company,
owns approximately 7.4% equity interests in the ordinary shares
or preference shares of Smartsens personally or through a
company under his management; WK Innovation Ltd. (& &2l
FIRMD AR A T) (@ venture capital company, at whom Mr. Chu
Chia-Hsiang, an INED of the Company, has worked) and/or its
subsidiaries and investment funds hold approximately 4.47%
of preference shares of Smartsens. Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr.
Chu Chia-Hsiang also serve as directors of Smartsens, but do
not participate in specific operations of Smartsens. As at the
date of this report, the Group has not any significant business
dealings or major commercial transactions with Smartsens. The
Company considers that: (i) the controlling shareholder of the
Company holds a very low proportion of shares in Smartsens and
does not have any significant business dealings with Smartsens;
(i) the aggregate of shareholdings in Smartsens held by Mr. Ko
Ping Keung and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang personally or through their
companies is only 11.87% and the aggregate of voting rights of
the board of directors of Smartsens is less than one-half, they
do not participate in and cannot determine the daily operation
management of Smartsens; and (i) Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr.
Chu Chia-Hsiang do not rely on the investment in Smartsens as
their major source of income. Therefore, the Company believes
that the investment of QT Investment (the controlling shareholder
of the Company) in Smartsens does not affect the independence
of Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang as INEDs of
the Company. Based on the above circumstances and the
confirmations submitted by each of the INEDs, the Company
considers that all the INEDs are independent and have met the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
during the Year and up to the date of this report.
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As at 31 December 2018, there was no Director who held
directorships in each other’s companies nor had significant
relationships with other directors by participating in other
companies or groups.

Each of the INEDs has been appointed for a term of three years,
which is subject to retirement and re-election in accordance with
the Listing Rules, the Articles of Association of the Company and
the applicable laws in the Cayman Islands.

During the Year, the Chairman has held one meeting with INEDs
without the presence of the executive Directors.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of potential legal actions
against the Directors’ liability has been arranged by the Company.

Directors’ Time and Directorship Commitments

The Directors have confirmed that they have devoted sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company during the Year
and have disclosed to the Company twice a year the number,
identity and nature of their positions in listed public companies or
institutions are listed in Hong Kong or overseas, as well as other
significant commitments.

As at 31 December 2018, there was no director who had held

directorships in more than seven public companies, including the
Company.
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Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

During the Year, each of the Directors (namely Mr. He Ningning, Mr.
Wang Jiangiang, Mr. Hu Sanmu, Mr. Ko Ping Keung, Mr. Ng Sui
Yin and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang) have complied with the requirements
of the Code Provision A6.5 of the CG Code, have participated
in relevant continuing professional development and training,
including special training on CG Code and amendments to the
relevant provisions of the Listing Rules, special training on inside
information and information disclosure etc., and watched the
fourth instalment of director training webcasts entitled “Directors’
Responsibilities at IPOs” launched by the Stock Exchange at the
Company’s expense, and all Directors have been requested to
provide the Company with their training records.

In addition, the Company has from time to time provided
briefings to all Directors to develop and refresh their duties and
responsibilities.

Meetings of the Board and Directors’ Attendance
Records

During the Year, the Board held eight meetings in total (i.e. on
14 January 2018, 19 March 2018, 2 April 2018, 10 May 2018,
13 July 2018, 23 July 2018, 27 August 2018, 7 December 2018
respectively) with notice given to the Directors at least 14 days
in advance. Before each Board meeting, an agenda and the
accompanying Board papers have been sent to all Directors at
least three days before the intended date of the Board meeting or
such other period as agreed in advance. The company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”) is responsible for keeping
all Board meeting’s minutes. The draft and final versions of the
minutes have been circulated to the Directors for comments and
record within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for the Directors’ inspection.
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SREAEE

The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and

general meeting during the Year is as follows:

EEENAFELEEEERERKRE
GRS

Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

HERE BEEREE
General
Board Meeting
Name of Directors EEnE Exg BREXE
Executive Directors HBTES
Mr. He Ningning (Chairman) M=EsELE (FE) 8/8 11
Mr. Wang Jiangiang TR AE (FTHAEE)

(Chief Executive Officer) 8/8 11
Mr. Hu Sanmu (Vice President of Sales) =Rk (HEFIAEZ) 8/8 11
INEDs BYFHITES
Mr. Ko Ping Keung =R AL 8/8 1/1
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RIGERAE 8/8 1/1
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang TRFELRE 8/8 1/1

Board Diversity Policy EEeZ B E

The Board has adopted a policy of the Board diversity (the

“Board Diversity Policy”) with all measurable objectives set for

implementing the same.
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Summary of Board Diversity Policy

A.

Purpose

To ensure that the Board has a balance of skKills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business.

Nomination and appointment

The Nomination Committee will identify eligible candidates
on merit basis based on the Company’s daily business
needs while taking into account the benefit of diversity of
the members of the Board.

Measurable objectives

Selection of candidates to the Board will be based on a
range of diversity, including but not limited to gender, age,
language, cultural background, educational background,
industry experience and professional experience.

Monitoring and reporting

The Nomination Committee will disclose the composition of
the Board in the Company’s Corporate Governance Report
each year and monitor the implementation of this policy.

Reviewing this policy

The Nomination Committee will review this policy in
due course to ensure that this policy is effective. The
Nomination Committee will review this policy and the
measurable objectives at least annually, or as appropriate,
to ensure the continued effectiveness of the Board.
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Board Member Diversity

The Nomination Committee comprehensively considered the
gender, age, region, cultural background, industry experience
and professional experience of the Board members. The detailed
analysis of the relevant factors for Directors is as follows:

EEEHEZTILER

REZBEHFAEETESTENEMNN

B FER R BB R

THELER K

EXRBRTAR EZNRABEREAEAS

DITEFFAB R

Person-time/the number

Factors Categories of the Board members
FSES Al AR/ EBEHEAY
Age group 30-45 years old 1/6
FhE R 30-45/E 5%
46-60 years old 4/6
46-60/8 5%
61-75 years old 1/6
61-75/E 5%
Region Mainland China 2/6
b 1N
Hong Kong, China 3/6
PR EB
Taiwan, China 1/6
B =
Identity Executive Director 3/6
1 WITES
Independent Non-executive Director 3/6
BYIFERITES
Profession®™et Engineering/Technology 2/6
£ JULE TR/
Accounting 1/6
it
Management 3/6
g
Expertise™® Electrical and electronics related industry 3/6
experience
% £ ) ERAREFIEMITEER
Science technology 4/6
RH
Other industry experience (banking/finance/ 2/6
energy)
HfT¥E% (R17 /28 82R)
Corporate administration 6/6
PERITH
Board members of other 2/6

listed companies

Hi P RABEEEKE

Note: Directors can have various professional backgrounds and expertise
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Director Nomination Policy

The Company has developed and adopted a nomination policy

for directors (the “Nomination Policy”), under which appointment

of new Directors or re-election of Directors have been carefully

considered as required by the Nomination Policy and based on

formal procedures. A summary of the Nomination Policy of the

Company is set out below:

A.

Purpose

The Nomination Policy is aimed to set out the procedures and

criteria for nominating director candidates of the Company

to ensure that all nominations for the Board members are fair

and transparent, thereby facilitating the efficient and balanced
development of the Board.

Nomination procedures

1.

The Secretary of the Nominating Committee collects
and analyses the necessary personal data submitted by
candidates.

The Chairman of the Nomination Committee will convene
a meeting of the Nomination Committee or circulate a
resolution in writing to the members of the Nomination
Committee to consider matters in accordance with its
terms of reference.

For filling a casual vacancy to the Board or as an
addition to the Board, the Nomination Committee will
conduct the relevant selection process (coupled with
the relevant selection criteria) against the nominated
candidate and make recommendations to the Board for
consideration, and the Board will then make a decision
as to whether the nominated candidate shall be eligible
to be appointed as a director of the Company.
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4. For re-appointing a director of the Company, the
Nomination Committee will conduct the relevant
selection process (coupled with the relevant selection
criteria) against the Director proposed to be re-
appointed and make recommendations to the Board
for consideration, and the Board will then make a
decision as to whether the Director shall be eligible to
be re-appointed as a Director of the Company. if the
Director proposed to be re-elected is an INED who has
served the Board for more than 9 years, the Nomination
Committee shall also assess whether the INED has
remained independent in the context of the Listing Rules
and should be re-elected at the next general meeting of
the Company and make recommendations to the Board
for consideration.

C. Selection Criteria
The factors listed below would be considered by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate:

° reputation for integrity

° professional knowledge and industry experience
which may be relevant to the Company

° commitment in respect of available time

° Board member diversity, including not limited to
the gender, age, ethnicity, language, cultural and
educational background, industry experience and
professional experience

° In case of a candidate for an INED of the Company,

the independence of such candidate will be
assessed

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018

4. REBARAEZR RELE
BEeUESESETNITH
BEERF CERERIER
) WRAEESRLHEERR
UHEE  MEFEEEHRE
EERTCRERBENZAER
ARAREF -EREBENES
RETEFSBROFAEILIFAN
TEZ RIRBZEgNENGE
BN IFAITESH AR
MEeBNBEBLMELTRAK
RETERRKRE LBE#EEE-

VREBEBESRELOERE L AH
HEEE

RAGBRBREREABSESK &
HEBERERTIRAEE:

e WEEE

o HEARTPEBHNFEREME N

o HARAHKME

s EEEKEZITIE BRETR
RUER - Fle -BE - FF X
ERBEES TEREBRMEX

s MARABUIFATERRE
AME - #&FHEEBIREADN
B 1%



Corporate Governance Report

Board’s decision

The entire Board is ultimately responsible for the selection
and appointment or recommendation (as the case may
be) of candidates for the Company’s directorship, and
accordingly, shall consider the recommendations from the
Nomination Committee and make a decision as to:

1. In relation to new appointment, whether the
nominated candidate shall be eligible to be
appointed as a director of the Company to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board,
or (as the case may be) to be nominated and
recommended to the Company’s shareholders for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company;
and

2. In relation to re-appointment, whether the director
shall be eligible to be reappointed as a director of
the Company, and (if such director is an INED of
the Company who has served the Board for more
than 9 years and whose re-appointment shall be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
the Company’s shareholders under the Listing Rules)
whether such INED has remained independent in the
context of the Listing Rules and should be re-elected
at the next general meeting of the Company.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting, and among other things, reviewed the structure,
size, composition and diversity of members of the
Board, assessed the independence of the INEDs and
recommended to the Board for consideration the re-
appointment of all the retiring Directors as Directors at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 May
2018 (the “2018 AGM”). .
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
separate and performed by different individuals to ensure a
balance of power and authority so that power is not concentrated
in any one individual. Mr. He Ningning, Chairman, is responsible
for the management of the Board while Mr. Wang Jiangiang,
Chief Executive Officer, is responsible for managing the Group’s
business and overall operations. There is a clear division of
responsibilities between Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Risk Management Committee, to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for the Board committees are
posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. It comprises three
INEDs, namely Mr. Ng Sui Yin, Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr.
Chu Chia-Hsiang. Mr. Ng Sui Yin is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include,
but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,

re-appointment and removal of external auditor, and
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and handling any questions regarding its

resignation or dismissal;
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Corporate Governance Report

reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards and discussing with
the external auditor on the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences;

developing and implementing a policy on engaging an
external auditor to supply non-audit services and reporting to
the Board, identifying and making recommendations on any
matters where action or improvement is needed;

reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the Company’s
financial statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports,
and reviewing significant financial reporting judgments
contained therein;

reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems;

discussing the internal control system with the management
to ensure that the management has performed its duty and
have an effective internal control system in place;

considering major investigation findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

ensuring coordination between the internal and external
auditors, ensuring that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and reviewing and monitoring its effectiveness;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;
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° reviewing the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and management’s response;

e reviewing the pricing rules of continuing connected
transactions and implementation of transaction caps, etc.;

e  ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter; and

e  considering other topics as defined by the Board.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings in
total (i.e. on 19 March 2018 and 27 August 2018 respectively)
(the “Audit Committee Meetings”) and reviewed the audited
consolidated results for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
the unaudited consolidated results for the six months ended 30
June 2018 of the Company, respectively, including the accounting
principles and practice adopted by the Group, the Company’s
compliance with the code provisions of the CG Code and
disclosure thereof in the relevant annual and interim reports, the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and recommended to
the Board for consideration the same and the re-appointment of
KPMG, Certified Public Accountant, as the Company’s external
auditor at the 2018 AGM.
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The attendance of each Director at the Audit Committee Meetings
during the Year is as follows:

SREARE

BEERNAFELHREERZ
- (NN

No. of Attendance (Note)/
Eligible to attend

HEREB (KE)
Name of Directors EEHSR BEEREEERRE
Mr. Ng Sui Yin (Chairman) BEE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Ko Ping Keung mREEE 2/2
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang MRFELE 2/2

Note: The Audit Committee Meeting was attended by all the Directors in

person, not by an alternate.

The Audit Committee held one meeting on 25 March 2019 and
reviewed the Company’s draft audited consolidated results for the
Year, including the accounting principles and practice adopted by
the Group, the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
of the CG Code and disclosure in this report, as well as the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and recommended to
the Board for consideration the same and the re-appointment of
KPMG, Certified Public Accountant, as the Company’s external
auditor at the AGM.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Chu
Chia-Hsiang, Mr. Ng Sui Yin and Mr. Ko Ping Keung. Mr. Chu Chia-
Hsiang is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include, but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing the remuneration policy;
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° reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and

objectives;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

of non-executive Directors;

e considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions

elsewhere in the Group;

e reviewing and approving compensation payable to the
executive Directors and senior management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with the contractual terms and is otherwise fair and

reasonable and not excessive;

° reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating
to the dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with the contractual terms and

are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

e ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her

own remuneration.
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During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
on 19 March 2018, and reviewed and recommended to the
Board for consideration certain remuneration-related matters of
the Directors and senior management, determined the policy for
the remuneration of executive Directors, assessed performance
of executive Directors and approved the terms of re-appointed
directors service contracts and remuneration.

For determining the remuneration packages of each Director,
market rates and factors such as each Director’'s workload
and required commitment were taken into account. In addition,
factors comprising economic and market situations, individual
contributions to the Group’s results and development as well
as individual’s potential were considered when determining the

remuneration packages of Executive Directors.

The attendance of each Director at the Remuneration Committee
Meetings during the Year is as follows:
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No. of Attendance (Note)/
Eligible to attend

HERE (K1),
Name of Directors BEEHMR EEREEEBRRE
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang (Chairman) MRERE (/) 1/1
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RIGBRE 11
Mr. Ko Ping Keung SEREEE 1/1
Note: The Remuneration Committee Meeting was attended by all the /77 FAEESHHSFHEFHNZEe e
Directors in person, not by an alternate. FHOERREBALE-
The Remuneration Committee also held one meeting on 25 #HMMEZEEe TN _ZEZ—hLhFEF=A=-1+=1
March 2019, and reviewed and recommended to the Board for EI 551{7—/)2;.\.:% TEENREE=HE

consideration certain remuneration-related matters of the Directors
and senior management.
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RERWE

Nomination Committee

The

Nomination Committee has been established with written

terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. It comprises

two
and

INEDs, namely Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang
an executive Director, namely Mr. He Ningning. Mr. He

Ningning is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The

principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee

include, but are not limited to:

reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and making recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

assessing the independence of the INEDs;

developing and reviewing the Board Diversity Policy and
reviewing the measurable objectives for implementing such
Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender,
age, race, language, cultural background, educational
background, industry experience and professional experience,
and the progress on achieving the objectives; and making
disclosure of its progress and its review results in the annual
report annually; and

making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and the succession planning
for the Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting on
19 March 2018, and among other things, reviewed the structure,
size, composition and diversity of members of the Board,
assessed the independence of the INEDs and recommended to
the Board for consideration the re-appointment of all the retiring
Directors as Directors at the 2018 AGM.

The attendance of each Director at the Nomination Committee
Meetings during the Year is as follows:
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No. of Attendance (Note)/
Eligible to attend

HERB (KZE)
Name of Directors EEgE FEREESBERH
Mr. He Ningning (Chairman) ZEELAE (£/F) 11
Mr. Ko Ping Keung SREEE 1/1
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang TMREFTE 11

Note: The Nomination Committee Meeting was attended by all the

Directors in person, not by an alternate.

The Company also amended and published the terms of reference
for the Nomination Committee on 26 February 2019 (please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 26 February 2019 for
details).

The Nomination Committee also held one meeting on 25 March
2019, and among other things, reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, assessed the independence of the
INEDs and recommended to the Board for considering the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors and the Directors who filled a
casual vacancy or appointed as an addition to the existing Board,
namely Mr. Wang Jiangiang and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang as Directors
at the AGM, as well as reviewed the Nomination Policy and the
Board'’s Diversity Policy.

Wit MEEEHRILFERELZEESS

o JFRMRIEALE-

AKRBNMR_E—NAF_A=-+HE
ARTIERZZECHRESREE (F15
ER2AANTR-_E—NE-_A=+<

HZR&E) -

REZEENNR_FT—NLF=HA=+1H
ART—Rg® (HPeHE)EE5E%
SRS FRE LA ST EBIERTT
EENBUHEERBRRBAFRAE tME
EeHBERETZERIESEREMR
BRTHROEEIEZENMAREGES
FNES AERBEERVIRELAE
REE ULNEEREBENRESES
TAL R BT ©

2018 FH E#MBE (KE)BERLA



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Risk Management Committee EREEZEY
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The Risk Management Committee has been established with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Risk Management Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Ng Sui Yin, both INEDs and Mr. Fan
Fugiang, the chief financial officer of the Company. In particular,
two members are our INEDs. Mr. Ko Ping Keung is the chairman of
the Risk Management Committee.

REREEZEENIRAGRBERR
@Tﬁﬁb’é-

The principal roles and functions of the Risk Management
Committee include, but are not limited to:

reviewing and assessing the Group’s investment in wealth
management products in terms of whether such investment
complies with its treasury and investment policies, the fund
safety of and the risks associated with such investment;

reviewing the remedial actions in respect of policy breaches, if
any;

reviewing the risks associated with, and approving,
the purchase of wealth management products with the
transaction amount exceeding RMB50 million (RMB50 million
exclusive) as requested from time to time (the provision of
reviewing the risks associated with the purchase of wealth
management products with single transaction amount
exceeding RMB10 million (RMB10 million exclusive) as
requested from time to time was amended to reviewing
the risks associated with, and approving, the purchase of
wealth management products with single transaction amount
exceeding RMB50 million (RMB50 million exclusive) as
requested from time to time, pursuant to the amendments
made to the funds management policy at the Risk
Management Committee meeting held on 24 March 2016);
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e reviewing and assessing the expected return of the wealth
management products with similar principal amount, and
the track record of relevant issuers and similar wealth
management products previously sold in the market; and

e considering, reviewing and approving the amendments to the
Group’s policies and requirements in respect of the operation
and risk control of the Group’s wealth management products.

During the Year, the Risk Management Committee held two
meetings in total (i.e. on 19 March 2018 and 27 August 2018) (the
“Risk Management Committee Meetings”). At the above meetings,
the Risk Management Committee reviewed and assessed the
Group’s wealth management product investment in terms of
whether such investment have complied with the Group’s treasury
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No. of Attendance (Note)/
Eligible to attend
HERE (),
Name of Members REHKE BEEREEEBRRE
Mr. Ko Ping Keung (Chairman) mREEE (L) 2/2
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RIGBRE 2/2
Mr. Fan Fugiang BEMALE 2/2
Note: The Risk Management Committee Meeting was attended by all #/77: FrEERZHH It EREREELZES
the Directors in person, not by an alternate. @ ERRIEBEALRE-
The Risk Management Committee also held one meeting on 25 R EBEZEe NN T — L F = A
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management product investment in terms of whether such
investment has complied with the Group’s treasury and investment
policies, the fund safety of and risks associated with such
investment, and also assessed whether the operating cash of the
Group is sufficient and the control policies of liquidity risks.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors though having delegated
the corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee which
include, but are not limited to:

e developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

e reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

° reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

e developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
the Directors; and

e reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company, among which, the term of office for each of Mr.
He Ningning and Mr. Wang Jiangiang is 36 months commenced
from the month on which the shares of the Company were listed
on the Stock Exchange (i.e. December 2014); the term of office
for Mr. Hu Sanmu is 36 months commenced from 8 July 2016. On
2 December 2017, Mr. He Ningning, Mr. Wang Jiangiang and Mr.
Hu Sanmu renewed their service contracts with the Company for a
term of 36 months commencing from 2 December 2017.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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Each of the INEDs has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company, among which, the term of office for each of Mr. Ng
Sui Yin and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang is three years with effect from
2 December 2014, being the date on which the shares of the
Company were initially listed on the Stock Exchange : the term of
office for Mr. Ko Ping Keung is 36 months commenced from 31
May 2017. On 2 December 2017, Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang and Mr.
Ng Sui Yin signed letters of appointment with the Company for a
term of 36 months commencing from 2 December 2017.

None of the Directors has a service contract/letter of appointment
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without the payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

All the Directors, including the INEDs, are subject to retirement
by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Article 84 of Articles of Association. At each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is less than three or
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) will retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director will be subject to retirement at the AGM at least once
every three years. A retiring Director will be eligible for re-election
and will continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at
which he retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will include (so
far as necessary to ascertain the number of Directors to retire by
rotation) any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself
for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those
who have been the longest in office since their last re-election or
appointment and so that as between persons who became or
were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those to retire shall
(unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined
by lot. Any Director appointed by the Board pursuant to Article
83(3) of Articles of Association shall not be taken into account in
determining which particular Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Jiangiang and
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang will retire by rotation at the AGM and, being
eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND EENENEEAEFHMHM
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out in =~ ANEE FE E 7 FH W E1E 5 E & HF BT 7%
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements. RN 6 o

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the #HREMLETREBASKZFARTE ' 5
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other AR &EIE A B (EERIN) T ( £ BB I%
than the Directors) whose particulars are contained in the Z#HBIFENANEEFERE [EETNS
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior #FEIERE ZEBESIE] W)W EH WO T
Management” in this annual report for the Year by band is set out

below:
Number of individuals
Remuneration band (in RMB) FMAER (ARY) ATEE
Nil to 1,000,000 £ %£1,000,0007T 10
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,0017t21,500,0007T 0

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION Y& #Z Z B0 EN &

For the Year, KPMG was engaged as the Group’s independent AKNEE EER @TEIEKAERE AR

auditor. S B 7B ZEA -
The remuneration paid/payable to KPMG, the auditor, for the gt E 1Rt 2 PRI~ FE 5% 2B
services provided during the Year is set out below: ETHEAMER 2 HMIIE M T
Fee paid/payable
e ENEAR
RMB’000
Services R AR T
Interim review and annual audit service —E-N\FHEHENL
for 2018 FEET RS 2,050
Total FEE 2,050*

* The amount includes service fee of RMB1,934,000 and related VAT * #2428 E R4 E B A RK1,934,0007T
of RMB116,000. R AEEE E R AR 116,0007T

@ Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the re-appointment of the independent auditor,
and they both have agreed to recommend the re-appointment of
KPMG as the Company’s independent auditor for the ensuing year
at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In addition, KPMG has stated in the independent auditor’s report
its reporting responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the Year.

INTERNAL CONTROL

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Company
maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets at all times.
The Company has adopted a series of internal control policies
and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance for
achieving objectives including effective and efficient operations,
reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. Highlights of our internal control system include the
following:

e  Code of conduct — The Company’s code of conduct explicitly
communicates to each employee its values, acceptable
criteria for decision-making and its ground rules for behaviour.

° Management of related party transactions — The Group will
continue to enhance its internal control and only enter into
transactions with related parties that are carried out in the
ordinary course of its business and on normal commercial
terms and are in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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° Internal audit — The Group’s internal audit function regularly
monitors key controls and procedures in order to assure its
management and the Board that the internal control system is
functioning as intended. The Audit Committee is responsible
for supervising the internal audit function.

e Compliance with the Listing Rules and relevant laws
and regulations — The Group will continue to monitor
its compliance with relevant laws and regulations and
its senior management team will work closely with the
Group’s employees to implement actions required to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The Company
will also continue to arrange for various trainings to be
provided by its Hong Kong legal advisers or other professional
parties to the Directors and senior management on the
Listing Rules, including but not limited to aspects related to
corporate governance and connected transactions, and by its
legal advisers in PRC on PRC laws and regulations.

The Audit Committee and the Board have conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group. The
Directors (including the INEDs) consider that the internal control
measures of the Company are adequate and effective.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company appointed Mr. Cheng Zhihua (“Mr. Cheng”) as the
Company Secretary of the Company on 21 November 2017

Mr. Cheng is an external service provider to the Company and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(in compliance with Note 1 to Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules). The
primary contact person between the Company and Mr. Cheng is
Mr. Fan Fugiang, the chief financial officer of the Company.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and/or the Chief
Executive Officer. All members of the Board have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary. The appointment
and removal of the joint company secretaries or the Company
Secretary are subject to the Board’s approval.

@ Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to make proposals
or make a motion at the annual general meetings under the
memorandum of association of the Company and the Articles
of Association (the “M&A”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands.
Shareholders who wish to make proposals or make a motion may,
however, convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) in
accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
EGM” set out below.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than ten percent of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to require an EGM to be called by
the Board or the Company Secretary for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition, including making proposals
or making a motion at the EGM.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an EGM for the
purpose of making proposals or making a motion at the EGM
must deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by
the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong (Room 1715, 17/F, Topsalil
Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong) for
the attention of the Company Secretary and/or the chief financial
officer of the Company.

The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the
Company, the reason(s) to convene an EGM and the proposed
agenda.
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The Company will check the Requisition and the identity and
shareholding of the Eligible Shareholder(s) will be verified with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong. If the Requisition
is found to be proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to convene an EGM and/or include the proposal(s) made
or the resolution(s) proposed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) at the
EGM within 2 months after the deposit of the Requisition. On the
contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as not in order, the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of the outcome
and accordingly, the Board will not call for an EGM and/or include
the proposal(s) made or the resolution(s) proposed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) at the EGM.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition the Board fails
to proceed to convene such EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned as
a result of the failure of the Board to convene an EGM shall be
reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquires to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board of the Company by addressing them to the principal
place of business of the Company, at Room 1715, 17/F, Topsalil
Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong by
post or by email to Mr. Cheng Zhihua at tonycheng128@yahoo.
com.hk or Mr. Fan Fugiang at richard.fan@ck-telecom.com, for
the attention of the Company Secretary and/or the chief financial
officer.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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Upon receipt of the enquiries, the Company Secretary and/or the
chief financial officer will forward the communications relating to:

1.  matters within the Directors’ purview to the executive
Directors of the Company;

2. matters within a Board committee’s area of responsibility to
the chairman of the appropriate committee; and

3. ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, enquiries
and customer complaints to the appropriate management of
the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy of the Group had been disclosed in the
Prospectus dated 20 November 2014 of the Company.

The payment and the amount of any dividends, if paid, will depend
on the Company’s results of operations, cash flows, financial
condition, statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment
of dividends by the Company, future prospects and other factors
that the Board may consider relevant. Holders of the Shares
will be entitled to receive such dividends pro rata according to
the amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the Shares. The
declaration, payment and amount of dividends will be subject to
discretion by the Board of the Company.

Dividends may be paid only out of the Company’s distributable
profits and/or reserves (including share premium account) as
permitted under the Memorandum and Articles of Association of
the Company and the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands.
To the extent profits are distributed as dividends, such portion of
profits will not be available to be reinvested in operations of the
Company. There can be no assurance that the Company will be
able to declare or distribute any dividend in the amount set out in
any plan of the Board or at all. The dividend distribution record in
the past may not be used as a reference or basis to determine the
level of dividends that may be declared or paid by the Company in
the future.
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COMMUNICATION WITH THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication
policy with the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders can
have equal and timely access to information about the Company
in order to enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights in
an informed manner and allow them to engage actively with the
Company.

Information will be communicated to the Shareholders mainly
through the Company’s financial reports, AGMs and other general
meetings that may be convened as well as all the disclosures
submitted to the Stock Exchange.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the

Company during the Year. The M&A is available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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About this Report

Basis of Preparation

This report is the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report of the Group in 2018, which is prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide contained in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, truly reflecting the environmental, social and
governance responsibilities performed by the Group in 2018.

Business of the Group

The Group is a leading mid-to-high end mobile terminal
camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules
manufacturer in the PRC, which mainly engages in the
manufacturing of camera modules and fingerprint recognition
modules used in smart mobile terminals, including mobile
phones and tablets, vehicle and other smart mobile devices.

Scope of the Report

The reporting period of this report is the 2018 financial
year (i.e. from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018).
The principal businesses involved in this report include the
manufacture and sale of camera modules and fingerprint
recognition modules used in mobile phones and other smart
devices. Kunshan QT China, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, the principal place of business of which is the
production base (“Production Base”) and the headquarters
office of the Group located in Kunshan, is the place where
the Group’s major business activities take place. As for
operating offices of the Group located in other places such
as Shenzhen, Chengdu, Taiwan and Hong Kong, taking into
consideration their supporting roles, they are not covered in
this report as their activities do not constitute any significant
threat to the safety of the society and environment.
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Development Strategies of the Group on
Environmental, Social and Governance

1. In recent years, sustainable development has become a
significant concern of the public; in addition to product
quality, issues in respect of whether the production
process would cause serious environmental impacts and
whether the workers have been treated fairly are drawing
more and more attention.

2. We highly recognize the importance of managing
sustainability risk, such as environmental pollution and
child labour problems, which may constitute material
threats to the corporate image and performance of the
Group. As such, during the Year, we continued to take all
necessary measures to reduce energy consumption and
emission, and reduce the production process’s impacts
on the earth, water and other natural resources in the
neighborhood.

3. The Group has implemented the major principles of
environmental protection and social responsibility in its
daily operations, and continue to keep communicating
with relevant regulatory authorities of the local
government and other stakeholders and strictly comply
with relevant regulations and rules.

4.  The Group strives to become an enterprise which can
get the respect and recognition from both the customers
and the public.

Source of Information

The information disclosed in this report is mainly sourced from
the internal documents of the Group, internal data analysis
and market public information. The contents of all information
are reviewed and confirmed by the management of the
Company and responsible departments, and are duly filed.
In case of any doubt or opinion regarding the content of the
report, you are welcome to contact the Group.
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Responsibility of the Board

All the information disclosed in this Report has been reviewed
and confirmed by members of the Board.

Stakeholder Engagement

In formulating the policies and directions in relation to
environmental and social responsibility, materiality assessment
plays an indispensable important role, which can instruct the
future operation and development of the Group. Therefore,
the Group engaged an independent third-party consultancy
firm to design research program when preparing the 2016
and 2017 reports, and interviewed with internal and external
stakeholders, including the management, front line staff,
bankers, customers and investors, in order to understand
those environmental and social responsibility issues that
they view as important for the Group. The consultancy firm
analyzed the findings from these interviews and identified
issues with high levels of materiality to the Group. As there
has not been a significant change in nature regarding our
business and location of operation, this report has been
prepared according to the result of relevant materiality
analysis.
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3 Materiality Analysis

During the interviews with internal stakeholders, they were
being invited to give scores on the questionnaire for the
various issues on environmental and social responsibility
base on materiality. A range of highly important issues that
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have material impact on the Group have been proposed after
further analyzing the opinions collected.

The materiality matrix constructed based on the results of the

interviews is set out below:
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Product responsibility
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Anti-corruption
O =17
Employee benefits
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Supply chain management
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Staff development & training
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Human rights
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Hazardous waste Greenhouse gas emissions
(s JEPN Qzz=mzy

Water consumption Non-Hazardous waste
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Electricity consumption Fuel for non-transportations uses
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Wastewater discharge Noise of Production Bases
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Indoor air quality Fuel for transportation uses
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Air emissions Climate change
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Packaging material
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Community investment
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After assessing the views and opinions of stakeholders RPEF A E % Pﬁqy’iﬂ”ﬁgﬁ
collected in interviews, we present the significant BENERETIE  BEARIRE
environmental, social and governance issues and their tErEE F';ﬁ%&ﬁ;ﬁi%j‘ﬂ%«%ﬁ’j
relationships with business operations based on materiality in FERIZEEERER TER T~

the chart below:

Aspects Key issues Relationship with business

&= EERE BA T 2 B &

Environmental Hazardous waste Certain amount of hazardous chemicals were
generated in the production process.

RIE EEREEREY REBREERETPEERA—THENESHE
[‘]:llj o

Electricity consumption  Electricity was consumed in the operation of
the Group’s Production Bases to conduct

production.
(S AEBENTNEAEENTERAENNRFAEER
o
Water consumption The major consumption of water of the Group

was due to the operation of water curtain
system for filtering air pollutants, used by the
lenses cleaning and consumed as domestic
water for dormitories.

K AEEBFENAKRBERBREERTRAYMZKE
R BRBEREE ZEEAK

Wastewater discharge Wastewater was generated from the Production
Bases and dormitories of the Group.

JEE K HE R REBNEEEMRBESHGELEK:
Indoor air quality The soldering and painting process was required

during camera modules and fingerprint
recognition modules manufacturing of which,
generated waste gases and posed impact on
the indoor air quality.

EEGERANENRAENEERAEP T EHET

RELBZNIF ARHEELATENERNR
HEETANTERMNEE -

Air emissions The soldering and painting process was required
during camera modules and fingerprint
recognition modules manufacturing of which,
generated waste gases and emitted.

fhit
F
Het
pl
IR
il

& R BE IR ERGBRANENEENEERETHEET
BEMEZNTHF A EELTENERT
e

2018 FH E#MBE (KE)BERLA @



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R HERERRSE

Relationship with business

BT 2 B &

Aspects Key issues

g H EERE

Social Child labour and labour
exploitation

e EREIRSEHE

Product responsibility

EmAT

Occupational health
and safety

BxEFEEZTSE

Anti-corruption

The Group is very concerned about the issues
of labour exploitation and child labour and
therefore strictly complies with all relevant
local labour laws and regulations.

AEBFEFERSHHEINE THE  RMAKS
BTEMWMAENS THBERER -

As a supplier of components, the quality of
products and services is crucial to the
business of the Group.

ERTHMHEEE EmARENEZHAEE
WEBEZHEE -

Ensuring health and safety of staff is one of the
most important objectives of the Group. We
are committed to providing our staff with a
safe and comfortable working environment.

REEINREEZZ/AREENEZER L —-
BN REIRHE—ELE REFENTHER
& o

The Group has always firmly believed that
integrity and compliance are the source of
strength for enterprise development. We
require our staff to be honest and clean,
and not to seek personal benefits by taking
advantage of the Group’s resource.
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4 Environmental

4.1 Environmental-related Policies

As a leading camera and fingerprint recognition
module manufacturer in the PRC, apart from
attaching importance to scientific research
innovation, high-efficient production and lean
management, the Board believes that it is crucial to
business operation to effectively conduct efforts on
environmental conservation and improve resources
consumption efficiency of production, and strives to
reduce the hazards affecting the surrounding lands,
water sources and other natural resources during
production.

The Group is well recognized in the construction
of its environmental production system and has
obtained 1ISO14001 (Environmental Management)
Qualification Certificate.

The Group complies with the state and regional
relevant environmental protection and prevention
rules. It also actively cooperates with government
departments in inspections on safety, environmental
protection, firefighting and occupational health of
enterprises conducted in a regular, specific and
unexpected manner, and make filing records for
the environmental impact of construction projects
as well as invites third party agencies to prepare
environment impact assessment report according to
the regulations.

In accordance with the regulations, the Group
began to disclose the five environmental key
performance indicators (“KPI”) in the 2017 ESG
report and presented the total amount of the year.
The relevant KPI in this report of the Year remain
unchanged.
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42 HEBRNHEN

4.2 Hazardous Waste Disposal

The main hazardous wastes used and discharged
by the Group are as follows: waste bath solutions,
organic solutions, waste paint slag, printing ink, dye
and coating and etc.

The Group has formulated and implemented
the Administrative Method for Waste Chemicals
and Materials with clear guidelines regarding the
procedures of classification and collection, specific
storage container, chemical labeling, tracking
and disposal of hazardous wastes. Each of the
department head monitors the procurement,
storage, utilization, disposal and emergency
treatment of such chemicals and ensures its strict
implementation.

Each production department is required to
collect and store hazardous wastes in specific
containers and administrative department will
contact third-party organization which qualified by
government authority to handle such chemicals
after classification and recording. Regular online
declaration of relevant discharge record will
be conducted on the official website of local
Environmental Protection Administration where the
Production Bases locate.

During the Year, we set up the sewage treatment
processes of sedimentation tank of waste paint slag
in the fingerprint recognition module manufacturing
process and reduced waste paint slag of 40%.
The annual sewage volume was decreased by over
50%, thereby decreased the sewage treatment fee
and reduced the negative impact to the environment
significantly.
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Total amount of hazardous waste discharged by the
Group in 2018

Classification of hazardous waste Disposal (Kg)

Hydrocarbons and water mixtures 26,000
for ultrasonic cleaning

Industrial glue and hose 8,750
Waste alcohol soaked wiping cloth 7,750
Waste ethyl acetate for cleaning lances 97,910
Waste paint empty bucket 6,800
Waste paint slag 25,000

4.3 Electricity Consumption

— During the camera modules and fingerprint
recognition modules manufacturing process, the
main resource consumed is electricity. Precision
manufacturing requires high standard for the
production site, which are mostly clean rooms at
class 10 or class 1000 standard which need strong
air-conditioning and ventilation system. While in
production, spot-welder and oven also need to be
driven by more high power electricity. Therefore, the
main measures of the Group to conserve electricity
are to optimize production procedures, enhance
electricity utilization efficiency, execute recycling and
reuse measures and even increase green energy
usage such as solar power electricity generation
within part of the dormitories.

RIR - HERERRE
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-~ In response to the national policy direction of green — ZRERBEXRT-AGEEEZ
production under the 13th Five-Year Plan, the WER R ANEBE B HIET &N
Group has developed energy conservation plans REFTEIRER T EHHE
and goals, mainly to enhance hardware efficiency, B AEAE e EBbE
optimize production and management procedures, ENEERER BEgEEE
review and evaluate the progress of energy- THIE TR R HEE -
saving goals regularly, and analyze and adjust the KD M E -

measures on a timely basis.

—  Optimize production and management procedures: - BIEEREERF:

e  Starting from the production plans to enable o MHEETEBEWBETE
the equipment to operate at full capacity as b EREZEmMET
much as possible &

e Reducing the wasted products and related o RAEmEIEENERE

energy consumption

e Improving the automatic level of production o IBFtASLEENKTE:
and enhancing energy efficiency e RME
Total electricity consumption of the Group in 2018 2018 F A EFHHEFEEE
Total electricity HMEEE
Scope consumption (kwh) #E (TRE)
Production Base at Hanpu Road, Kunshan City 34,513,542 BIITmERE 34,513,542
EEREHM
Production Base at Taihong Road, Kunshan City 107,434,513 BImAI% 107,434,513
(phase | and phase II) HEEN
(—#f—8)
Production Base at Gu Cheng Road, Kunshan City 76,934 ElmaEmE 76,934
(phase 11l EEEN(=H)
Total consumption during the Year 142,024,989 EFEERE 142,024,989
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4.4 Water Consumption and Sewage Discharge

The Group highly focuses on water resources
management, including water utilization. It avoids
contaminating water sources during production
and work process so as to sustain the utilization of
water resources.

The Group formulated the sewage management
procedures, which assures sewage discharge to
meet the relevant standards through separate
treatment of sewage generated from plants and
dormitories. The plants are also equipped with
septic tank and sewage treatment system. Sewage
must be treated before flowing into municipal pipe
network. No direct discharge is permitted. Pipelines
of sewage and rain are segregated strictly to avoid
waste oil and chemicals from entering into the
sewer. Factory staff inspects the sewage treatment
system every day, records the sewage discharge
volume and reports to local safety and environment
department monthly for filing.

The Group advocates the recycling of waste water
and established the waste water recycling system
according to Waste Water Recycling System
Management Regulation (EE7K B i R 4 & 12 it
%) formulated by the Group. It recovers and filters
waste water for revolving use in the workshops and
reduced water consumption.

The recycling percentage of the Group’s sewage
water is about 90% during the Year.
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Total water consumption of the Group in 2018

Total water
Scope consumption (m?)
Production Base at Hanpu Road, Kunshan Gity 384,398
Production Base at Taihong Road, Kunshan City 1,066,290
(phase I and phase Il)
Production Base at Gu Cheng Road, Kunshan City 4,346
(phase Ill)
Total consumption during the Year 1,455,034

Discharge and recovery of sewage from the Group’s
Production Base in 2018

Total amount of

Sewage type water (md)
Discharge 3,374
Recovery 30,445

—  The recycling percentage of the Group’s sewage
water is about 90%.
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4.5 Air Pollution

Indoor Air Quality

The Group has all along been paying serious attention
to indoor air quality at workplace, and tested a number
of toxic substances in the air within the work place
according to the national regulations. The tested items
include: stannic oxide from the tin spotting process,
methanol produced by glue, butanone emanated from
the coating, and the circulation of indoor air. The test
results showed that the exhaust gas concentration in the
workshop is in line with the requirements of Occupational
Exposure Limits for Hazardous Agents in the Workplace
Part 1: Chemical Hazardous Agents ( (L{EZFEZE
RAEBEZBREFR 1D LBEEARK) (GBZ 2.1-
2007)) of National Occupational Health Standards of the
People’s Republic of China.

Air Emissions
There are three main categories of Air Emissions from the
Group’s Production Bases:

—  Camera modules manufacturing: the reflow waste
gas generated during the soldering process. As the
volume is immaterial, waste gas will be collected
and exhaust by a 15-meter high funnel in the form
of turbine extraction.

- Fingerprint recognition modules manufacturing:
Waste gas generated from coating material in
coating workshops is filtered through specific
water curtain installed in the Production Base.
Particles generated from filtering will be combusted
for disposal by RTO heat reserve exhaust air
burning oven, and discharged collectively, without
secondary pollution.

—  Vehicle exhaust emission: the Group advocates
less vehicle utilization, and encourages employees
to go green by bus or on bicycle. Furthermore,
the Group’s vehicles are required to conduct
comprehensive inspection in government’s testing
centers at scheduled time each year, and vehicles
not conforming to exhaust emission requirements
will not be used.

4.5
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Air emissions from the Group’s Production Bases in

2018
Scope Emission (kg)
Production Base at Hanpu Road, 2,100

Kunshan City
Production Base at Taihong Road, 3,165

Kunshan City (Phase | and Phase Il)

Production Base at Gu Cheng Road, 0
Kunshan City (Phase Ill)

Total consumption during the Year 5,265

—  During the Year, the Production Base at Gu Cheng
Road was at the decoration period and had not
been put into production.

—  Exhaust emission includes welding waste gas, hot
exhaust air and other VOC gas.

4.6 Others

4.6.1 Noise Control
- The Group pays serious attention to the
noise effect from plant manufacturing to
the surroundings, and formulated the Noise
Management Regulation ( (1£Z &2 #15%) )
to regulate its staff.

—  The Group engages a professional third party
to conduct a noise monitoring exercise every
year, and assures noise level is in conformity to
statutory standards.

@ Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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Sets up respective departments for the
introduction, development, research, application
and marketing of new noise abatement
technology, enhances employees’ training and
propaganda.

Conducted noise inspection in Production
Bases according to the Occupational Exposure
Limits for Hazardous Agents in the Workplace.
Part 2: Physical Agents ( (Z{ES B EHR
EBEZBERAESZ 2N - WEER) ) (GBZ
2.2-2007) of National Occupational Health
Standards of the People’s Republic of China,
and all the check points were in line with
requirements of relevant regulations.

4.6.2 Greenhouse gas emission

In recent years, the Group is preparing the
Greenhouse Gases Regulations ( (& E R
LEIBPE%) ). The Group has preliminarily
planned the scope of greenhouse gas data
collection, and will start relevant specific work
in due course.

4.6.3 Non-hazardous waste disposal

The non-hazardous waste disposal sources are

mainly generated from three aspects, which the

Group has set up relevant management initiatives:

Engineering construction: Re-engineering,
repairing, new engineering works for
equipment and surrounding Production
Base should be conducted in the Production
Base periodically. The Group required that
before entering into contracts, contractors
must provide respective documents such as
Treatment of Waste Regulations ( (EEZ¥ R
B HEE) ) and Environmental Guidelines
( (3R¥ZEJ7E) ) and ensure appropriate
treatment of building debris.
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- Packaging materials and household waste in — BEYPHREERERE
dormitories: Adopt the “sort first then treat” Y ERAEDE BE
principle. Wastes will be gathered and will be IR Bl o £ Uk £ BE
dealt with by professional institution selected Y LABRZE R 77 A PGE
by tender. BXEMBEIE-

Compliance with Rules aMIER
During the Year, we were not aware of any material EAREERN  KEBEWEA IR
non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to B B EE R IR R AR S
Environmental emissions. ERERIIENR
5 Social 5 #g

5.1 Social-related Policies 51 #EHBEHX
The Group has a series of policies in place to manage NEFEFZE —ZRIHNKEELS
the issues related to various aspects of the society. The BEBATCESTEMNZEE  BX
policies are applicable to the following scopes: AR TEEE :
e Child and forced labour e EAREINBKH LS
o Product responsibility e EmEME
e Occupational Health and safety o RE@EFRHZLTSE
e Anti-corruption e RE]F
e Employment and Staff welfare e EELEIRERN
e  Staff development and training o BT %ENEI
e Supply chain management o (hEEHEIE
e Community investment e HEIE

@ Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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5.2 Child and forced labour 52 REREIRRHIEE
—  The Group respects talents and is committed to — AEEBEAT  BAOARE
provide a quality, diversify and impartial working H—EES - - Zxk - 2F
environment without discrimination. The human NIE AR FHEERS T
resources department pays attention to the labour ERF - AN BEREEEBFT
laws and relevant regulations on a regular basis, EHIRRE S A R AB &
and is in strict compliance with relevant national Bl R EFEK AR
laws and regulations, including but not limited to KRB BEETERR (R
Labour Law of the PRC ( (FFE AR KX FIE 4 & EARAEMBE LB E)
%) ), Minors Protection Law ( (R Ak F A 1R & (REKF AREZE) F [
%) ), and has always been highly concerned BRI IAMRES THA
about labour rights, career development and safety. EBEERLEL R
Forced Labour B E
Working overtime is a common problem during the FEESBEZEARSEN NN
peak production season of the Group, but the Group MREE BEAREERFT®A
will not force any employee to work overtime. Instead, FEREIT M AP REZER
the Group will manage employees’ overtime hours BITMREHE - AE T MR
through centralized system and employees can apply to i WERE ERABER=/)
work overtime voluntarily with a daily overtime working BF o 10 B BR AN EE )R MO SR I E -
hours cap of three hours. The Group adopts a flexible WHEREIHLEUNEREYE
paid leave system to ensure the health and balance ER-

development of employees.
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Our employees have good impression on the Company
as a whole. The annual turnover rate was less than 3%
for functional staff. Proportion of male and female worker
in the production line of production bases is 3:2, which
is an average proportion and no discrimination against
female employees is found.

Child Labour

— The Group has formulated policies to clearly
prohibit child labour, established a confidential and
anonymous complaint mechanism and regularly
reviews the procedures of recruitment agencies to
ensure the verification of the age of their employees
as a standard process and makes it a selecting
criteria of agents. If job application of child labour
is found, the Group will communicate with its
legal guardian and arrange handling methods. If
there is illegal behavior, platforms for reporting to
management are established within the Group,
for example, employees can report in person or
by e-mails. Further, to protect underage workers
between 16 and 18 years old, the Group will
not arrange them to work night shift nor work in
relatively high-polluted painting workshops.

Compliance with Rules

During the Year, we were not aware of any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations regarding labour
standards, and obtained the compliance certificate
in terms of labor employment granted by Human
Resources and Social Security Bureau of Kunshan City.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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5.3 Product responsibility 53 EmERE

The Group strictly complied with the Law of the
PRC on Product Quality ( (PEARKLAMBHEHE
®,%5) ) and other product-related laws to establish
formal management policies for the health and safety,
advertisement, label and privacy of products and set
up specific policies on process quality control and
finished product management. Besides, the Group has
obtained ISO9000 product quality control certificate and
conducted customer satisfaction survey regularly.

To ensure no hazardous substances contained in raw
materials, the Group regularly required raw material
suppliers to provide authoritative third-party institution’s
inspection reports. All products must go through
stringent internal inspection before delivery. Besides, the
Group also entrusts a third-party institution for sample
testing in accordance with international and domestic
standards from time to time.

In order to protect customers’ privacy, the Group has
obtained the ISO 27001 certificate, which confirmed the
Group’s achievements and efforts in information safety
management.

—  Customers are generally satisfied with our product
quality and services. With increasing awareness of
green products, customers also pay more attention
to the groups’ efforts on environmental and social
issues in the supply chain. For example, they
require suppliers to provide environmental impact
assessment and social responsibility reports. The
Group will try its best to cooperate with customers,
jointly contributing to national green development.
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HERERAERE

Compliance with Rules

During the Year, we were not aware of any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations regarding product
responsibility.

Occupational Health and Safety

The principal business of the Group is to produce
camera and fingerprint recognition modules, which
belongs to the light electronic industry. Therefore, it will
not pose a serious safety problem to employees in the
manufacturing process generally. However, during the
production process, there is still a chance of exposure
to risks arising from hazardous chemicals and potential
fire hazard. The Group strictly complied with relevant
safety laws and regulations such as the PRC Production
Safety Law ( (FEARZEMEZ 2 EEE) ) and Safe
Production Regulations of Jiangsu Province ( (T # & %
A EEHY ), formulated and implemented the Code
of Practice on Safety and Health ( (X2 &4 T1EF
Bl]) ) and the Hazards Realization Project ( (/&= =T
2l) ), arranged specific occupational safety and health
personnel for the Company, and regularly identified,
assessed and controlled the hazards related to work
environment or operation. The Group'’s efforts to ensure
a safe working environment are highly recognized and
have obtained OSHAS18001 safety certificate and the
compliance certificate in terms of work safety granted
by Administration of Work Safety and Environmental
Protection of Kunshan Hi-tech Industrial Development
Park and passed the certification processes such as the
Level 3 standard inspection for safety and urban risk
assessment.
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The measures for occupational health and safety
implemented were as follows:

Safety Risks in the Workshop

— As some production machines inevitably produce
noise with high frequency and high decibel during
their operation, we required employees to wear
earplugs. The Group’s Safety Working Team
regularly inspected the wearing of earplugs, masks
and gloves for employees.

— The Group cooled high-heat production machines
with recycled pure water to help reduce the
temperature in the workshop.

—  The Group has appointed a qualified third party to
evaluate the occupational hazards in the Production
Base according to relevant national occupational
health laws and regulations and to prepare an
inspection report. No violations were found.

Fire Training and Dirills

- The Group has a complete firefighting and
safety management system in place. Under the
Surveillance and Measurement Control Program
((ESRBEERAESIERF) ), the Group conducts
two fire drills every year, assesses and improves
the efficiency and smoothness of the drills, such as
emergency evacuation route, whether all staff are
in place within time limit, examines and maintains
fire prevention and extinguishing apparatus regularly
and installs smoke detectors.

—  The Group has appointed safety officers to regularly
inspect the safety of the workplace, conduct
training and assessment of occupational risks for
new recruits and existing employees, and set up
appropriate signages and instructions for areas
requiring attention in the Production Bases.
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Treatment of Hazardous Chemicals

Frontline staff will be exposed to hazardous chemicals
during the modules production process; therefore, the
Group has formulated the following codes and guidelines
to ensure employees’ safety:

- Chemicals Management Regulations ( {{t & & 3%
#7E) ) to strictly supervise and control the reserve
and utilization of chemicals through an inventory in-
and-out form and list of chemicals and hazardous
goods to prevent misuse (such as storing privately)
of hazardous chemicals.

— Disposed Chemicals and Materials Management
Practices ( (EEELEm KM EERIIER) ),
requiring the units of the Group to properly classify
and collect hazardous chemicals, and to the extent
possible, consider treatment ways that can both
reduce hazard caused to the environment and
economically viable.

In addition, the Group is aware of the crucial importance
of staff training for the treatment of hazardous
chemicals. Therefore, the Group provided chemical
management personnel regular trainings on chemical
safety instructions to ensure corresponding reasonable
treatment measures will be taken in emergencies,
established an inventory in-and-out form and list of
chemicals and hazardous goods to strictly supervise
and control the storage and utilization of chemicals,
formulated hazardous substances list and safety data
sheet, standardized the label of hazardous substances
and strengthened the hazards related training to
establish the awareness of all staff to potential hazards
and prevent the occurrence of hazards.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Compliance with Rules

During the Year, we were not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations regarding
occupational health and safety, and obtained the
compliance certificate of production safety granted
by Administration of Work Safety and Environmental
Protection of Kunshan Hi-tech Industrial Development
Park.

5.5 Anti-corruption

— The Group considers anti-corruption as main
commercial ethics principle among enterprises
and firmly refuses damages to the fair competition
environment in society. Accordingly, the Group has
formal management policies in place to prevent
bribery, blackmail, fraud and money laundering.
Related provisions are also clearly set out in
employment contracts, and all employees shall read
relevant content within the contract before signing
it. Besides, our internal Employee Manual stipulated
the requirements that employees shall comply with,
including Prevention of Bribery Ordinance ( {Fj 185
BERARBI) ) .

— The Group implements the policy of “Sunshine
Procurement”, which strictly requires that two or
more employees must be present when conducting
price negotiation with suppliers and no employee
is allowed to meet customers alone. In evaluating
suppliers, the scores are given by several
departments together to avoid concentration
of authorities on a few of senior managements.
Meanwhile, employees are encouraged to report via
face-to-face reporting or emails to Board members
if any non-compliance issue is identified.
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R HERERRSE

- The Group’s clients maintain high requirement
to our performance in anti-corruption, and our
major customers regularly caution the Group’s
sales staffs to remind their suppliers the potential
corruption problems that may arise in negotiation.
The Group responses to it seriously, and has
formulated relevant operation procedures for anti-
fraud and anti-corruption according to the relevant
circumstances and conducted induction training for
employees.

Compliance with Rules
During the Year, there was no non-compliance incident
with relevant anti-corruption regulations that have
significant impact on the Group nor any incidents related
to significant corruption.

5.6 Others

5.6.1 Employment and staff welfare

— The Group has well-established personnel
policies in place, which cover remuneration
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, holidays, equal opportunities,
anti-discrimination, other benefits and welfares
and so on. To maintain transparency, staff
benefits and responsibilities are clearly stated
in Employees Manual.

The Group strictly complies with the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China
((REARXELMELE L) ), the Minors
Protection Law ( (R F AR#EE) ) and
other personnel related laws and regulations.
Staffs have equal and fair access to promotion.
The Group conducts work review, reporting
and KPI analysis every quarter and its
remuneration standard is market competitive.
The Group also has established platforms
such as interview, e-mail and regular staff
communication meetings, etc. for employees
to communicate with the management.

@ Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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The Group has been committed to improve and
enhance our staff welfare and living conditions by
optimizing the accommodation environment, such
as providing free network coverage, free shuttle
bus and increasing meal fee standard. In addition,
the Group grants gift packs to its employees on
traditional festivals, increases the investment to
build a multiple-use activity center for employees,
holds various cultural events regularly such as
large-scale art performance, sports competition,
talent cultivation, staff birthday parties and travel
to create an active working sentiment and health
and harmonious lifestyle, let all staffs to get rich
experience in all aspects of work, living, arts and
entertainment, emotion and personal growth.

The Group set up a tutorial center, “Sunshine
Station” for staffs and recruited professional
psychological counsellors to provide service for
staffs such as individual psychological counselling,
group counselling and mental health training. To
assure their healthy mentality, we formulated the
“Policy on Employee Complaint Management” and
set up two-way communication mechanism to
bridge the communications between management
and employees, and improved horizontal and
vertical communication efficiency.

The Group provides support to create a family-
friendly working environment and implements
special policies for pregnant employees:

e  Excludes the employee in the third trimester of
pregnancy to work overtime

° Provides a half-day paid leaves per month
to the employee in the first six months of
gestation period
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° Provides a full-day paid leaves per month
to the employee in the seventh and eighth
months of gestation period

° Provides a full-day paid leaves on a semi-
month basis to the employee in gestation
period above eighth months

e The employee in lactation period may enjoy
one hour leave daily and is permitted to arrive
late or leave early.

Compliance with Rules

During the Year, we were not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations regarding
employment and labour practices.

5.6.2 Staff Development & Training

—  The Human Resources Department formulates
the annual corporate and department training
programs to implement employee learning and
growth opportunities and provides no less than
20 hours of external or internal training for staff
and offers general knowledge, management
and technical related courses to different
employee groups. With a comprehensive
training regime, the Group provides employee
a dual career development system for
management and professionalism and conduct
many activities such as “Mentorship”, “Joy
Sharing”, “Occupational Skill Testing”, “Skill
Competition”, “Reading Society” and “Staff
Awards Presentations”, providing a staff keep
on improving platform.
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5.6.3 Supply chain management 563 HEHEEHE

— Apart from their basic reputation, qualification (such AEBHEEDE
as 1S09001 and 1SO14000), financial stability, BIRERERNEER .

cost, technical support and service, the Group
will also take into consideration the environmental
and social responsibilities policies of suppliers in
selecting suppliers and have established the formal
management policy.

Suppliers must sign environmental protection
agreement and social responsibility agreement
before commencing cooperation with the Group.
For example, strictly require the prohibition of
child labour for suppliers. Besides, the Group
will conduct an annual questionnaire survey on
suppliers and conduct site investigations from time
to time to check whether suppliers have complied
with the environmental protection agreement and
social responsibility agreement.

For suppliers that repeatedly violate the environment
or labour laws, we will terminate our partnership
with them promptly and include them in the blacklist
and never employ again.

5.6.4 Community Investment

The Group continues to practice corporate citizen
responsibility and contributes to the community and
the country by participating in charity and voluntary
activities. The Group actively promoted and
participated in activities such as “respecting and
caring for the elderlies, helping the disabled and the
poor”. During the Year, more than 30 employees of
the Group participated in the activities of caring for
the elderly at the homes for the elderly in Kunshan
City to give our warmth and blessings to them.
In addition, the Group also internally organised
activities to help the poor, and accumulated
donations of nearly RMB120,000.
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Appendix |—Index Table of Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide by
Hong Kong Stock Exchange

fiex1 —BEBBHERZ I (RiRt
BRERW|EES) REIXR

Aspects Reporting Section Remarks
B HEH e
A Environmental
A RE
A1l Emissions 4.2,4.4,45and 4.6
A1 23,87 4.2 4445846 -
A1.1  The types of emissions and 4.2, 4.4 and 4.5 During the Year, the Group disclosed three

respective emissions data.

important emissions data: hazardous waste,
wastewater discharge and air emissions.

A HEMRRE RARBHERE K 4.2 -44K45 AEBEAFERBRT-BEEENFRDMEE
BEREZEMBER - BEKBEM R RERBER -
A1.2  Greenhouse gas emissions in 4.6.2 The materiality analysis results of the Group

total (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per
facility).
A2 RERBEBENRE (LEFE)R 4.6.2
(Em) BE (MAGESER -

2,

SERHHE -

shows that greenhouse gas emissions are not
the most important environmental issues in
relative terms, thus we will consider making
disclosures on such data in the future.
AEEREEUOMERBETAERBEED
TREZENREREZR AUERMAHSERERK
{ER R BRI E -
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Aspects Reporting Section Remarks
B HEH B
A1.3  Total hazardous waste 4.2 The Group continues to disclose the total

A1.3

produced (in tonnes) and, where

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per

unit of production volume, per

facility).

FRELBEREEYEE (VAN 4.2
B (maEam)ZE (MABEES

B SHERMHE) -

amount during the Year. The Group is
considering suitable units for calculating
intensity and plans to disclose it in the future.

AEBERNFREMENERE FEELEZE
BRI ERE BN ARRELWE-

Al1.4

Al1.4

Total non-hazardous waste 4.6.83
produced (in tonnes) and, where

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per

unit of production volume, per

facility).

FREABEREZEYAE (VAN 4.6.3
Bk (WER)ZE (WAGES

B BERETE) -

The materiality analysis results of the Group
show that non-hazardous waste is not

the most important environmental issue in
relative terms, thus we will consider making
disclosures on such data in the future.
AEEEEUNTHERBTIESEMRAE TR
REENRRZBEAMBMHEE BERKE
HEANSERE-

A1.5

A1.5

Description of measures to
mitigate emissions and results
achieved.

4.2,4.4,45and 4.6-

B ESENENEENRTEK 4.24.4-45K46 -

Ho

A1.6

A1.6

Description of how hazardous
and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, reduction initiatives and
results achieved.
HlEEEERBESEENNT
%R EE BRI RTEK
B

4.2 and 4.6.3

4.2)4.6.3

2018 FH E#MBE (KE)BERLA @



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIEHERERRE

Aspects Reporting Section Remarks
=] HEH B

A2 Use of Resources 4.3 and 4.4 -

A2 BIREMA 4.3K%4.4 -

A2.1  Direct and/or indirect energy 4.3 The Group continues to disclose the tota
consumption by type (e.g. amount of electricity consumption during the
electricity, gas or oil) in total Year. The Group is considering suitable units
(kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. for calculating intensity and plans to disclose it
per unit of production volume, in the future.
per facility).

A2.1  RERESMEER/LEEER 4.3 $%EE$¢E%%&? EHRE-NEEIE
(E - ﬁﬁﬂ) BrEE (UTETF EREABIETEEE 1 B AR R AE H
REGHBE)REE (NMABEES %o
i - BERMAE) °

A2.2  Water consumption in total 4.4 The Group continues to disclose the total
and intensity (e.g. per unit of amount of water consumption during the Year.
production volume, per facility). The Group is considering suitable units for

calculating intensity and plans to disclose it in
the future.

A22 BEKEREE(NAGEES 4.4 AREERFRERRBERKEE AEEERE
i BEREAE) - EREABIETERE 2 B U N ARRIELR

Zo

A2.3  Description of energy use 4.3 -
efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

A2.3  FEEE IR B a8 NPT F AK 4.3 -

Bo

A2.4  Description of whether there is 4.4 -
any issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose, water efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.

A2.4 SR EGE A KR ERA E A 4.4 -

B A RIRT RK G B KPS
R
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Aspects Reporting Section Remarks
B HEH B
A2.5  Total packaging material used for 4.6.3 The materiality analysis results of the Group
finished products (in tonnes) and, show that packaging materials are not the
if applicable, with reference to most important environmental issues in
per unit produced. relative terms, thus we will consider making
disclosures on such data in the future.
A25 B mATABENEEAE (AN 4.6.3 AEENEEUODMERBTBEMEBE D
AR R (WER)BEEEME RREZNERZBEEAHRMEEEREKRR
2o TEMR R BRI R
A3 The Environment and Natural The Group strives to reduce the impact of its
Resources business on the environment and other natural
A3 RERXARER resources. During the reporting period, the
Group did not cause any significant pollution
A3.1  Description of the significant _ and damage to nearby air, land, water sources
impacts of activities on the and the environment. The Group’s policies and
environment and natural measures on resource use and emissions are
resources and the actions taken described in details in sections A1 and A2.
o manage then. AEEYNRELBEHERRAMRAL RS
A3 B EIIEYIEERRREEY _ AT E REPRTSAYHHLIER it
EAYEROENSESEY SN KRR ERRIREEEMEKRN)TERBEIE - K
58 S5 51 504 R 8 B R B M AR B B R B
ERATRA2ED 7 1E 7 Al 5 A -
B Social
B re
B1 Employment 5.6.1 -
B1 EE 5.6.1 -
B2 Health and Safety 5.4 -
B2 REEZZ 5.4 -
B3 Development and Training 5.6.2 -
B3  BEEE 5.6.2 -
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Aspects Reporting Section Remarks

=] HEEH B
B4 Labour Standards 5.2 -
B4 % TR 5.2 -
B5 Supply Chain Management 5.6.3 -
B5S  ftEHEER 5.6.3 -
B6 Product Responsibility 5.3 -
B6 EmER 5.3 -
B7 Anti-corruption 5.5 -
B7 R&ES 5.5 -
B8 Community Investment 5.6.4 -
B8 HERE 5.6.4 -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Q
Technology (Group) Company Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 161 to 308, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BB RS

e

BEHSNE (EE)BERATRR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 BETHR S

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s

Our responsibilities

responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Timing of revenue recognition

Wy 55 72 52 B b

BB RS

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies Note 1(v) on page 212.

RO AN A2 R FE2128 8) @ HBOR AL 1(V)

The Key Audit Matter
HRETEHE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESTTNEELE

The Group’s revenue arises from the sales of camera and
fingerprint recognition modules.

BERENERREEBEREBELIEHERRAENHE -

The Group enters into a framework sales agreement with
each major customer and manufactures products based
on purchase orders. Products are delivered to a location
designated by the respective customer where they undergo
a quality examination. After satisfactory completion of
the quality examination the control over the products is
considered to have been transferred to the respective
customer and revenue is recognised.
EEFEXTIBRFAIVIEREE NS URERBIIES
EEm EmXNERBEEFPNETCHHITETER - FE
RITROME R FRAEMERIRRESCEERERAER
T MR M A

Qur audit procedures to assess the timing of
revenue recognition included the following:

BARHE N EERRRN BT EFEEATIE

e inspecting contracts with customers, on a
sample basis, to understand the terms of
the sale transactions, including the terms of
delivery and goods acceptance and any sales
return arrangements, to assess the Group’s
revenue recognition criteria with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

s WMEREHEFFPNAK THEEXZINENK
BREEMER LBIEIRF AR EFHERE
ZH U ESRENKREEREEESSHA
WITEFHERINENR:

(=)
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 BETHR S

The Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EETPNEEL X

We identified the timing of revenue recognition as a
key audit matter because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and therefore there is
an inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of recognition
of revenue by management to meet specific targets or
expectations.

BB U RERREERBREFFE SR KRATEE
EEEBENNARER — FEEBERATEIREAR
sl HA 8 1 15 A0 Wi 2 R SRR B O (B B L B o
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assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific
revenue transactions around the financial year
end had been recognised in the appropriate
financial period on the basis of the terms
of sale as set out in the sales contracts by
comparing the details in the relevant sales
invoices to customers’ acceptance documents
or customers’ inventory records which are
available from shared platforms the customers
have with the Group;

B R M 0 45 0 I 2 2 5 1T MR
L BEBHEERFBEEPRIKMEZBE 3
EEEEZEFPAZTA N FELSZY T
R E TR RBEHESRTNHEERRERE
B B 5 EA R 3R

o

scrutinising the sales ledger after the year
end to identify sales returns and inspecting
relevant underlying documentation to assess if
the related adjustments to revenue had been
accounted for in the appropriate financial
period; and
BEFHEBENHEED SR BRIHEERE Wig
BB FEX - AT E BN KRS HE R
BHEEE O BEEER &

% /

scrutinising all the sales journals raised
throughout the reporting period and comparing
details of a sample of these journals, which
met certain risk-based criteria, with relevant
underlying documentation.
RERETHAMENHE D REETEAR
RER IS S H A



Independent Auditor’s Report

Loss allowance for trade receivables

BEZRBRENBERE

BB RS

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial staterments and the

accounting policies Note 1(l)(i) on page 186.

D2 EHUEIREN 16K F186 8 1) & 51 B K HT a2 1(1)

(i) °

The Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EETPNEESL X

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s gross trade receivables
totalled RMB2,833,709,000, against which allowances of
RMB531,000 were recorded.
BHE_ZE-/\FT_A=1T—1H E5EEFRKFIELE
A AR ®2,833,709,0007T  $t ¥ 52 K IH RETEHRBHE R A
K #531,0007T °

The Group’s allowances are based on management’s
estimate of the expected credit losses to be incurred, which
is estimated by taking into account the ageing of overdue
balances, the repayment history of the Group’s individual
customers, current market conditions and customer-
specific conditions, all of which involve a significant degree
of management judgement.
EXEEENEREHRARABELENEABRNMTTRE
WobEtHBREZE T ARRBENERK EEEZEATRPY
BIPEHE RONTSREUAREFNFEER BLEE
HERKEE LS RERRE -

Our audit procedures to assess the loss allowance
for trade receivables included the following:
BMFFEE ZERUENEBEREENETIEF B
AT A

e  obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt
collection and estimate of expected credit
losses;

e THEREHFGEEH BRAEWRFBEHEE
R AR AEES - WA EE LR
EBFE G B R AT AT BT R AL

e assessing whether items were correctly
categorised in the trade receivables ageing
report by comparing a sample of individual
items with underlying sales invoices;

s WMBEREEFHEUFIBRHEHRBET AT
HE ZRUGIARE REN D MHE S ERE:
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BB

The Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EETPNEEL X

We identified the loss allowance for trade receivables as a
key audit matter because the Group’s customers are mainly
smartphone manufacturers which are facing challenges in
terms of their profitability due to the competitive market
environment, which increases the inherent uncertainty in
assessing the loss allowance for trade receivables, and
because determining the level of allowances requires the
exercise of significant management judgement.

B E SRUGIEBRBEERBRENFH SEARE
SENEFIERERTFRER RERMNNTISHF
EFRE NN ERPE - Mg T EEEFEE SR
REEBRBHENEETEEN  TEAEEREKTAITR
BBREEEE FIE -

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018

obtaining an understanding of the basis
of management’s judgements about the
recoverability of individually material and
all overdue trade receivable balances and
evaluating the allowances recognised by
management for these balances with reference
to the debtors’ financial condition, the industry
in which the debtors are operating, the ageing
of overdue balances and historical and post
year end payment records; and
THREBBHEBEHEARMEAHE HEK
FIEREA AT RE N ER WRB2EED
ARIBA TSRO BT A RIS PREE 61T 5 ~ B EASR
MR  BERRERTE UTHEIEE
AZERBERNEE K&

inspecting, on a sample basis, cash receipts
from customers subsequent to the financial
year end relating to trade receivable balances at
31 December 2018.

HE T - N\F+ZA=+—HEZHEWHE
B MEBREEFPRVBELBZOHERIE
Mo



Independent Auditor’s Report

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information; we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

BB RS
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 BETHR S

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

BB RS
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 BETHR S

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Chu Fai.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BOfERER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - — \F+-_A=1+—HILtFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (A A RE%I7R)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
K1t ARBT T ARET T
(Note)
(H&EE)
Revenue Ik 35 2 8,135,161 7,938,958
Cost of sales EER=S N (7,782,053) (7,056,225)
Gross profit EF 353,108 882,733
Other revenue EAth Uk 25 3 133,113 35,099
Other net loss H g8 3 (50,223) (23,931)
Selling and distribution expenses 44 & 43 4459 &% (18,562) (16,045)
Administrative and other TR b s s B &
operating expenses (81,201) (64,955)
Research and development EsEe %
expenses (266,198) (269,556)
Profit from operations 4R SH R 70,037 543,345
Finance costs A& R AR 4(a) (44,146) (16,912)
Share of loss of an associate NG g (24,561) (16,918)
Profit before taxation BR B A S R 4 1,330 509,515
Income tax FT1E R 5 13,069 (73,238)
Profit for the year FEREF 14,399 436,277
Attributable to: B
Equity shareholders of AT HEZE A
the Company 14,399 436,277
Profit for the year F R F 14,399 436,277
Earnings per share BREF RMB Cents RMB Cents
AR® S AR
Basic K 9 1.3 39.8
Diluted e 9 1.3 38.9
The accompanying notes on pages 168 to 308 form part of  55168Z308 B & Ha M i 51 18 A i% 5 B 7%
these financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity ¥ Z< #) — 2810 ° 5 B & 4 A 1 &) B A 5
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the year A A 4G 5 R M| 2 B B 2 78 15 $
are set out in Note 28(b). FF28(b) °
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
effERkHMZERER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A A R%I7R)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B at ARE T AR¥ETTT
(Note)
(P 7E)
Profit for the year FREF 14,399 436,277
Other comprehensive income HFRHEMEEKE (BRHER
for the year (after tax and EFPEARRE)
reclassification adjustments):
ltem that may be reclassified HgskegsHoEe
subsequently to profit or loss: BmMIER :
- Exchange differences on — R AR B A b DA SN BT
translation of the financial NS E g0
statements of subsidiaries b ZE%8
outside the Mainland China (23,667) (12,739)
Other comprehensive income HFREMEZEUE
for the year 8 (23,667) (12,739)
Total comprehensive income  FREZHEUFELEE
for the year (9,268) 423,538
Attributable to: 58
Equity shareholders of RRRIREREE A
the Company (9,268) 423,538
Total comprehensive income  FRE2HEUFEEE
for the year (9,268) 423,538

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 January Fiit: AEBER_Z—N\F— A —BH¥IFE

2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative FBBR B 75 R 5 2E R 551558 SR B BR B
information is not restated. See Note 1(c). B EERESR - BIBEEEZBES

EOHBERLEED - BT -

The accompanying notes on pages 168 to 308 form part of these 55168 E 308 B A K& M I 5T 18 AX 5% 55 B1 7%
financial statements. Wz — 1 o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
SO IR R

as at 31 December 2018 R —_ZE— N\F+_-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B it AR® T AREFT
(Note)
(H3E)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W WEMEE 10 1,888,524 1,480,662
Interest in an associate i) o WNCIEE ok 12 229,407 258,318
Lease prepayments HEEMNFIE 13 51,790 16,632
Intangible assets mVEE 14 1,427 1,154
Deferred tax assets RIERIIAE B 27(c) 21,985 7,672
Prepayment for acquisition of W IE R B) & E R TR FRIB
non-current assets 10,770 176,666
Deposits ®’e 7,050 12,050
2,210,953 1,953,154
Current assets REEE
Inventories B 15 703,818 688,041
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E A Uy 508 16 3,031,367 2,035,045
Other financial assets HithvemEE 17 - 873,486
Derivative financial assets PTESREE 18 105,251 7,073
Pledged bank deposits B RIRITIER 19 288,302 78,469
Cash and cash equivalents HeEMEE2EED 20 99,920 464,982
4,228,658 4,147,096
Current liabilities RBAE
Bank borrowings RITIER 21 1,178,241 1,078,119
Trade and other payables B 5 K E M S 508 22 3,061,432 2,830,117
Contract liabilities AHBEE 23 28,391 -
Derivative financial liabilities TTETRBE 18 201 17,989
Current tax payable FET BN ERF IR 27(a) 1,835 8,033
4,270,100 3,934,258
Net current (liabilities)/assets # B (BfE) &EEFE (41,442) 212,838
Total assets less BEERARBDAEE
current liabilities 2,169,511 2,165,992

(AAR®SIR)

2018F 3 ESABE (RE)ARAT



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BOFF BRI &R

as at 31 December 2018 R=Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A ARE%I7R)

Non-current liabilities kFRBEE
Deferred income PEFE WA
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEE
NET ASSETS EEFE
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#HE
Share Capital fi% A
Reserves Gk

TOTAL EQUITY B

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25
March 2019.

He Ningning .
o Directors
Wang Jiangiang

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 January

2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 1(c).

The accompanying notes on pages 168 to 308 form part of these
financial statements.
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2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B it ARE T AREFT
(Note)

(K3E)

24 65,648 14,598
27(c) 428 5,737
66,076 20,335

2,103,435 2,145,657

28 9,022 8,895
28 2,094,413 2,136,762
2,103,435 2,145,657

REEFEN _T-NAF=A_+HB#H
o R IR T

E=x

MaE: AEER - NF—-HF—RNIE
PR B IR B 75 ¥ o 2 RIS 1657 K BIRR B
BREENESR -RIBFEEZBES
EHBERLEED - R -

%£168ZE 308 & A BE M M 5T AK 5% 55 1 7%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHEREER
—N\F+

(Expressed in Renminbi)

T—HIEFE
(RAAR®ZIR)

—A=

—=

for the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z=

o gy
%2 e B T2 [y [ 8% 68 & 80€E Wuwmw W % "'SJUBWSIL]S [eloueUl 8s8y) Jo ued wlio) g0g 01 9| sebed uo selou BulAuedwoooe ay |
.4 =1
- Q)1
B
=R ‘()| 810U 98S "pPoleISal 10U S| UOIBWIOIUI 9AIlBIEdWOD ‘USSOYD Spoylaw
B MY uonIsuel} 8y} Jepun gLog Atenuer | 1 6 Sl pue G SY4| peldde Ajenul sey dnoin eyl 810N
159612 956'0.6 1682 99 18894} LIO'Vy HL0'000°} G68'8 H-4+=ZH=+H3-&-H L10¢ J9quiadaq ¢ e sy
- (v08'v1) - - v08'yY - - - (Wipkez YUV E LT Y S6MBs8) AI0JNIBIS Did 01 Uopendoiddy
(Gr1'26) (Sv1'6) - - - - - - sz TYY WY S —TE 1eak snoinaid Jo 10adsal U panoidde spusping
590'6. - - - - - 168911 891 (folsz 0 Lmﬂm@ WHEW_ZY  eWepUBW eieusd Japun UaWa0BId 8L} Joj penss| seieyg
089' - (s62) - - - £06'L 74k (olse YL ERERIYEY 8Uaas Uojdo aleys Japn panss| saleys
v0L'9 - 70L'9 - - - - - @ LUENUEY U EESTEY suopoesues) Juswied paseq-aleys paes fnb3
) wmmmmqu o MNm%mqu T - - AMmM,Nl:u T . Jeal 8y} Jo} 8LUOOUI BAISUBYLIAWOD e30]
(6e2'21) - - - - (66221 - - BHETHY 3UI0OUI BAISUBYRICLIOD JOLI0
LTy L1298y - - - - - - iﬁ@& Jeok 8U} 1o} 1joid
BEBHELZYI-& 1110z 4oy Aunba ul sabueyn
696'296"} 829'919 a9’ 9 1002, 962'eS Heels G09'8 H-H-$3-&-¥ 110z fienuer | ye sy
GEY'E0H'e G/6'788 8867 99 669'G2} 05¢'L} G6e'190'} 220’6 H—+=HZ+3\V—&°H 810¢ Joquiadaq ¢ e sy
- (8s'9) - - 88/'8 - - - (iolez 89 T S3M8sal AIONIRIS D O} uopendoiddy
(cz9'16) (cza't6) - - - - - - A TYY WY ES—TE zeak snoineud Jo Joadssl ul psroidde spuspiig
£65'7S - 816'9) - - - 788'19 et (lez YRR LRy aWBLS UONAO Bleys Japun panss! saieus
.0 - 5.0 - - - - - @ LXENBEYYYUEEYTRY suopoesuel) juslufed peseq-sJeys paies Ainb3
(89z'6) 66671 - - - (199'2) - - BHOHETMY 183k 8U} 0} BLIOOUI BAISUBYIALIOD e10)
(199'¢2) - - - - (299'¢2) - - W&EM@( 3WO00Ul BAISUBYRIAWO Jaui)
6667 6657+ - - - - - - a4 Jesh 8} 1o} oid
EESHE\ -5 & 1810z 40} Aynba ur sebueyn
159512 956'0.6 1682 9 188941 LIO'Vy HL0'000°} G68'8 H-H-3\V-&=H 810¢ Arenuer | je sy
Wogzzly  WioezEy  WokeEy  (seEY  (bszEY ey
Wil eion — lblezaiov - (ibkz ey (lolez sl Iz sioN (982 sioN
YpgHEY YrgAY YAy LAY LAY LAY YpgHEY YEgdY Zly
000.8Wd 000.8Wd 000.8NY 000.9NY 000.9Wd 000.9Nd 000.9Wd 000.9Nd 2ol
E# [1:4:54 YEEY YENE YEIXEw HBYF BROY 2}
BERGHY
WEHREY
[e3oL syjoud EIVERS) EIVER) EIVER) aMI9sal wnjwaid [eydea
pauleey juswiAed 1By fiopnjels o4d  aBueyox3 aleys aleys

paseqg-aleys
pojnes Anb3

I3
&
mxX
i

2018 F R E#MBIE (K



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BORSRER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A A R%I7R)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt it ARBT R AR¥ETTT
(Note)
(M)
Operating activities REEE
Cash (used in)/generated from e (A /FisH e
operations 20(b) (159,754) 2,296,626
Income tax paid ERATEE (12,751) (75,113)
Net cash (used in)/generated  &R&EE (FrA),/
from operating activities FEREFHE (172,505) 2,221,513
Investing activities RETE
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE BB KE#E
property, plant and equipment Fr 5 k18 3,529 14
Payment for purchase of BEIMBEEMNIE
non-current assets (493,496) (949,246)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits 4 (38 40) 173 720 (12,050)
Acquisition of an associate W B Bt 2 N A - (275,236)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) of RELEOE M HEEN
purchase and redemption of BE&FRA CRt)
other financial assets 873,486 (865,744)
Proceeds from/ TSI AMAERE
(net premium paid for) (B #EFH)
derivative financial instruments 4,650 (35,092)
Payment for purchase of BEMAE T HE
leasehold land (28,133) -
Interest received B W F 8 25,765 18,377
Net cash generated from/ REZBME (FA)
(used in) investing activities REFHE 386,521 (2,118,977)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
A1;FIE$IJII: 2%

for the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—Z— N\F+_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR¥77R)

Financing activities

Proceeds from share issued
under shares option scheme

Proceeds from share issued
for the Placement

Proceeds from bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Increase in pledged bank deposits

Interest paid
Dividends paid

Net cash (used in)/generated
from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in
cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 December

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 January
2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 1(c).

The accompanying notes on pages 168 to 308 form part of these

financial statements.

2018 2017
—E-N\F —+tF
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MEETE (FTA) B
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ReRBLEEW CAD)
3 hnE &R (369,989) 414,162
R—A—BHWEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2018 ==
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

—N\FEt+-A=+—H

Significant accounting policies

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 1(c) provides information of any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 comprise the Company, its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group's interest in an associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHEKE (2Z)

(b) Basis of preparation and presentation

(b) BERESINEXE ()

(continued)

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), rounded to the nearest thousand unless
otherwise indicated as the Group’s principal activities
were carried out in the PRC. RMB is the functional
currency for the Company’s subsidiary established in the
Mainland China. The functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries outside the Mainland China is US
dollars.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below:

—  Derivative financial instruments (Note 1(f));
—  Other financial assets (Note 1(h)).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB41,442,000. These
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis as the Company’s board
of directors based on (i) the Group has entered into
agreements with several banks and obtained banking
facilities totalling approximately RMB2,601,888,000.
As at 31 December 2018, un-utilised banking facilities
amounted to approximately RMB1,271,229,000; (ii)
during the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
reported a net profit of approximately RMB14,399,000.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation and presentation

(continued)

In addition, based on the cash flow forecast of the Group
for the year ending 31 December 2019, the Company’s
board of directors considered that the Group is able to
obtain adequate liquidity to finance the working capital
and capital expenditure requirements of the Group for
the twelve months ending 31 December 2019. The
directors are of the opinion that the assumptions and
sensitivities which are included in the cash flow forecast
are reasonable and that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgments about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

TESTHBE (&)

(b) MAERZINEE (&F

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

(b) Basis of preparation and presentation

(c)

(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 33.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of new IFRSs and
amendments to IFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements:

()  IFRS 9, Financial instruments

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period, except for the amendments to IFRS
9, Prepayment features with negative compensation
which have been adopted at the same time as IFRS 9.
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31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEFERE (&)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) BstHEES (£Z
(i)  IFRS 9, Financial instruments () EIBEI B EEREIN £/

IA

IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39, Financial instruments: B R B 74 3 45 ZE Bl 5595k BY

recognition and measurement. It sets out the KRB R et 28] E3950 &

requirements for recognising and measuring FTE MRANTE-HEH

financial assets, financial liabilities and some JIERANGTESHEE &

contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. MEEMTEYESIES A
BEHWHETE -

The Group has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively to REBEDRBREBERTEHRN

items that existed at 1 January 2018 in accordance - N\F—-A—BEFEH

with the transition requirements. Based on the THHEMERBRERTSRE

assessment by the Group, there is no significant ERFEQRE - RBIEAERF 2

cumulative effect of the initial application of IFRS 9 S BEREEERTER

at 1 January 2018 in accordance with the transition —E-NF—A—HBEKXE

requirement. Comparative information continues to B B0 B2 B 7% s 25 £ Bl 595

be reported under IAS 39. MEXNRFTTE LR ER
TABREBERE T ERE
395k 2

There is no impact of transition to IFRS 9 on B0 B B 75 R 5 HE BI85 95k 2

retained earnings and reserves at 1 January 2018. BEHN —_ZTE—-—NFE—HF—
A2 REBER R FHEEILES
éiiﬁ o

Further details of the nature and effect of the BT ETBRE M

changes to previous accounting policies and the B REENBE AR E

transition approach are set out below: —FEFHEEHNT
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31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

TESTHBE (&)

(c) Bt BEEE (&

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued) () EBEBHREERFEIY M

Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities

IFRS 9 categories financial assets into three
principal classification categories: measured
at amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL). These
supersede IAS 39’s categories of held-to-
maturity investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets measured at FVPL. The classification
of financial assets under IFRS 9 is based on
the business model under which the financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash
flow characteristics. Under IFRS 9, derivatives
embedded in contracts where the host is a
financial asset in the scope of the standard
are not separated from the host. Instead, the
hybrid instrument as a whole is assessed for
classification.

The following table and the accompanying
notes explain the original measurement
categories for each class of the Group’s
financial assets under IAS 39 and new
measurement categories under IFRS 9. There
is no re-measurement for the adoption of IFRS
9.

IR (#&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHE (#Z)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) BstHEES (£Z
(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued) () EBEBHREERFEIY M
ITE (&)
a. Classification of financial assets and financial a THEERTHEENS
liabilities (continued) 2B (E)
Carrying Carrying
Original New amount at amount at
classification  classification 31 December 1 January
under under 2017 under 2018 under
IAS 39 IFRS 9 1AS 39 IFRS 9
BEEEE:

ERFI0R REERHHE
RZF—tF REEHFOR

BEEEE RIEERSE +-A RZE-)\&E
AEBI 5395 WEERFI5, =+—HM —A—B#H
iohsS bRl P IpaR FEAE RHEE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iris AREFT ARETR
Financial assets SREE
Deposits b (1) Loans and Amortised cost
receivables  H A
EX kYR 12,050 12,050
Trade and B 5 REMEKE ©)  Loans and Amortised cost
other receivables receivables M A
B R ENGE 2,035,045 2,035,045
Other financial assets HiemEE (3 Available-for-  FVPL
sale financial &2 FEF A
assets Bx
HRtESE
BE 873,486 873,486
Derivative fThEeBEE (4)  Financial assets FVPL
financial assets measured  RAFEFA
at FVPL B&
BRATERA
BETEMN
CREE 7,073 7,073
Pledged DEMRITER (1) Loans and Amortised cost
bank deposits receivables  H R A
SRR EYIE 78,469 78,469
Cash and ReRREEED ) Loans and Amortised cost
cash equivalents receivables  E A
ERRENGR 464,982 464,982
Total financial assets BoBMEE 3,471,105 3,471,105
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31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

a.  Classification of financial assets and financial

liabilities (continueq)

Q)

Deposits and pledged bank deposits that were
previously classified as loans and receivables
are now classified as financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The Group intends to hold
the assets to maturity to collect contractual
cash flows by payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents that were previously classified as
loans and receivables are now classified as
financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The Group intends to hold the financial assets

to maturity to collect contractual cash flows.

Other financial assets that were previously
classified as available-for-sale financial assets
are now classified as financial assets measured
at FVPL.

Derivative financial assets that were previously
classified as financial assets measured at FVPL
are now continue to be classified as financial
assets measured at FVPL.
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31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =AHEAN UARKEDIR)

FEEFBX (&)

(c) Bt BEEE (&)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued) (i)

BRI B EER|F9% 2/

Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities (continued)

For an explanation of how the Group classifies
and measures financial assets and recognises
related gains and losses under IFRS 9, see
respective accounting policy notes in notes

1(f), ), (o) and (r).

The measurement categories for all financial
liabilities remain the same. The carrying
amounts for all financial liabilities at 1 January
2018 have not been impacted by the initial
application of IFRS 9.

The Group did not designate or de-designate
any financial asset or financial liability at FVPL
at 1 January 2018.

Credit losses

IFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in
IAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” (ECL)
model. The ECL model requires an ongoing
measurement of credit risk associated with
a financial asset and therefore recognises
ECLs earlier than under the
accounting model in IAS 39.

“incurred loss”

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

U

(ii)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

b.  Credit losses (continued)

The Group applies the new ECL model to
financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables, deposits and Pledged
bank deposits).

For further details on the Group’s accounting
policy for accounting for credit losses, see note

1(1)(0).

The Group has concluded that there would be
no material impact for the initial application of
the new impairment requirements.

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue and some costs from contracts
with customers. IFRS 15 replaces IAS 18, Revenue,
which covered revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and IAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specified the accounting for
construction contracts.
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31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEFERE (&)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(c) Bt BEEE (&)

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with

(i) EIBREI R EERF15% K

customers (continued)

IFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements which
aim to enable users of the financial statements
to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers.

The Group’s business model is straight forward and
its contracts with customers for the sale of goods
include only single performance obligation. The
Group has concluded that revenue from sale should
be recognised at the point in time when a customer
obtains control. The adoption of IFRS 15 does not
have a significant impact on the Group’s revenue
recognition.

Under IFRS 15, a contract liability, rather than a
payable, is recognised when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due, before
the Group recognises the related revenue. The
initial application of IFRS 15 recognised the opening
balance of contract liabilities of approximately
RMB24,099,000 at 1 January 2018. Comparative
information is not restated.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHEKE (2Z)

(d) Subsidiaries (d) MERAT

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-Group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-Group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-Group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 1(l)(ii)).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the

financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the associate or joint venture that forms part of the
Group’s equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (Note 1(l)(ii)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax
items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

(f)

(9)

Associate (continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when significant influence is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associate is stated at cost less
impairment losses.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period, the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to
fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedges of the net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case recognition of any resultant gain
or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (Note

1))
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2018 —E— N\F+-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(9) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labor, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(Note 1(x)).

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Buildings 20 years
—  Plant and machinery 10 years
—  Motor vehicles 5 years
—  Office and other equipment 3 -5 years

The residual value rates of each class of fixed assets are

as follows:

Residual value rates (%)
Buildings 10%
Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicles 10%
Office and other equipment 10%

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018

1

(B BB HAI - AARIEFIR)
TESHBER(F)

(0 M¥E BERRKRHE (&)

BEME - BEMEEEE K
RNEEMHEAARN BEESITK
R FEVRRBIEE A R IRIEIR
B BT 7E # 4k JR 57 &) B AR B 9] 22
Bt (R F@E & Bl ey &
EEEERRERKAN (M
1(x)) °

ERTRREMIREFE:

ME - BB MREEBREME
AERFHARERENE
VA 85 LA 2 ORL H i 5t R 8 (B
B (F)  fH5tr R FHm
T

— EF 20
— BE KR 104
— A= 5%

— WRAERHEMRE 3E5F

FHETEENHHREERN

T

T4 1B 18 F (%)
BF 10%
%= B i 22 10%
RE 10%
WAENEMERE 10%

BEMNAERFHREFGRE
B(WE)HEEFETR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets are recognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase the investment.
The investments are initially stated at fair value plus
directly attributable transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs are recognized
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the
Group determines fair value of financial instruments,
see Note 29(e). These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows.

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

Changes in the fair value of the investment
(including interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2018 —E— N\F+-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Other financial assets (continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
re-measured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. Interest income from these financial assets
is recognised using the effective interest method
in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set
out in Note 1(v)(ii). When these financial assets
are derecognised or impaired (Note 1(l)(i)), the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss.

(i) Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent cost of acquiring land
use rights paid to the PRC’s governmental authorities.
Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (Note 1(I)(ii)).
Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the respective periods of the rights which are
50 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible and
the Group has sufficient resources and the intention
to complete development. The expenditure capitalised
includes the costs of materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs, where applicable. Capitalised development costs
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (Note 1(l)(ii)). Other development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (Note

1))

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives. Computer software is
amortised from the date they are available for the use for
5 years.

Both the useful life and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R M

31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Operating lease charges

()

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal installments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease terms, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, deposits and pledged bank
deposits).

Financial assets measured at fair value,
including derivative financial assets, are not
subject to the ECL assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHE (&)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets ) FEEEREERE (£)
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () =RITAEELWEEER

(continued) (%)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 A B=ZF—NF—H—H#E
(continued) AR (&)
Measurement of ECLs FrERHEEEE
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of EHREEEEAEER
credit losses. Credit losses are measured BHBE R MEMET =
as the present value of all expected cash EEEBLUMRMAEEER
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash TEBNIRE (ARE
flows due to the Group in accordance with the SRENTARERKR
contract and the cash flows that the Group eREHEAREEEK
expects to receive). RMWReEREZENE

B)Et= o

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted WMALIR B E X AIFE

using the following discount rates where the EIR S ZREHBERUT
effect of discounting is material: AL IR R AR -

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and - TEsREE ¥
other receivables and contract assets: 5 N E th FE U I8
effective interest rate determined at initial AREREE: R
recognition or an approximation thereof; VNAHEREETH

BERF R g H T
B :

- variable-rate financial assets: current - FESREE:H

effective interest rate. HIE PR & o

2018 FH E#MBE (KE)BERLA



188

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O SRR BT EE

31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =AHEAN UARKEDIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(continueq)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to

credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost
or effort. This includes information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of

future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following

bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model

applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

FTESEHBER (&)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

() Credit losses and impairment of assets ) EEEFEEREERE (&)
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

() THTRELHEEEA

(continued) (%)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 A B=ZF—-—NF—-—H—HH#F
(continued) BB % (&)
Measurement of ECLs (continued) STEEHEERE

(#&)
Loss allowances for trade receivables are g5 EWE IEZ}@HTE%%
always measured at an amount equal to HE—REERNEE
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets ﬁxﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁ”\]ﬁ,ﬁm;fﬂgﬂg

are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments (including
cash and cash equivalents, deposits and
pledged bank deposits), the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs
unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R M

31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B BB HAI - AARIEFIR)
TESHBER(F)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

() Credit losses and impairment of assets ()]
(continued)

FEEEREERME (&)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

() THBTAEELHNEEESE

with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
(i) the
financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group

realising security (if any is held); or

considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continueq)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

FEEFBX (&)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

() Credit losses and impairment of assets ()]
(continued)

FEEEREERME (&)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

() THBTAEELHNEEESE

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant

(continued) (%)
(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 A BZF—-—NF—-—H—HH#F
(continued) AR (&)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued) ZER R AR T
(#&)

BARE®MITANKE
g EERRARELT

increase in credit risk is performed on either an B R T i (& Rl E2E 5k

individual basis or a collective basis. When the H[F % Lﬂ' o KT {

assessment is performed on a collective basis, t'ﬁ;z KT B

the financial instruments are Grouped based FﬂI,E:/ﬁlJ Bz/ﬁ\ﬂ MEE

on shared credit risk characteristics, such as [ B 88 (n g0 B AR

past due status and credit risk ratings. &ﬁg & [ 5T 4k ) 1T
D o

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date

BHEEEERS®RE

to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s ARBETENTENR
credit risk since initial recognition. Any Bgeiygﬂl,ﬁ\ﬁfﬁ)]*ﬁﬁw
change in the ECL amount is recognised as AR HY = B & [ &

an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. ?E/HWZTJEETE@%EE@E
The Group recognises an impairment gain M EBI P IB R ER 5
or loss for all financial instruments with a WERRLEE AR

corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.
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31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

FTESEHBER (&)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

() Credit losses and impairment of assets ) EEEFEEREERE (&)
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

() THTRELHEEEA

(continued) (%)
(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 A B=ZF—-—NF—-—H—HH#F
(continued) AR (&)

AAEEMEWANEE

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
Note 1(v)(i)) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on
the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

— significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
or

—  the disappearance of an active market for

a security because of financial difficulties
of the issuer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

TESTHBE (&)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

() Credit losses and impairment of assets )]
(continued)

FEEEREERME (&)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

() ZHTAELXHEEEE
(continued) (%)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 A B=ZF—-—NF—-—H—HH#F

(continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O SRR BT EE

31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continueq)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred loss”
model was used to measure impairment losses
on financial assets not classified as at FVPL
(e.g. trade and other receivables, available-
for-sale investments and held-to-maturity debt
securities). Under the “incurred loss” model,
an impairment loss was recognised only when
there was objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment included:

— significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the

fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB R MR

31 December 2018 —E— N\F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(continued)

If any such evidence existed, an impairment
loss was determined and recognised as
follows:

—  For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised
cost, impairment loss was measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate, where the
effect of discounting was material. This
assessment was made collectively where
these financial assets shared similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and had not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which were assessed
for impairment collectively were based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R M

31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

U

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(continued)

(continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreased and the
decrease could be linked objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment
loss was reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss was
only recognised to the extent that it did
not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

When the recovery of a trade debtor or
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost was considered doubtful but not
remote, associated impairment losses
were recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group was satisfied
that recovery was remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable was written
off against the gross carrying amount
of those assets directly. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account were reversed
against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly were
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHEKE (2Z)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets () EEBEREERE (&
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

() THTRELHEEEA

(continued) (%)
(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 B) ZZE-NE—-—H—HF#
(continued) B 5 (&)

For available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss that had been
recognised in the fair value reserve
(recycling) was reclassified to profit or
loss. The amount of the cumulative loss
that was recognised in profit or loss was
the difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities were not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the
fair value of such assets was recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities were reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value could be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances were recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHE (#Z)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets ) FEEEREERE (£)
(continued)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (i) EmFEnEEERME
Internal and external sources of information are NEB R AMEFE R SRR ES
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to WMEHTFUER  AERE
identify indications that the following assets may ERET T 5B ER LR
be impaired or an impairment loss previously B AT R EEE T
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased: BEESXAEERD :
- property, plant and equipment; - xR BELXRE:
- intangible assets; - BEEE:
-~ lease prepayments; and — MEBMNHRIE: X
- investments in subsidiaries and associates in — ARARMBEAMRIRAK
the Company’s statement of financial position. KB AR REEE AR
WiZE -
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable WMFEERZETR  AIA
amount is estimated. hErEHEEEMAIKE 2
Ho
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31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets

(continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
Group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

1 TESFHBE (&)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets ()]
(continued)

FEEEREERME (&

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets

(i) RtFnBEERE (&)

(continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or Group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value

fE 52O 1B B 18

HEEXEMBREE
EEUMEEERS
HAlmeEE - AIRE
miERRERE - s
SEEBMERORE
BRE SR DE
AR A BT (S BB 4
RREMEENRE
B - EEENK@ET
BREER EE R

less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value BRI SR (WA E
in use (if determinable). s)RFEREME (M
EE)-
—  Reversals of impairment losses OB EE1E

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favorable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss

fid A PA E XE AT W [o] 2 BR
MEETHIRENES
AlREEER T &M -
LB B 18 BY 13 [0 LA B 8
BEBEFEMIL EIE
R EREMREETE

been recognised in prior years. Reversals of RERTEE AR B I1EE
impairment losses are credited to profit or BR BB E AR E
loss in the year in which the reversals are FRERIEE -

recognised.
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31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHEKE (2Z)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets ) FEEEREERE (£)

(continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment (i) HRIB IR ER BE
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities BEEEHAEXSMER
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the NG %?J: MmiRA|  NEEFH
Group is required to prepare an interim financial BIRE R @it ®hE EE)
report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial FE345E P BRI SR - gLBS
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the BEE a6 A fRE A HE
financial year. At the end of the interim period, ks - AR HIEIR R &
the Group applies the same impairment testing, EE R EER  HER
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the B o] 12 42 81 5§ 50 B B
end of the financial year (see Note 1(1)(i). EREAEMER (RHE

10)()) °
(m) Inventories (m) 78

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the GFEARBENREBEEBRARD

ordinary course of business, in the process of production ERNEE BZEHEEMENE

for such sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be ERHEESAM B M E &

consumed in the production process or in the rendering FAEAEBEDNIEBHERE

of services. FERANEE-

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net FEUKAEIEH EEMRE

realisable value. FRBEE AR

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost BN Th ¥R A AN #E - 9 Rk AN A =

formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs HE UWEEMEREKA &

of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the MK ARALBEEERRILE

inventories to their present location and condition. HEZBRERIAMESNEM

DN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R M

31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Inventories (continued)

(n)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see Note 1(v)). A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see Note 1(0)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(0)

(P)

(q)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses
(see Note 1(I)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the

Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note

1(x)).
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost, except
where the payables are interest-free loans made from
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2018 —E— N\F+-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for expected credit losses
(ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in Note 1(l)(j).

(s) Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to the
relevant labor rules and regulations in the PRC
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred, except to the extent that they are included
in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as an
expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

TESTBER (&)

(s) BE®/A (&

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1
(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Share-based payments (i) UG BEE

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the black-scholes model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the
share options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the share options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
share options are exercised (when it is transferred
to the share premium account) or the share options
expire (when it is released directly to retained
profits).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R M

31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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31 December 2018 ==
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

—N\FEt+-A=+—H

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHEKE (2Z)

(t) Income tax (continued) ) FB®% (&)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

FEEFBX (&)

(v) WEREMBWA

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

(v) Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product is
transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. If the
products are a partial fulfiiment of a contract
covering other goods, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract, allocated
between all the goods promised under the contract
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

In the comparative period, revenue from sales of
products was recognised when the products were
delivered to the customers’ premises, which was
taken to be the point in time when the customer
had accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership.

@ Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHEKE (2Z)
(v) Revenue and other income (continued)

(v) WaEREMBA (E)

(i) Interest income

(i) FIEHA

(iif)

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied
to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset (see Note 1(I)(i).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
year in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are recognised by setting up the grant as deferred
income that is recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

Unconditional discretionary government grants from
the government authorities are recognised in the
profit or loss as other revenue when the amount is
received.
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31 December 2018 —E— N\F+-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date
on which the Company initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities.

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Renminbi are translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items are translated into Renminbi
at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHEKE (2Z)

(x) Borrowing costs (x) AR
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the NEEHES HEfS4E=ERE
acquisition, construction or production of an asset BE (ZEEVALBERRE
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to EBUIERETRHEREE)EHE
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as REFRKA HER L BZEE
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are HY 2010 A 2R o B4 42 Zpk AR R
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. ELXHRAL -

(y) Related parties (y) BERE
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s (a) M—BALHFETIIBEMRN:

family, is related to the Group if that person: Het iR Ea B BN E AR

SEABE:

()  has control or joint control over the Group; () BAREBEAEGIESL
[F) 42 il 42

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) SAEEBEEATE
713K
(iiy is a member of the key management personnel (iiy AAEESAEBTA
of the Group or the Group’s parent. BEEEEAE-
(o) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) & T Eﬁ{lﬂ’—?é‘jﬁ BB
following conditions applies: B 5 B B BB
()  The entity and the Group are members of the () ZEBHEASEEAER—
same Group (which means that each parent, SEMKE (IS ER
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to SRR WERR KA
the others). ZAMBRARIZEER
i) o
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of (il —ERAES— BN

= EZ
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture EN &%
of a member of a Group of which the other BE— Eil gﬁﬁﬁéﬁlbﬁ
entity is a member). EJZ NEILES
BERE
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31 December 2018 —E— N\F+-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(y) Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(ii) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a Group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings
with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial statements provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

Revenue and segmental reporting

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and
sales of camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules
for mobile phones and other mobile communication terminals.
Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold, excludes
VAT and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

The Group manages its businesses by business lines. In
a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified reportable
segments as follows:

—  Design, manufacture and sales of camera modules

—  Design, manufacture and sales of fingerprint recognition
modules
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31 December 2018 ==
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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Revenue and segmental reporting
(continued)

(B =AHEAN UARKEDIR)

2 WamkoE|E (&)

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the PIERAEBR TSRS D
reportable segments of the Group. MmE B ILEEET o
Fingerprint ~ Subtotal of
Camera  recognition reportable
modules modules segments Others Total
REHE BEGE R HE
B oF ] ik Hit wst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:
2018 —E-N\F
Revenue Wz 6,272,686 1,832,022 8,104,708 30,453 8,135,161
Cost of sales HEKAR (5,959,798)  (1,798,026)  (7,757,824) (24,229)  (7,782,053)
Gross profit EM 312,888 33,996 346,884 6,224 353,108
2017 “E-tF
Revenue Yz 5,895,723 2,035,063 7,930,786 8,172 7,938,958
Cost of sales HEMRAK (65,194,011)  (1,860,587)  (7,054,598) (1,627)  (7,056,225)
Gross profit £ 701,712 174,476 876,188 6,545 882,733

Others mainly represent revenue from sales of waste
materials.

Segment profit represents the gross profit earned by each
segment without allocation of expenses and other income
and profit for the year. This is the measure reported to the
most senior executive management of the Group for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

The Group does not allocate specific assets or liabilities
to the operating segments as the most senior executive
management does not use the information to measure the
performance of the segments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenue and segmental reporting
(continued)

The Group’s revenue by geographical location is determined
by the locations of operations of the contracting parties.

BB R MR

31 December 2018 —ZE—N\F+=—A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F&

SEEFN LAREIIR)

2 WmkaoMHE (&)

AEE LMWL E S 2 laE R
BENTHEE BT -

Revenue I =
PRC (including Hong Kong) ‘:F' B (BEEE)
Overseas iR

The Group had three (2017: three) customers with whom
transactions had exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2018. The amount of
sales to these customers amounted to approximately
RMB5,862,835,000 (2017: RMB5,463,529,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2018. Details of concentrations of credit
risk arising from these customers are set out in Note 29(a).

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, certain
amounts of revenue are related to sales made to related
parties (see Note 31).

2018 2017

S S e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT 5 AR T
8,129,902 7,933,516
5,259 5,442
8,135,161 7,938,958

BE_ZT—-—NEF+=_RA=+—
AEtFE AEEHEH=F (=ZF
—tF ZR)BEFPHNRXRSFHBB
HEWHEW10% - HE_-F — N
F+-_A=Z+—BLEFE A%
EEFPHNHEERENARARK
5,862,835,0007T (= —tF: A

R #5,463,529,0007T) - %X S &P
EENEERBREFHNFBHIR
B 5E29(a) °
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31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ek BB 1EHAIN - LAAREHIR)

3 Other revenue and other net loss 3

Hto W & H e FE R

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

Other revenue Hi =
Government grants (Note) BT B (KaE) 103,908 16,659
Interest income F B U A 29,058 18,377
Others HAm 147 63
133,113 35,099

Note:Government grants were received from several local Yok
government authorities as a recognition of the Group’s
contribution towards the local economic development, of which

the entitlement was unconditional and under the discretion of

BFMBRESE T REE
B MEREAREHEMEBEER
MER AN REES XHE
FERERBRE -

the relevant authorities.

Other net loss

Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net realised and unrealised
loss on foreign exchange
option contracts

Net realised and unrealised
gain/(loss) on foreign currency
forward contracts

HibF B8R
SNEE (B51R) Wt F HR
HEME BEMREEE

SMNEFIESONE BER K&
AREREIEFER

SMERHIGHNE BR K&
REHW R (BE)FE
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2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
(44,613) 41,918
(15,687) (383)
(2,341) (47,911)
12,418 (17,555)
(50,223) (23,931)
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31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

Profit before taxation 4 PBR¥BIER
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BAAEAMARNEG S (5 A) TH&
THIRER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFT
(a) Finance costs (a) ®MERKA
Interest expenses B 44,146 16,912
(b) Staff costs (b)y BT
Contributions to defined FEHFCGRIRET S
contribution retirement plans (H1:225)
(Note 25) 15,326 10,270
Salaries, wages and Fe LEREMEFR
other benefits 603,600 446,894
Equity settled share-based LARE 22 45 B /9 IR 19 19 5K
payment expenses (Note 26) Fsz (Hit26) 4,075 6,704
623,001 463,868
(c) Other items (c) HftiEE
Amortisation B 5y
— lease prepayments (Note 13) —HEBNFKIEAE
(K7at13) 1,080 416
— intangible assets (Note 14) —EmEEE (Kit14) 175 161
Depreciation (Note 10) e (Ki10) 234,486 135,228
Auditors’ remuneration 1% S5 B %7 B
— Audit and review services —SEFEFEEIRY
for the Group 2,123* 2,047
— Audit services for —FREEF IR
subsidiaries 168 123
Operating lease charges in EE@MENKEHEER
respect of properties 13,528 9,020
Research and development TEE A (M aE()
costs (Note (i) 266,198 269,556
Impairment losses recognised/ H 5 &AM W FRIE
(reversed) on trade and other EmR, (#m)
receivables BB E B 182 (9,555)
Cost of inventories (Note (i) TEKRA (M) 7,909,358 7,220,335
* The amount includes audit and review services fee of * ZEeBETEERLEERGEE A
RMB1,934,000 and Corporate environment, Social and R #1,934,00070 A R b %3838 -
Governance Reporting advisory services fee of RMB189,000. He REAMESRAIRIEE A R
189,0007T °
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31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

4 Profit before taxation (continued)

Notes:

(i)

Research and development costs include staff costs of
employees in the design, research and development department
of approximately RMB81,472,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: approximately RMB66,104,000), which
are included in the staff costs as disclosed in Note 4(b).

The criteria for the recognition of such costs as an asset are
generally not met until late in the development state of the
project when the remaining development costs are immaterial.
Hence both research costs and development costs are
generally recognised as expenses in the period in which they

are incurred.

Cost of inventories includes approximately RMB696,778,000
(2017: approximately RMB478,530,000) for the year ended
31 December 2018 relating to staff costs, depreciation and
amortisation expenses, which amounts are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in Note

4(b) for each of these types of expenses.
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EFE FERABEHARKE
696,778,000t (ZE —tEF: 4
AR #478,530,0007T) * B 8 Tk
R -FERBHEASYER 2528
M AZESERRAITE LEXES
BEIRMFIAOE RN S EHED
o



5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R

31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr B8N LAARBHIR)

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income

(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income

represents:

5

Current tax

PRC Corporate Income Tax
PRC Dividend Withholding Tax
Hong Kong Profits Tax

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of
temporary differences
(Note 27(b))

B 4 B8
o B 4 2 7 19 Bt
b B 18, 78 40 Bt
& FIEH

3 3IE B 1R

ERNMERNESMED

(Btat27(b))

EOHREEREMEERER
P EYFT 1S B

(a) EHEERAEMBEZEKERTH
Frg®iss

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARETTT
2,333 66,919
3,977 4,495

- 1,512

6,310 72,926
(19,379) 312
(13,069) 73,238

2018FEH  FRBHE (£M

VERDE @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R M

31 December 2018 ZE— \F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ek BB 1EHAIN - LAAREHIR)

EOHREEREMEERER

5 Income tax in the consolidated statement 5

of profit or loss and other comprehensive mEFER (&)

income (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BERABRIFENHBEAXES
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: sHRAE R :

2018 2017
—E-NF —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEF T
Profit before taxation B 35 A& A 1,330 509,515
Notional tax on profit before B 2% A g A B9 B R AR IE
taxation, calculated at the BB R BB
rates applicable to the tax EEERNBMETE
jurisdictions concerned 10,719 131,262
Tax effect of PRC preferential FEEBENFFBEN
tax treatments (Note (i) Mg 8 (B i) (7,077) (44,073)
Tax effect of additional B 3% B 7K 8 BB SN F0ORLAY
deduction on research and Mg 2
development costs (17,795) (20,035)
Tax effect of non-deductible TNAMBRAIH G2
expenses 1,059 1,589
Under provision in prior years BEFERETE 25 -
Withholding tax on profit retained B ff1 & A &) 4R 88 & Il &9
by PRC subsidiaries (Note (iv)  TAINFE (#/ 7t (iv)) - 4,495
Actual tax expense ERBBH X (13,069) 73,238

@ Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB R MR

31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“‘BVI”), the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and
BVI.

Kunshan Q Technology (Hong Kong) Limited (“Kunshan QT
Hong Kong”) is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at 16.5%
in 2018 and 2017.

Effective from 1 January 2008, the PRC statutory
income tax rate is 25%. Kunshan Q Technology Limited
(“Kunshan QT China”) was qualified as a High and New
Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”) in 2009, which entitled
to a preferential income tax rate of 15% from the year
2009 to 2011 according to relevant regulations in the
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law. Kunshan QT China
successfully renewed the HNTE qualification on 21 May
2012, 6 July 2015 and 24 October 2018 respectively and
continued to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15%
for another three years commenced from 1 January 2018.

5 AfEmaKkEMEZEIER

REFER (&)

(b) HERABRRFENBEMAIES
SHRRMNHR: (&)

T

) REREHELRRBRELES
(IEBRELBEE])HMRAR
ERCOAEEBERHAEZES
KEBRZEESBMREIME
Wi o

i RZT-NFR_T—t5F
Kunshan Q Technology (Hong
Kong) Limited ([ 1L E#KE
1) BIE16.5%M T K M E
B RS R

(i) ZEENF—A—HE F
B 19,5 TE BT 15 B 3R /325% o
ELESRKMEFRIEBRAR
(TBLERFEDR=ZZZTAH
FESSHEMEE (R
MEHE]EE FERZZET
NEE-T——FREFPHD
EFBBENEEREEEE
BI5%HIEBFTEH X B I
ESRFPESIR=-_T—=—FA
AZ+—H - ZZ2—R%+AH
NEERZE-NF+AZ+HE
BB e MeER
BT \F—A—HBit
HEIN=FEZHI%NESR
TR

2018F 3 ESABE (RE)ARAT @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O SRR BT EE

31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ek BB 1EHAIN - LAAREHIR)

5 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv) According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
and its related regulations, the Group is subject to a
withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties
or arrangements, for dividends distributed by a PRC
enterprise to its immediate holding company outside the
PRC for earnings generated beginning on 1 January 2008
and undistributed earnings generated prior to 1 January
2008 are exempt from such withholding tax. According
to the China-HK Tax Arrangement and its relevant
regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident which is
the “beneficial owner” and holds 25% or more of a PRC

enterprise is entitled to a reduced withholding rate of 5%.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018

5 SfEEKREMEEEKER
REEER (&)

(b) ZHERABRIENBHAIES
sHEAM SR (&)

Wizt (&)

(iv)

RIBHBEREMREHEREN
MR AKREARLTEIE
B-ZFZT/\F—A—REME
A BN R E R B R S B R
B 2 ) 23 K 9 BB 42 10% (1
ARIB IR TE 2 HEFIRER S
MR REIR R_FF
NEFE—A—BRIEENARDIK
BT R B R R TR
RIBEFEMM R P R EM
BARE SRIEZBEAAIL
FARBEER25%HIA R
MEERBANBERERER
5% 4% 38 R FE FO A R AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R

31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr B8N LAARBHIR)

Directors’ emoluments 6 EEFHM

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RIS B R A EH E383(1)1FE XA
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the A(BEEENEER)BROIE2E
Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of HEFMHEZEEHMMT -

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—ZE—N\E+=ZHA=+—HL=HE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
and other scheme  Discretionary payments
benefits  contributions bonuses Sub-total (Notg)
HRH A

§o 2ER ERNAH

fig REEA BAHBER BiERA i ; it
RMB000  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMBI00
AERTR  ARMTr  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTn  ARWTI  AR®TR

Executive directors #1783

Mr. He Ningning BEES% 315 - - - 315 - 315
Mr Wang Jangiang ~ THBETE - 340 16 300 656 160 816
Mr. Hu Sanmu BoA%E - 391 18 257 666 119 785

Independentnon-  BUFUTES
executive directors

Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang ~ IFH %L - 88 - - 88 - 88
M. Ko Ping Keung BRRLE - 88 - - 88 - 88
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RRELE - 88 - - 88 - 88
Total h 315 995 34 557 1,901 279 2,180

2018F 3 ESABE (RE)ARAT @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R M

31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fk R A AN UAARBEHIR)

6 Directors’ emoluments (continued) 6 EEFHM(Z)
Year ended 31 December 2017 BEz—_Z—+tH&+=-—HA=+—81t
FE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
and other scheme  Discretionary payments
benefits  contributions bonuses Sub-total Notg)

R A

fi RER ERHAH
fig RfEN  BAHBHR BfERA it it
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARWTr  ARRTR  ARBTR  ARMTn  ARWTr  AR®TR

Executive directors HTES

Mr. He Ningning s 301 - - - 301 - 301

Mr. Wang Jiangjang TRkt - 344 16 700 1,060 257 1317

M. Hu Sanmu H=AEE - 362 18 43 815 191 1,006

Independent non- BUFunES

executive directors

Mr. Chu Chia-Hslang RS - 84 - - 84 - 84

Mr. Ko Ping Keung BRERA - 4 - - 4 - 4

Ms. Chen Jun Rixt - £ - - 12 - )

M. Ng Sui Yin REEAE - 84 - - 84 - 84

Total @it 301 958 34 1,135 2,428 448 2,876

Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted Mt ZESBIEBREARNEENERRE

to the directors under the Group’s share option scheme. HERMEERENERENS G
The value of these share options is measured according to BE - ZSERENBEEENE
the Group’s accounting policies for share-based payment 1)) FTE A S E AR (0 BETER
transactions as set out in Note 1(s)(ii). TR GHEFHESZ -
The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal ZEBMENOFEE (BREEED
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed in Note FERREM T B RE ) IO sE
26. 26H 5% °

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

During the year, there were no amounts paid or payable
by the Group to the directors or any of the highest paid
individuals set out in note 7 below as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of
office. There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emolument during the year.

Individual with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
(2017: two) of them are directors for the year ended 31
December 2018, whose emoluments are disclosed in Note
6 above. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
remaining individuals are as follows:

BB R MR

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F& B AIERIN AAREFIR)

6

ESHM (&)

RAFE AEBHERNEFLT
XHETHEEAREHA LD N
FEMEMFRBEERBENANEHE
S I A TR &Y 22D S 1F S RE B A 4
E-RAFE MEEEHELRE
PACEE AT 1) 3 B B 22 4 -

REEFAL

BHE-_ZT—-N\F+ZH=1T—81t
FE hEEaFALTHERE (=
T—tF MB)REF HFMR
EXHizreHE - T ATHEME
BT

Salaries and other emoluments & N H % B

Discretionary bonuses )15 TE AL

Contributions to retirement RIRfEFE K
benefit scheme

Share-based payments VARR 15 & B B 3R

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREETTT
1,773 1,289

537 1,134

33 13

268 402

2,611 2,838

2018F 3 ESABE (RE)ARAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R M

31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fk R A AN UAARBEHIR)

7 Individual with highest emoluments 7 BEEHAL (&
(continued)
The emoluments of the three (2017: three) individuals with the HE—_Z—N\EF+_-_A=+—8H1IF
highest emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2018 FE - ZZ(ZE—1F: =4 )&
are within the following bands: SFATHEHEBN FIATEER :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AH A
HK$Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z 70 %1,000,0007%8 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000/ 7T 1 1
3 3
8 Other comprehensive income 8 HhZmUz
Tax effects relating to each component of other FRHEMEEKRESEARI 0 HBE
comprehensive income e

2018 2017
“E-0\f “ELF

Before-tax Net-of-tax Before-tax Net-of-tax
amount Tax effect amount amount Tax effect amount
KHAEE hikEE  KHEcE EdER nBTE  KHEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR  ARETR  ARETT NS AREEUN:L S DN S

Exchange difference on BENTEENELZE:
tranglation of:
- financial statements of ~HERERINIE
subsiclaries outside RAME R
the Mainland China (23,910) 3 (23,667) (12.739) - (12.739)
Other comprehensive income £ #2E & (23,910) 43 (23,667) (12,739) - (12,739)

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

9 Earnings per share 9 BRER
(a) Basic earnings per share (@) BREXRER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on g E AR EF T AR A R E @
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of fEiEiE B AEE NG AR
the Company of approximately RMB14,399,000 (2017: 14,399,000 (=& — + F:
approximately RMB436,277,000) and the weighted #) N R #436,277,0007T ) & F
average of 1,127,614,000 (2017: 1,095,479,000) AN B 1T E @A A 0 RE S &
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated as 1,127,614,0001 ( =& — +
follows: % :1,095,479,0008% ) 73 & %
ATEMT
(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares ZE R 0 1 B
2017
—ET—+tF
‘000
T
Issued ordinary share at 1 R—A—BRNBERTEBER
January 1,115,597 1,081,771
Effect of share options BITEMERENTE
exercised (Note 28(c)(i)) (K1aE28(c)(i)) 12,017 13,599
Shares issued for the BREC BTG
Placement (Note 28(c)(iii)) (Bt #228(c)iii)) - 109
Weighted average number W+ ZA=+—HH
of ordinary shares at 31 B AR N B
December 1,127,614 1,095,479

2018F 3 ESABE (RE)ARAT @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R M

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

9 Earnings per share (continued) 9 BRERNZ)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) EREBEEER
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on fE#E R M ARAD Al E &
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of fgiEiE B AEE NG ARE
the Company of approximately RMB14,399,000 (2017: 14,399,000 (ZZF—+tF : 4y
approximately RMB436,277,000) and the weighted AR #436,277,0007T) & & @
average of ordinary shares of 1,138,491,000 shares s AN S 5 801,138,491,0000%
(2017: 1,120,394,000) calculated as follows: (ZZF—+%:1,120,394,000
R)BEEHENT :
(i)  Weighted average number of ordinary shares ZERINEFITE (#E)
(diluted)
2017
—T—+F
000
F &
Weighted average number A+ H=+—H#
of ordinary shares at 50 IR N T 5 B
31 December 1,127,614 1,095,479
Effect of deemed issue R {EIR & AN 2 7] % AR 7
of shares under the R EITROEE
Company’s share
option schemes 10,877 24,915
Weighted average number R+ A=+ — BB EBEK
of ordinary shares InEFEHE (#E)
(diluted)
at 31 December 1,138,491 1,120,394

@ Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB R MR

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F& B AIERIN AAREFIR)

10 Property, plant and equipment 10 ¥ -BEKRRKRE
Office
Plant and Motor and other Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles equi&n}snt Sub-total in progress Total
N
BT HBERESE nE EfRE ) ERIE At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARET:R

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  AR%TR ARETR ARETR

Cost: A
At 1 January 2017 WZZ—+F-F—H 176,220 518,311 689 126,175 821,395 60,427 881,822
Additions NE 57,529 563,309 132 80,793 701,763 194,342 896,105
Transfer from construction ~ EEBEER IR
in progress 31,012 81,771 - 983 113,766 (113,766) -
Disposals HE - (238) - (2,352) (2,590) - (2,590)
At 31 December 2017 and R -E—+%
1 January 2018 +ZA=+—-8k
—Z-\E-A-H 264,761 1,163,153 821 206,599 1,634,334 141,008 1,775,337
Additions NE 87,504 499,189 214 42,355 629,262 32,302 661,564
Transfer from construction ~ EABERTHE
in progress 89 60,810 - - 60,899 (60,899) -
Disposals HE - (28,147) - (8,094) (36,241) - (36,241)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+-A=f-H 362,354 1,695,005 1,035 239,860 2,288,254 112,406 2,400,660
Accumulated depreciation: BiHTE:
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+5-A-A (05,477) (86,577) (462) (49,125 (161,641 - (161,641)
Charge for the year ERE (01918) (66,099) (89 @7,128)  (135,228) - %229
Written back on disposals (L ERED - 54 - 2,140 2,194 - 2,194
At 31 December 2017 and R -E—+%
1 January 2018 +ZA=z+-8k
—E-\5-F-F 47305 (152616) (557) ©4113)  (204,675) )
Charge for the year F W Mk (33,503 (140,004) 87) (60,892 (234,486) - (234,486)
Written back on disposals ~ HEEE - 10,676 - 6,349 17,025 - 17,025
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\&
+=B=1-E 60898) (281,944 639 (148656  (512,136) - (512,13
Net book value: REHFE:
At 31 December 2017 RZE—t#&
+ZR=1-H 217,366 1,010,537 270 111,486 1,339,659 141,008 1,480,662
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+ZR=1-H 271,456 1,413,061 397 91,204 1,776,118 112,406 1,888,524

The buildings held for own use are located in the PRC under
medium-term leases.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group was in the process
of obtaining the ownership certificate in respect of
buildings in the PRC with net book value of approximately
RMB29,702,000 (2017: approximately RMB31,012,000).

FIFERMBFURTE  BHH
H# -

RZE—-—N\F+_A=+—H 'K
EEFERURPRZEMFEES
4N ER#29,702,000T (ZE—+
F o AR®31,012,000T) 2 EF
FREMARED -

2018F 3 ESABE (RE)ARAT @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R M

31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

11

Investments in subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries

(B =AHEAN UARKEDIR)

11 RBATIMNKRE

TREJIARAMEMBRRZE

of the Company. The class of shares held is ordinary unless Ko BASAEIN FTEEIRMHIER A
otherwise stated. LAY o
Proportion of equity
Place and date of incorporation/ Place of Paid-up capital/ interest attributable to
Name of Company establishment operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
BHRER/

RAER EMAL/ RIEERAH EXHY ERER ARAEERELS  TEER

Direct Indirect

HE B

Q Technology (Great China) Inc. British Virgin Islands (‘BVI")/ BVI US$10,000 100% - Investment holding
(“QT Great China’) 3 July 2007 EBRTHE 10,000% 7T BEER

Q Technology (Great China) Inc. ([QT Great EERLHE ((AERREHE])/

China ) * ZZEEELACH

Kunshan Q Technology Limited* People’s Republic of China (‘PRC’)/ PRC US$175,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and trading of
(RILESBEFRRERRA) Mote ) 15 October 2007 A 175,000,000% 7T Camera Modules

RINEARBFHRERAR (M) PEARAANE ([2E])/ REREERGERA

ZEREETATRA
Kunshan Q Technology (Hongkong) Limited Hong Kong/ 15 January 2013 Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Trading of Camera Modules
B%/-F-Zf-A+7A & 10,0007 RERGHERA

Chengdu Q Technology Limited* PRC/ 6 June 2014 PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100% Research and development
(“Chengdu QT Subsidiary’) H8/ZZ-MERAAE # AR 1,000,000 of Camera Modules
(RBERABTFHRBRAA) Note ) HEREERE

HEEAREFHRERAE ([HBLANE
28)) (Hith)

Shenzhen Q Technology Limited* PRC/ 19 June 2015 PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100% Trading, research and
(“Shenzhen QT Subsidiary’) T8/ -T-RFAATAR # AR 2,000,000 development of Camera
CRYI BB E FRIEBRAR) Notef) Modules

RINTEAAEF R ERA A ([ RALHH BE HREGEEA
B48]) (Witn)

Taiwan Q Technology Limited* Taiwan/ 1 July 2015 Taiwan TWD3,000,000 100% - Trading of Camera Modules
(‘Taiwan QT Subsidiary’) 8%/-2-R%tA-A & 8,000,000% & % BEERGHRA
(BEEHMBERRR)

REERBBARRE ([RELARBAR])

Zhuhai Q Technology Limited* PRC/ 20 December 2018 PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100% Research and development
(Zhuhai QT Subsidiary’) w8/ -F-\E+-F=+H # AR %5,000,0007C of Camera Modules

(REDEARETHEARRR) Notefi)
FETEHMEFHRBRAA ([RELAH
ERA)) ()

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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31 December 2018 —E— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& E?El BN AARBIITR)

11 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 11 R ARMEE (&)

# The entity was previously known as CK Telecom (Great China) # ZE B IRACK Telecom (Great
Inc. (“CK Great China”), and its name was changed to Q China) Inc. ([CK Great China]) -
Technology (Great China) Inc. on 2 September 2015. HEBRN _ZE—RHFNLAZ-ZBE

2 AQ Technology (Great China)
Inc. °

*  The English translation of the companies’ names are for L ZERNRABIEXEEEHZ2
reference only. The official names of the companies are in EoZENTFNEREBB AR -
Chinese.

Notes: Hat -

()  The entity is a wholly foreign owned enterprise incorporated in () ZERARTEHEMEIMNINGE
the PRC. BEEo

(i)  The three entities are limited liabilities companies established in iy Z=FREEANPREKINERE
the PRC. (EE/N

12 Interest in an associate 12 R—EBE QT NER
Place of Proportion of equity
operation and interest attributable to
Name of Associate Date of incorporation business Paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
HENALR ZRELAH EEHARER BHRER ARAEERELS  EEEE
Direct Indirect
HE B
Newmax Technology Co., Ltd. 10 August 1999 Taiwan TWD1,603,578,000 36% - Design, research,
(MENERNLE E i) -AMAENATR =y | 1,603,578,000% A development,
HERERHERA manufacture and

sales of optlcal lens
Rat e REETH
HEHEE

2018F 3 ESABE (RE)ARAT @
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B O SRR BT EE

31 December 2018 —E— N\F+-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

12 Interest in an associate (continued)

On 18 March 2017, the Group entered into a share
subscription agreement with Newmax Technology Co.,
Ltd. Upon the settlement of the total consideration of
approximately RMB275,236,000 on 31 August 2017, an
aggregate of 57,008,888 placing shares have been allotted
and issued to the Company, representing approximately
36% of the entire issued ordinary shares of Newmax
Technology Co., Ltd. as enlarged upon completion of the
private placement. Newmax Technology Co., Ltd. became an
associate of the Group.

Summarised financial information of the associate, adjusted
for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled
to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial are
disclosed below:

Gross amounts of the associate

12 A — S QR ES

(&)

R-_E—+tF=ZA+N\H AEEH
FEERERMNDERRAAZKRMR
BHRZ - N _T—+FNA=1—

%%ﬁ%ﬂkﬁiﬁ}\ﬁcm?fs 236,000
mé & #57,008,8880% Bt & i% 15
BhENEITTARR  HERRNE
PX FL 55 B 6 18 S B KT SR B R 10
ERARIzEZHEBTEBR 2L
36%  FERBERHBERAAIKA
ZISE.Z 44 **/‘\ °

TXHEBZERAR U B ERB
2 ZEEMEREFREZEM
ZRFELAE LTERAHFMBRE
ZEREES K

BENT 2 HBE
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017

R=2-N\F RK-F—LF
t=A=+-8B +ZA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

Current assets MEEE 409,548 498,757
Non-current assets MBI E E 303,701 235,246
Current liabilities mENBE 267,723 208,102
Non-current liabilities FnBEE 6,519 6,584
Equity Az 4 439,007 519,317

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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BB R MR

31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

12 Interest in an associate (continued)

12 P — R A T RORESS
(#

/I

Gross amounts of the associate (continued) B NT 285 (&)

For the

period from

For the year 31 August

then ended 2017 to

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

—E—+tF

85z NA=+—H

—E-N\E EZT—LF

+=g=+-8 +TZA=t—H

LEE M

Revenue WA 362,082 59,399
Loss from operations TS ESE (68,225) (46,995)
Other comprehensive income Hh 2wk (12,085) 2,816
Total comprehensive income THKEARE (80,310) (44,179)

Reconciled to the Group’s interest in the associate

AEERBEQTERS 2B

At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R-ZBE-N\EF RZE—+tF
+t=A=+—-H +-A=+—H
Gross amounts of net assets of ~ Ht& N R BE FEMAZ
the associate 439,007 519,317
Group’s effective interest AEEREBEER 36% 36%
Group’s share of net assets of REERGHE AR EEFE
the associate 158,043 186,954
Goodwill EES 71,364 71,364
Carrying amount in the G BHRENREE
consolidated financial statements 229,407 258,318
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31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

13 Lease prepayments 13 HEFRNKIE
RMB’000
AREFIT
Cost: RN :
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+F—HF—H"
—+E+_-_A=+—H 20,791
Addition NE 36,238
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NFE+_A=+—H 57,029
Accumulated amortisation: Rty
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H (3,743)
Amortisation for the year F B (416)
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZEBE—tF+_A=+—HBRK
—Z—-N\F—H—H (4,159
Amortisation for the year F R EEE (1,080)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+=ZA=+—H (5,239)
Net book value: BREEE:
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+_A=+—H 16,632
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NFE+_A=+—H 51,790
Interests in leasehold land represent prepayments of land RSt ERIERER R+ H
use rights premium to the PRC authorities by the Group. WY N T ERAELRESNTE
The Group’s leasehold land is located in PRC, on which its BB AEENHEEL TR R
manufacturing plants were built. The Group is granted land Bl -ty FETERET K-
use rights for a period of 50 years up to 2058. REBEERS T E AEWN R A50

FE_ZTRNFIH-

The amounts include approximately RMB1,080,000 (2017: —E-NFt+-_A=1+—H %=

approximately RMB416,000) current portion of the lease @%E B4 AR 1,080,000t (=

prepayments as at 31 December 2018. —tFOAR %41 6,0007T ) BJ
fﬁ & 78 1 5RIE B EA &R 19

X
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31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

14 Intangible assets 14 BILEE
Computer
software
T E B
RMB’000
ARETT
Cost: B :
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF—H—A8"
—E—+F+=-A=+—H 1,608
Addition NE 448
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-NFE+A=+—H 2,056
Accumulated amortisation: BEtEe:
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—HF—AH (293)
Amortisation for the year F N 5 (161)
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZE—tEF+_A=+—HEK
—E-)\F—A—H (454)
Amortisation for the year F R (175)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-NF+_A=+—H (629)
Net book value: BRERE:

At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+H+-_A=+—H 1,154
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NFE+_A=+—H 1,427
The amortisation charges of the intangible assets for the year FRNEFEEMNBERAIGTAAS
are included in “administrative and other operating expenses” HERERN [TH R E MK L

in the consolidated income statement of profit or loss. % | o
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B O SRR BT EE

31 December 2018 —E— \F+=-A=+—
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

15 Inventories

H

(BRABEERPI UAREIITR)

15 &

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position

comprise:

BHFFBIR AT

Raw materials and consumables
Work in progress
Finished goods

R %4 & B 7 i
R
FX dh

The analysis of amount of inventories as an expenses and

included in profit or loss is as follows:

BB

2018 2017
—E-N\&E —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR®EF T
246,396 153,019
201,584 303,789
255,838 231,233
703,818 688,041

ERAXFABRETNFESEN

Carrying amount of inventories sold

Carrying amount of inventories
recognised as administrative
and other operating expenses
and research and development
expenses

Write-down of inventories

ELEFENREE
ERBITHREEMES
ERLMEERD

FEMNREE

17 & R
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DT

2018 2017

—EB-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ TR AR®TT
7,762,043 7,054,083
135,941 162,789

11,374 3,463
7,909,358 7,220,335
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31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

16 Trade and other receivables

16 EZ R HMBEWRIE

Trade receivables

— third parties

— related parties (Note 31(c))
Bills receivable

— third parties

Trade and bills receivables

Less: loss allowance

Other deposits, prepayments and
receivables

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T X AR¥ET T
g ZEWFIE
—F=75 2,829,467 1,761,433
— 385 (M iE31(c) 4,242 21,893
e W ZE %
—F=75 170,641 232,346
g 5 GRIE K W R 3,004,350 2,015,672
B RERE (531) (349)
3,003,819 2,015,323
Efhizs  FEMNRENR
JiE W FRIE 27,548 19,722
3,031,367 2,035,045

recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

Bills receivable represented outstanding bank acceptance bills
and commercial acceptance bills. As at 31 December 2018,
bills receivable amounting to approximately RMB26,047,000
(2017: approximately RMB27,427,000) were pledged as
security for bills payable (see note 22(a)). Bills receivable are

due in 3 to 6 months from the date of issue.

PrEE S REMBYGRIAERER —F

AU B Sk e R AR B S o

JE UL =I5 45 R B HA R B SR 1T H 22 9k
FEEAREZEE R N\F+=A
=+—H HARM26,047,000T (=F
— & AREE27,427,0007T) K FE U
EREBERERENEENER (LM
F122(a)) FEWE R B EITHEIRFSE
61E A 57 -
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B O SRR BT EE

31 December 2018 —E— N\F+-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

16 Trade and other receivables (continued) 16 ESRHAMEWKIE (F)

As at 31 December 2018, bills receivable amounting to Nil
(2017: approximately RMB37,513,000) were pledged as
security for bank borrowings (see Note 21).

As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables amounting to Nil
(2017: approximately RMB128,704,000) and approximately
RMB147,825,000 (2017: approximately RMB46,224,000)
were pledged as security for bills payable (see Note 22(a)) and
bank borrowings respectively (see Note 21).

(a) Ageing analysis

As of the end of the year, the ageing analysis of trade
and bills receivables (which are included in trade and
other receivables), based on the invoice date and net of
allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

/I'/ ~

RZFE—N\F+_A=+—H &
EREERE(ZE—LEF HARKE
37,513,0007T ) 2 R 1E BIR 1T 1&
FEER (RHEE21) o

RZE—-N\F+-_A=+—H8 %8
SEBFEZT(ZT—EF HA
R #128,704,0007T) R ) A R #&
147,825,000 (ZE—EF LA
R #46,224,0007T) B 9 Bl K 1 /£
BEMZE (RBHF22(a) ) RIEITHE
FORMEE21) ER -

(a) FRERD AT

RER REZHHE D MK
RIEBBROE 5 EUWFE M
EUNRE (B AB S REAME
WRIE) MR D AT AT -

Within 1 month 11E B AR

More than 1 month but B 1E A EN3E A A
within 3 months

More than 3 months but B B31E A1ER6ME A AR
within 6 months

More than 6 months but HBiE6ME A EM1FE A

within 1 year

Trade debtors and bills receivable are due within 30 to
90 days from the date of which invoice or bills receivable
issued. Further details on the Group’s credit policy and
credit risk arising from trade debtors and bills receivable
are set out in Note 29(a).

@ Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\E —EF—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREETTT
1,695,382 1,495,748
1,249,786 492,370
58,576 27,161

75 44
3,003,819 2,015,323

BORKFBEREREEAHA
HERFEWEER LB
FT30ZE0R NEIH-BEAE
EEEBRREEREREEDN
CERBRAE—TSFBFHANW
u_|I_29(a>°
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BB R MR

31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB A3EREIN UAREHIR)

16 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(b) Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills
receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that the recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against trade and bills receivables directly.

16 EZ R EAMBYRRE (&)
(b) B 55 Ut K75 I B S AL

B 5 e MR K W R AR R
BEEBRABERLE  FRIEAR
SEEMUE B RE SRR AT BE
BT B IR T BE
BEEREEZEEZEKFALE

U SE SR o
The movement in the allowance during the year is as FARAREBRENESWOT
follows:
2018 2017
=E2-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT T ARET T
As at 1 January w—H—H 349 9,904
Impairment losses recognised . f& 52 8 (B &5 18 182 -
Reversal of impairment loss BRI (EEEEE
recognised - (9,555)
As at 31 December R+Z—A=+—H 531 349
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31 December 2018 —E— N\F+-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fk R A AN UAARBEHIR)
17 Other financial assets 17 EhemEE
2018 2017
—z- 5 [EEEEE S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETTT
Other financial assets EfhemEE - 873,486

Other financial assets represent investments in short-term
wealth management products issued by commercial banks
in mainland China whose principal and returns are not
guaranteed.

As at 31 December 2017, other financial assets amounting to

approximately RMB576,742,000 was pledged as security for
bank borrowings (see Note 21).

18 Derivative financial assets and liabilities

HiteMEESEZSEBENH
PR AR RIRITEITZIFRAF
WS E AR EMR -

RZE—+tF+—_A=+—H0"' 5
4 ANR¥E576,742,00070 ) Efih &
MEELERERBITEROER
(R HzE21) -

TEEMEERAR

At 31 December 20
R=ZZE—NE+=-A=+—H

Notional

18

Liabilities
afE
RMB’000

Assets
BE
RMB’000

amount

EETHE
RMB’000

AR%ETR AR%ETR AR¥T
Foreign currency derivative SNESTET A
instruments
— Forward contracts —RHA L 452,045 - (201)
— Option contracts —HiEE L 1,153,361 105,251 -
Total B 1,605,406 105,251 (201)
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SO R R

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

18 Derivative financial assets and liabilities 18 TESREEREE (&2
(continued)

At 31 December 2017
R-ZB—tE+=-H=1+—H

Notional

amount Assets Liabilities
EEEHE aE &
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTTT ARBTTT

Foreign currency derivative SNESTHET A

instruments

— Forward contracts —BHEY 841,866 - (17,555)

- Option contracts —HiEA 4 3,677,645 7,073 (434)
Total 4T 4,519,511 7,073 (17,989)
The Group entered into foreign currency option and foreign NEBEBEBEITEIINEREBES O N
currency forward contracts with banks. As at 31 December INERHIELD RN ZE—N\FE+_H
2018, the notional amount of outstanding contracts =t+—H RINEAEHNZZELTEN
amounted to about USD 233,915,000 (2017: approximately A233,915,000F T (= F—+H %
USD 691,670,000). All these option and forward contracts are #41691,670,000% JT) - FT B Z = &
matured within one year. L RIBAENEN—FAREH -
The fair value of the foreign currency option contracts is SNEERRES A AT ETIEBAE D
measured using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model. Main T ERE— REER S AR
parameters used in the model include the spot price of the HANTFTEL2HpIEHEBEEE
foreign exchange rates as of the valuation date, strike rates, ROI(THREER R HJE X -« YN EE X
forward foreign exchange rates, implied volatilities of foreign M & &0 8) K DA N E b Fl =K o

exchange rates and the risk-free rates.

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts takes into INERBIS A Z AT EIEER T
account the market interest rate and the estimated future SRR G RHBENTESTARLE S
pay-off of the forward contracts. %H o

2018 FH E#MBE (KE)BERLA @
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31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ek BB 1EHAIN - LAAREHIR)

19 Pledged bank deposits 19 BEFRITFER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥ETTT
Pledged for BUATEEKF
— bank borrowings (Note 21) —IRITER (B aE21) 205,700 49,468
— bills payable (Note 22) —ENEE (#i722) 82,522 28,201
— letter of guarantee — IR K 80 800
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITER 288,302 78,469
The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the DR ETERAERNSEMRART
settlement of relevant bank borrowings, bills payable, and the B ENEE RIERLE H %R
maturity of letter of guarantee. g o

20 Cash and cash equivalents and othercash 20 HERESZEY R HMIE

flow information EREER
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (@) REeRBELEEYEIE:
2018 2017
—E—N\E —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR ARET T
Cash in hand FHRR® 21 47
Cash at bank RITHEK 99,899 464,935
Cash at bank and in hand RITFEAREFHERE 99,920 464,982
As at 31 December 2018, cash and cash equivalents )‘5/\ —E-NE+_-_R=+—
placed with banks in the Mainland China amounted to $;,’E<.7(_)\E|:l B N R 1T HY
approximately RMB64,962,000 (2017: approximately ﬁ/i\&iﬁ/\’fc‘“ﬁm ol =S N3
RMB133,408,000). Remittance of funds out of the 64,962,000 (ZZFE—+F : 49
Mainland China is subject to the relevant rules and AR #133,408,0007T) - B &
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by SE AR /,\L ST AR
the PRC government. JFF 48 5 19 481 B 9N B 5 140 B %
7y

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SO R R

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F& B AIERIN AAREFIR)

20 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 20 HENRELZEEBEY R EME
flow information (continued) EREEHR (&)

2018F 3R ESARHE (@)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRBARFNELE (FTA),
(used in)/generated from operations: SEHESWYHEE:
2018 2017
—E-N\E e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREETTT
Profit before taxation B 7 B A 1,330 509,515
Adjustments for: AT HIEFAE:
Depreciation e 234,486 135,228
Amortisation of lease TETET B
prepayments 1,080 416
Amortisation of intangible A E Y
assets 175 161
Interest expenses MBEMX 44,146 16,912
Interest income A B A (29,058) (18,377)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE HE&
plant and equipment R EE 15,687 383
Write-down of inventories FE MR 11,374 3,463
Impairment loss recognised/ B R,/ (#E)E 5Kk
(reversed) for trade and H b e W SR IR R B B 18
other receivables 182 (9,555)
Equity-settled share-based NREEEENROERR S
payment transactions 4,075 6,704
Net (gain)/loss on foreign SNEREIEH ()
currency forward contracts B BT (12,418) 17,555
Net loss on foreign currency — SNEEARES 4B BT 58
option contracts 2,341 47,911
Share of loss of an associate  FE & Bt & 2~ B & 18 24,561 16,918
Foreign exchange gain SN U 75 (14,168) (13,526)

BRLF @
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31 December 2018 ZE— \F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ek BB 1EHAIN - LAAREHIR)

20 Cash and cash equivalents and othercash 20 HENERELZEEBY R EME
flow information (continued) EHREER (&)

(b) BRBIATEFERE (FTA), Fr
BEENYEER: (£)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash
(used in)/generated from operations: (continued)

2018 2017
—E-—N\E e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B TR AREETTT
Changes in working capital: & & & & &
(Increase)/decrease in =8 (gm),w
inventories (27,151) 107,742
(Increase)/decrease in trade ¥ 5 N H b fE W k1B
and other receivables (hn) (1,427,683) 9,735
Increase in trade and E 5 I Eoth FE A B 18 0
other payables 918,290 1,401,875
(Increase)/decrease in pledged 17 R IR1THE TR
deposits with banks (#&m),md (54,321) 55,542
Increase in amounts due to  JE B B 5 3R IB LG AN
related parties 78,617 23,164
Decrease/(increase) in amounts [ Y B8 B 75 FIE R L
due from related parties () 17,651 (17,999)
Increase in deferred income ¥ i Y A 38 A0 51,050 2,859
Cash (used in)/generated from #4 (FrH) FiBIR &
operations (159,754) 2,296,626
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31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

20 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 20 HENRELZEEBEY R EME

flow information (continued) EREEBHR (&)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) MEEZHELE2EEBYER
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TERABANEBERMETHEL 2
from financing activities, including both cash and non- BESHFES BREREESNLIER
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities o MEEELZABED
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash BIREREXERREESHRER
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash NEFBEHBRERERDEA
flow statement as cash flows from financing activities. BE ISR S REZABE-
Bank
borrowings
BITHER
RMB’000
ARETTT
At 1 January 2018 R=ZF-N§—HA—8 1,078,119
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSHRELH:
Proceeds from new bank loans IRITERTESRIE 1,537,615
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (1,883,980
Total changes from financing cash flows BMERSREEBRE (346,365)
Exchange adjustments ELAE 10,076
Other change: Hih &g
Settlements of trade payables directly by the HERBTEBEIESERME
bank through import trade loan facilities HEZHEMNRE 436,411
At 31 December 2018 RZZB-—N\F+ZA=+—H 1,178,241

2018F 3 ESABE (RE)ARAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=xiid ﬁ?iﬁ%ﬁﬁ?

31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ek BB 1EHAIN - LAAREHIR)

20 Cash and cash equivalents and othercash 20 HENERELZEEBY R EME

flow information (continued) EREEHR (&)
(d) Major non-cash transactions d) FEFBEEXRS
Major non-cash transactions during the year included the FR FEIIRETHBEUT
following items: 15 B :
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFT
Settlements of trade BEERREBREEREES
payables directly by J& <7 518
the bills endorsement 414,771 589,205
Settlements of trade payables E%z HIRTTEBRENE S
directly by the bank through EXBMELEEZ S
import trade loan facilities AN 436,411 531,325
Total HET 851,182 1,120,530
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31 December 2018 —E— \F+_-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB AN UAREFIR)

21 Bank borrowings 21 RITHEN
As at 31 December 2018, the bank borrowings with effective N_E—-—NF+_A=+—H"
interest rate of 3.67% (2017: 3.31%) were repayable within BERMEAE3B7T% (T —+F:
one year or on demand as follows: 3 31% ) BZER —FANRIREKREERE
MBTERIT
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETFIT
Bank borrowings HRITE K
- secured (Note) — BT (K7 342,986 673,891
- unsecured — R 835,255 404,228
1,178,241 1,078,119
Note: The bank borrowings were secured by assets of the Group Fiat: RITETHAEENEEEE
and the carrying amounts of these assets are as follows: HOZEEENEREN T
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Other financial assets EMemEE
(Note 17) (Hat17) - 576,742
Pledged bank deposits BRIFIRITIF R
(Note 19) (H15#19) 205,700 49,468
Bills receivables (Note 16) FEN = (Hz16) - 37,513
Trade receivables (Note 16) B S5 rWEIE (Kit16) 147,825 46,224

353,525 709,947
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31 December 2018 ZE— \F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ek BB 1EHAIN - LAAREHIR)

22 Trade and other payables 22 ESRHMENRIE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR¥ETTT

Trade payables and accruals HSRENRIBERETER
- third parties —8=7x 2,290,395 1,858,471
— related parties (Note 31(c)) — @8 (#5E31(c) 102,951 24,334

Bills payable (Note (a)) FERE I (732 (a)

— third parties —%=7 399,892 770,356

Trade and bills payables (Note (b)) & 5 FEf 7018 & B 2 &

(K13E (b)) 2,793,238 2,653,161
Accrued payroll st T & 62,134 60,894
Foreign currency option premium  4hFE B & 110,538 -
Other payables and accruals (Note) E fth f& & 3018 & fE 5+ &
(K7at) 95,522 116,062
3,061,432 2,830,117
Note: As a result of the adoption of IFRS 15, advances received Bt - AR B R EXER]FE15
which is previously included in “Other payables and accruals” B e R BT [ E b fEff B
is included in contract liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and KMEGSER| B WEBEREFTA
disclosed in note 23 (see Note 1(c)(ii)). —E-NF+Z_A=+—BH4E

HaE WK F23Fh#HE (R K
F1(c)(i)) °

All of the trade and other payables as at 31 December 2018 RZE—-—NFE+_A=+—HHF

are expected to be settled or recognised as income within EESGRHMEMNFIBBEREAR —F

one year or are repayable on demand. NBEEHERBRANBIREKE
;ﬁ o
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31 December 2018 ZE— \F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB AN UAREFIR)

22 Trade and other payables (continued) 2 B REHMENTRE (&)
(a) Bills payable analysed by type of security (a) HIEHEBERIMZENLERE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR ARBFT
Bills payable secured by HATSEEERBMBEAZ
e R &
- Bills receivable (Note 16) —EBWER (Kit16) 21,805 27,427
- Pledged bank deposits —BEMRITER
(Note 19) (Hta£19) 70,445 20,153
— Trade receivables — & S ERFIE
(Note 16) (Hiit16) - 100,000
92,250 147,580
Bills payable unsecured BEARENZER 307,642 622,776
399,892 770,356

2018FFH  EHFHE (KM
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31 December 2018 ZE— \F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ek BB 1EHAIN - LAAREHIR)

22 Trade and other payables (continued) 2 BESREMENTE(Z)
(b) An ageing analysis of the trade and bills (b) ZREBHE S 2EZEMNRE
payables based on the invoice date is as FEAREEZREANOT :
follows:
2018 2017
—2-n% —E— i
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT T ARBFT
Within 3 months 318 A AR 2,366,602 1,700,477
More than 3 months but FB@31E A 1B R6ME A AR
within 6 months 308,632 695,397
More than 6 months but HBiBeME AEM1FE AR
within 1 year 16,217 169,407
More than 1 year HBiE1F 3,379 11,422
2,694,830 2,676,703
As at 31 December 2018, the accrued trade payables R-ZE-NE+=-A=+—8"
which represented the amounts with no invoice received BT E ZFENMNFIE (BIFE R
by the end of the year, amounted to approximately EWHBREZENRIE) N ABEARE
RMB98,408,000 (2017: approximately RMB76,458,000). 98,408,0007T (= —t 4 : 4

AR #76,458,0007T) °
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SO R R

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F& B AIERIN AAREFIR)

23 Contract liabilities 23 EHEE
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-N\F —E-NF —ET—t5F
+=—A=+—8 —A—H +ZA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBEF T AR®EF T
Receipts in advance SN €O E] 28,391 24,099 -
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative Hiit: REBCVIREBEBETELE
effect method and adjusted the opening balance at 1 January FB B PR B AS R XE RSB 155% - I
2018. RZE—NF—H—BFAEHY
ke
As a result of initial application of IFRS 15, contract liabilities, R A #1186 e B B B B 7 R &5 £ I 38
including receipts in advance from customers, as at 31 155 RZFE—N\F+_A=+—
December 2018 are separately presented (see Note 1(c)(i). H-é#4aE&(BREEREPZRE)

TEBEY (RHE10))) °

All of the amount of receipts in advance is expected to be FrETBWIBERFTBHR —FRNER
recognised as income within one year. BUA o

2018F 3 ESABE (RE)ARAT @
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PR R EE

31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

24 Deferred income

24 EFEYW A

Government
grant
BUS By
RMB’000
AREFT
At 1 January 2017 R=—ZF—+F—HF—H 11,739
Additions during the year FARE 5,000
Amortisation credited to consolidated FFAEHIERK
statement of profit or loss and H b 2 Uk 25 R O 8
other comprehensive income (2,141)
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZE—+tF+ZA=T—HK
—2—-N\¥—HA—H 14,598
Additions during the year FARNE 56,690
Amortisation credited to consolidated FAEHIERK
statement of profit or loss and H b 2 T Uk 25 R A 8
other comprehensive income (5,640)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+=-_A=+—H 65,648

25 Employee retirement benefits

Defined contribution retirement plans

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organized by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities whereby the PRC subsidiaries are required
to make contributions at the rate of 20% starting from 1
December 2011 (before 1 December 2011: 18%) of the
eligible employees’ salary rate to the Schemes. The Group
has accrued for the required contributions which are remitted
to the respective local government authorities when the
contributions become due. The local government authorities
are responsible for the pension obligations payable to the
retired employees covered under the Schemes.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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Ko B AR RS 4 48 PT A S RO SROE R R
KEMEHE ([%EHE)) Bl -B=F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Employee retirement benefits (continued)

Defined contribution retirement plans (continued)

Starting from 2014, the Group also operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously covered
by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF Scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
(HK$25,000 prior to June 2014). Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits beyond the contributions described above.

Equity settled share-based transactions

On 13 November 2014, the Company adopted a pre-IPO
share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
and a share option conversion scheme (the “Conversion
Scheme”) and granted a total of 59,935,500 share options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to the eligible
participants with an aim to reward their contribution to
the Group made or possibly made. The directors of the
Company were authorised, at their discretion, to invite
certain employees of the Group, including directors of any
company in the Group, to take up options at Nil consideration
to subscribe for shares of the Company. The share options
under Employee Share Option Scheme were converted into
share options of the Company, with 1 share option under
Employee Share Option Scheme being converted into
100,000 share options of the Company, at the same terms
and conditions, except that the respective exercise prices
were adjusted on a proportionate basis from RMB40,000
to RMBO0.4 per share. In 2017, the remaining 13,826,000
options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were all
exercised to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company.

PR R EE

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)
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EBERKERN (&)
REHRFBINE (F)

B-T-OFE AEETRE (FER
HIERABEE A EEE) SREE (ERE
fRfl) BT RFBNZ AL RBAFE
BHEARAENREEERBRFIMERAES
8 ([RfE2FE])  -RESHE /A
BYZFEABEENAEHR/FRREE -
REBRESHE BRENEEBEEAD A
FFEVEABRREE A B RSNBIESHF
FAMEBABH LR S30,00087T (—F
—PHF X AR A25,00087T) © $ 5T BIE
H ) SR BN 53 88

B B SRIASN  REBE B TR SR
MA|EMBEAEE

DESEEUARGHERD

X%

RZZ—NF+—A+=8 ' ZRQEER
TERAABEAERESTSE ([ERA
FEEREREE]) R —EHBRES
®EtE (TEmetal])  RBBREXAH
BEAERESEMEGERSEERY
$5159,935,50017 FE AR #& - & 7 52 fth 7
Bk A D HAEBIEL B ER - AR
AEFERENNBSEBASEBNE
B (RRAEBAMNAFTNES) AER
BEMNERERBARRRG - EEBK
BAEET 2 ERECEBRARAAZ
FERRRE  IRMERGRRGEGHEE1DES
FERRERTEITA T < BB AR EE2 4100,000
MARRNT B HRRTEEEBAA
R¥640,000 2L I AR ZBRARYE
04T MZT—LF  BXRHABEAE
A B AT 8118 T /9 #2 T13,826,00017 i f%
BEEERBTEURBARARLER
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PR R EE

31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

On 26 October 2016, the Company granted a total of
39,425,000 share options (the “2016 Share Option Scheme”)
to eligible participants to subscribe for a total of 39,425,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the
Company, subject to performance conditions related to
certain revenue growth target of the Company’s 2017, 2018
and 2019 financial years. Details of the three tranches of the
2016 Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 26(a)(i).

On 9 June 2017, the Company granted share options (the
“2017 Share Option Scheme | and 2017 Share Option
Scheme II”) to 48 eligible participants (“Grantees”) to
subscribe for a total of 8,083,000 ordinary share of HK$0.01
each in the capital of the Company, subject to performance
conditions related to certain revenue growth target of the
Company’s 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 financial years.
Details of the 2017 Share Option Scheme | and 2017 Share
Option Scheme Il are set out in Note 26(a)(ii) and Note 26(a)

().

On 7 December 2018, the Company granted share options
(the “2018 Share Option Scheme”) to 83 eligible participants
(“Grantees”) to subscribe for a total of 12,720,000 ordinary
share of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company, subject
to performance conditions related to certain revenue growth
target of the Company’s 2019, 2020 and 2021 financial
years. Details of the 2018 Share Option Scheme are set out in
Note 26(a)(iv).

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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X5 (4&

RZE—RE+AZ+B KQAFMA
A E K2 EER TG $£39,425,0001 &
IR ([ ZZ—NFHERETE]) LARE
AR E R A A A $£39,425,0008% & A%
BEO.ONVB T2 EBR  EEFERAQT
2t ZE-NA\RZE-NFHREE
ZETWAER B IR 21T R EERK
B HAEE W H T — N F R
ETE 2 FHIB AT 7E26(a)() ©

W

RZE—tFRNANE  ARQEMR48%
GEB2EE ([ABEADRLERE
(22—t EEREFEIR - —tF
BRETEN]D URBAAFRRAFE
8,083,000k & R EBEO0.01E T2 LB
B-EESFEEARG ZE—C ZF
— )\ ZE-NAR T THHREEZH
TFWAE R BB ZITRIGMEERE - 7
AEE Tt FHEREFTEINRZ
—HFERET S FHBEEH M FE26(q)
(i) X2 B 5E 26 (a)(jii) °

R-ZZE—NF+-AtB A1 7ME83
ZARBEK2EE ([ARA)RLER
([T NFERETE]) AREX
A AP A R A $£12,720,0000% & B% &
0.01 BTz Bk WAGEMALQTZ
TN ZEZERZFUHBFE
Z2HETRAER BB ZITEGHEEER
% HAMEE . — B — \FREIRESE
FEIBE M FE26(a)(v) ©
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31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

26 EmEH RO ABERRD
X5 (%)

(a) BWHEERREAEDT :

26 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as

follows:

Vesting conditions

BERAG

Number of  Years from the Contractual life
instruments  date of grant of options
TEEE BREAHEHZFR BRENSHNFH
() 2016 Share Option Scheme:
“E-AFBRETE:
Granted to directors:
BYEs:
- on 26 October 2016 1,124,800 1 year and 5 months 2 years and 2 months
—-RZIE-RF+HAZ+RXAH 1EZ5M A 2ET2(AR
- on 26 October 2016 843,600 2 years and 5 months 3 years and 2 months
—-RZE-RET+HZ+/H 2FET5(E A SEZ2MEA
- on 26 October 2016 843,600 3 years and 5 months 4 years and 2 months
-RIE-RE+HZ+XE 3FZ5(E A 4FT2ME A
Granted to employees:
BYEE:
- on 26 October 2016 14,645,200 1 year and 5 months 2 years and 2 months
—-RIZE-RFE+HAZ+RXAH 15 Z508 A 2 T2 A
- on 26 October 2016 10,983,900 2 years and 5 months 3 years and 2 months
—-RZE-R"ET+HA=+/AE 2EZ5(E A SFEZ2{E A
- on 26 October 2016 10,983,900 3 years and 5 months 4 years and 2 months
“-RZE-RFTAZtRH 3FZ5(E A 4FT2ME A
Total 39,425,000
e
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31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

26 EmEE UKD HERRD
X5 (%)

(a) RHMKEAREENT @ (&)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as

follows: (continued)

Vesting conditions

BB RS

Number of  Years from the Contractual life
instruments  date of grant of options
TAYE BELAPEHZER BRENSHNFD
(i) 2017 Share Option Scheme I:
—E-tFBRETEN:
Granted to employees:
RTEE:
—-on 9 June 2017 1,935,200 9 months 1 year and 6months
-RZE—+FXANE ofEl A 156 A
—-on 9 June 2017 1,451,400 1 year and 9 months 2 years and 6 months
“-RZZE—+FXANHA 1EZOE A 2FZ61E A
—-on 9 June 2017 1,451,400 2 years and 9 months 3 years and 6 months
—-RZE—tFXANA 2FZOfE A 3FEZ6ME A
Total 4,838,000
By
(iii) 2017 Share Option Scheme II:
“E-tFBRESEN:
Granted to employees:
FTRS:
—-on 9 June 2017 1,298,000 1 year and 9months 2 years and 6 months
—-RZE—tFANA 15 Z9fE A 2FZ6ME A
—-on 9 June 2017 973,500 2 years and 9 months 3 years and 6 months
—-RZE—tFRANA 2FZ9fE A 3FZ6fE A
—-on 9 June 2017 973,500 3 years and 9 months 4 years and 6 months
-RZE—+tFSANA 3FZIME A AF L6 A
Total 3,245,000
mE
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31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

26 EmEH RO ABERRD
X5 (%)

(a) RHMEAREMENT @ (&)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as
follows: (continued)

Vesting conditions
BERT

Number of  Years from the Contractual life

instruments  date of grant of options
TAYE BELAPEHZER BRENSHNFH
(iv) 2018 Share Option Scheme:
—E-N\FERETE:
Granted to employees:
RTEE:
- on 7 December 2018 5,088,000 1 year and 4 months 2 years and 1 month
-RZZE-N\F+=-A+tH 1E T4 A 2FT11E A
- on 7 December 2018 3,816,000 2 years and 4 months 3 years and 1 month
-RZE-A\Ft-HALR 2 T4EARA SET1EA
- on 7 December 2018 3,816,000 3 years and 4 months 4 years and 1 month
“-RZZE-N\F+ZH+H SFZT4EA 4FZ1E A
Total 12,720,000

B
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31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fk R A AN UAARBEHIR)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions 26 UERGEEURDAERDN

(continued) X5 (&)
(b) The number and exercise prices of share (b) BEREHERITHEENT

options are as follows:

(i) 2016 Share Option Scheme: () =E—NFERETE:
2018 2017
—B-N\f I
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
THE BREHE TRE  EREZEA
RMB ’000 RMB '000
AR% T T4 AR T
Outstanding at the RERHRTE
beginning of the year 413 36,765 413 38,744
Forfeited during the year ~ RER B KM 4.13 (1,568) 4.13 (1,979)
Exercised during the year ~ RER AT {71 413 (14,706) -

Outstanding at the end RERBARITR
of the year 413 20,491 413 36,765

Exercisable at the end RERATE

of the year - -
The 2016 Share Options outstanding at 31 RZEBE—NF+_A=+—H
December 2018 had an exercise price of HKD4.13 WMATHEHN T —NFER
(2017: HKD4.13) and a weighted average remaining BENTEEALIASE T (ZZ
contractual life of 0.9 years (2017: 1.9 years). —+F 413F ) LA R InEF
HRBENFERROIF (=T
—tF1.9F)
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26 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(b) The number and exercise prices of share

options are as follows: (continued)

(i) 2017 Option Scheme |

Outstanding at the
beginning of the year
Granted during the year
Forfeited during the year
Exercised during the year

Outstanding at the end
of the year

Exercisable at the end
of the year

REE KT
RERERA
RERTRA
RERATE

REREKITHE

RERATE

PR R EE

31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr B8N LAARBHIR)

26 EmEH ARG HERRD

TieE
HKD
B

6.22

6.22
6.22

6.22

The 2017 Share Options Scheme | outstanding at
31 December 2018 had an exercise price of HKD
6.22 (2017: HKD6.22) and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 0.9 years (2017: 1.9

years).

X5 (#%&)

(b) BREHERTEENT:

(%)

(i) =F—tFBKETEI

2018 2017
—B-N\f B
Exercise
price

Number of Exercise Number of
options price options
BREHE TRE  EREZEA
‘000 HKD ‘000

T4 BT Tin

3,548 -
- 6.22 4,838

(238) 6.22 (1,290)

(1,419) -

1,891 6.22 3,548

RZZE—-N\F+=ZA=+—H
MARTTEN - T — L FBAE
M ITEE RG22 L (=
T—+1F :6.22/870) WA K InHE
FHFBENFHAEIF (=
E—+EF1.9F) -
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31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fk R A AN UAARBEHIR)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions 26 UERGEEURDAERDN

(continued) X5 (&)
(b) The number and exercise prices of share (b) BEREHERITHEENT
options are as follows: (continued) (4&)
(i) 2017 Share Option Scheme Il (i) —FE—EFERETEN
2018 2017
—B-N\f I
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
168 BREHE 16/ g 24s
HKD ‘000 HKD ‘000
BT T4 BT T
Outstanding at the REHKRTE
beginning of the year 6.22 3,005 -
Granted during the year ~ RERBERE - 6.22 3,245
Forfeited during the year ~ RERB KM 6.22 (2,605) 6.22 (240)

Outstanding at the end RERBARITR
of the year 6.22 400 6.22 3,005

Exercisable at the end RERATE

of the year - - -
The 2017 Share Options Scheme Il outstanding at N-—_E—-NE+=-_A=+—H
31 December 2018 had an exercise price of HKD WMARITEN - — - FREALRE
6.22 (2017: HKD 6.22) and a weighted average FTENMITEE A6.228 T (=
remaining contractual life of 1.9 years (2017: 2.9 T—+F:6.22870) W K IN#E
years). FARBENFRR/19F (=

T—tF:29F) -
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31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions 26 IEREEURGAERDN

(continued) X% (&)
(b) The number and exercise prices of share (b) BEREHERTHEENT
options are as follows: (continued) (4&)
(iv) 2018 Share Option Scheme (iv) —E—NFHBREHE
2018
—E-NF
Exercise Number of
price options
TEE BREZER
HKD 000
BT T 12
Granted during the year REANEET 4.65 12,720
Forfeited during the year RERNB KK 4.65 -
Outstanding at the end RERMERITE
of the year 4.65 12,720
Exercisable at the end RERTITHE
of the year - -
The 2018 Share Options Scheme outstanding at 31 R-EBE—NEFE+-_A=+—H
December 2018 had an exercise price of HKD 4.65 MARITERN —Z — )\ FErREALRE
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of HFEBITEE B4.658 T K
2.9 years. mEFE IR EHFEHAE2.9
ﬂz o
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31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

26 EmEE RO ABERRD

26 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued) X5 (&
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BRENATEFEREBR

The fair value of services received in return for share

DA i B PR R N ) IR A5 0 2 P B
options granted is measured by reference to the fair 2EGHERENATLES -
value of share options granted.

(i) 2016 Share Option Scheme: () ZE—-—NFBRETZ:

The estimate of the fair value of the 2016 Share B - N EERREN G
ANFER-_BEARETERE
AAE-BRENSNFHEZ
BEIRE R ABIEEMA - 12
FITEERED B AZEKESR

Options granted is measured based on a Binomial
Option Pricing Model. The contractual life of the
share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into

the model. Ao
2016 2016 2016
Employee Employee Employee
Share Share Share
Options Options Options
—E-RF —E-RE —E-RF
EERKRE EEBEKRE EERKRE
Vesting date &A1 01/04/2018 01/04/2019 01/04/2020
—T-N\F —T-NEF —T-TF
mA—H mA—H mA—H
Maturity date Epil= 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2020
—T-N\F —E-NEF —T-TF
+ZA=+—8B +zZA=+—8 +=ZA=+-—H
Fair value at RETEHE® HKDO.48 HKDO0.35 HKDO.26
measurement date ~NEE 0.48% T 0.35/8 7T 0.26% 7T
Share price & HKD4.13 HKD4.13 HKD4.13
413587 41358 7T 4138 7T
Exercise price (Note(b)(i)) TEE (HEm)) HKD4.13 HKD4.13 HKD4.13
41357t 41358 7T 4138 7T
Expected volatility TR IR 40.86% 40.64% 40.63%
Risk-free interest rate 2 3 B ) 0.47% 0.51% 0.58%
Expected dividends FEHER S 0.49% 0.49% 0.49%
Forfeiture rate R 2.25% 2.25% 2.25%
Suboptimal early exercise REREAFRER 1.85 1.85 1.85

factor
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26 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

0

(i)

2016 Share Option Scheme: (continued)

The expected volatility was referenced to the
average of daily historical share price volatility of
comparable companies operating in similar industry
of the Company. Expected dividends are estimated
as the average of the Company’s historical
dividends. The option scheme was granted under
a performance condition, and management of the
Company estimates the probability of attaining
revenue growth target. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate. There were no market conditions
associated with the share option grants.

2017 Share Option Scheme I:

The estimate of the fair value of the 2017 Share
Options granted is measured based on a Binomial
Option Pricing Model. The contractual life of the
share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into
the model.

PR R EE

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

26 LERGEUROGAERDN

X5 (#%&)

(c) BRENAFERRR (&)

@

(i)

ZE-ANFERESE (F)

BEHIRIE 32 E R AR RRU
TEEZNAELRARNA
Y IE St R (B R o TR B AR B A
ARARRESRE®H TS
2o BB BB AT &) D IR IR AR IR Ik
T RARRFEREMGFHEDR
AERBFRHAIGEMEMBE L -
TEHABBERROEMNEL
AHAFEMBAERNERNT
B-REBRELEMHTTIS
fifF -

—E-tFERETE

Bh Tt EBRENGE
NP ER-BEARETERL
AE-BRENSOFHEZX
BERRESBABRBER 1R
RTENEHECHAZRE
o
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31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

26 EmGHEIURDABERRD
X5 (&

(c) BRENAFERRBRR (&)

(continued)
(i) 2017 Share Option Scheme I: (continued) (i) =ZF—LtFEBEREFE G (&)
2017 2017 2017
Employee Employee Employee
Share Share Share
Options Options Options
—E—tF —E—tE —E—tF
EERKE EEBEKRE EERKRE
Vesting date B A 01/04/2018 01/04/2019 01/04/2020
—T-N\F —E-NEF —TZTF
mA—H mA—H mA—H
Maturity date 38R 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2020
—T-N\F —E-NEF —TZTF
+ZA=+—8 +ZA=+—8H +ZA=+-—H
Fair value at Rt M HKDO0.58 HKDO.47 HKDO.36
measurement date NFE 0.588 T 0.47&TT 0.36/8 T
Share price B HKD6.22 HKD6.22 HKD6.22
6.22/5 7T 6.22/8 T 6.22/5 7T
Exercise price (Note(b)(i) TEE (B a b)) HKD6.22 HKD6.22 HKD6.22
6.2278 7T 6.2278 7T 8.2278 7T
Expected volatility TEH O 1R 37.86% 40.07% 39.51%
Risk-free interest L B ) 2 0.57% 0.71% 0.80%
Expected dividends TBHIR B 0.41% 0.41% 0.41%
Forfeiture rate & 5.61% 5.61% 5.61%
Suboptimal early exercise REREAFRE 1.85 1.85 1.85
factor

The expected volatility was referenced to the
average of daily historical share price volatility of
comparable companies operating in similar industry
of the Company. Expected dividends are estimated
as the average of the Company’s historical
dividends. The option scheme was granted under
a performance condition, and management of the
Company estimates the probability of attaining
revenue growth target. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate. There were no market conditions
associated with the share option grants.
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31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

26 EmEH RO ABERRD
X5 (%)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

(c) BRENAFERRBRR (&)

(i) 2017 Share Option Scheme II: (i) —FE—tFEREAE :

The estimate of the fair value of the 2017 Share B -+ FERENGS
NP ER-_IBEAEEEERR
AE-BRENSHFHREZX
BRRERSBABEER 1R
BrENEHED W AZRE

Options granted is measured based on a Binomial
Option Pricing Model. The contractual life of the
share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into

the model. Ao
2017 2017 2017
Employee Employee Employee
Share Share Share
Options Options Options
—E—tF —E—tF —E—tF
EERKE EEBEKRE EERKRE
Veesting date B A 01/04/2019 01/04/2020 01/04/2021
ZE-NEF —TCTEF —T- %
mA—H mA—H mA—H
Maturity date Epil= 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2021
—T-NF —T-TE —E- %
+ZA=+—8 +zZA=+—8 +ZA=+-—H
Fair value at Rt EBHHH HKD0.47 HKDO0.36 HKDO.21
measurement date RNEE 04738 0.36/8 7T 0.218 7T
Share price (& HKD6.22 HKD6.22 HKD6.22
6.22/8 7T 6.22/8 7T 6.228 7T
Exercise Price (Noteb)fii) — 11E1E (172 (b)) HKD6.22 HKD6.22 HKD6.22
6.228 7T 8.22 T 6.22/8 7T
Expected volatility TR IR 40.07% 39.51% 40.39%
Risk-free interest rate 3 b ) 0.71% 0.80% 0.90%
Expected dividends FEHERE 0.41% 0.41% 0.41%
Forfeiture rate R 5.61% 5.61% 5.61%
Suboptimal early exercise REREAIFRER 1.85 1.85 1.85

factor

2018F 3 ESABE (RE)ARAT
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26 Equity settled share-based transactions 26 UERGEEURGDAEREDN
(continued) X5 (#E)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

(c) BRENAFERRBRR (&)

(iij) 2017 Share Option Scheme II: (continued) (i) =FE—EEFEBRETEN: (&)

The expected volatility was referenced to the

FEHIKIR 2 E R AR AU

average of daily historical share price volatility of
comparable companies operating in similar industry
of the Company. Expected dividends are estimated
as the average of the Company’s historical
dividends. The option scheme was granted under
a performance condition, and management of the
Company estimates the probability of attaining
revenue growth target. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair

TRELNAELRARKNA
19 S B (BB ME - TREARR B 1
AAARRELKRE®NFH
o BB R 8 DRI R IR KR
HRARFEREMRFTERI
ABRBFEHRIREEME L -
TEBEABBERRNERNEZL
A RAFEMBSERNENT
E-ROBRELENSHS

value estimate. There were no market conditions {618 o
associated with the share option grants.
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26 EmEH RO ABERRD
X5 (%)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

(c) BRENAFERRBRR (&)

(iv) 2018 Share Option Scheme: (iv)] —E—NFERETE:

The estimate of the fair value of the 2018 Share BH T \FEERENGHT
NP ER-_IBEAEEEERR
AE-BRENSHFHREZX
R E R ABIEE A - 12
BrENEHED W AZRE

Options granted is measured based on a Binomial
Option Pricing Model. The contractual life of the
share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into

the model. Ao
2018 2018 2018
Employee Employee Employee
Share Share Share
Options Options Options
—E-N\F —E-N\§ —E-N\F
EEBRE EEBRE EEBRE
Vesting date %E A A 01/04/2020 01/04/2021 01/04/2022
Maturity date 38R 31/12/2020 31/12/2021 31/12/2022
Fair value at REtERHH HKDO0.34 HKDO.40 HKDO0.45
measurement date NFE 0.34% 7T 0.407% 7T 0.45/8 7T
Share price BB HKD4.42 HKD4.42 HKD4.42
4.4275 7T 4.42%7T 44278 7T
Exercise Price (Note(b)iv) — 11{E1& (M7 b)) HKD4.65 HKD4.65 HKD4.65
4.65% 7T 4.65% 7T 4.65% 7T
Expected volatility TE R & 50.96% 48.60% 48.92%
Risk-free interest rate 28 I A = 1.99% 2.02% 2.05%
Expected dividends TEHER S 1.76% 1.76% 1.76%
Forfeiture rate ERE 6.57% 6.57% 6.57%
Suboptimal early exercise REREAFRER 1.85 1.85 1.85

factor

2018F 3 ESABE (RE)ARAT @
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26 Equity settled share-based transactions 26 UERGEEURDAERDN
(continued) X5 (#E)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

(c) BRENAFERRBRR (&)

(iv) 2018 Share Option Scheme: (continued) (iv) —E—NFBRETE: (&)

The expected volatility was referenced to the
average of daily historical share price volatility of
comparable companies operating in similar industry
of the Company. Expected dividends are estimated
as the average of the Company’s historical
dividends. The option scheme was granted under
a performance condition, and management of the
Company estimates the probability of attaining
revenue growth target. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate. There were no market conditions

FEHIKIR 2 E R AR AU
TRELNAELRARKNA
19 E S B B R o TE A AR B Al
AAARRELKRE®NFH
o BB R 8 DRI R IR KR
HRARFEREMRFTERI
ABRBFEHRIREEME L -
TEBEABBERRNERNEZL
A RAFEMBSERNENT
E-ROBRELENSHS
{4

associated with the share option grants.

27 Income tax in the consolidated statement 27 §3BBRRKRPPFRER
of financial position

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement

(a) &OFBI AR R EY RN B R

of financial position represents: ig :
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR¥ETTT
Current tax payable B B PE {3 Bt 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax PR EMER 1,835 8,033
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27 Income tax in the consolidated statement 27 & B ERRKRB W RER

of financial position (continued) (A&

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) EERNEERELEERERS:
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities FRRE FHIHBARR R ERHIELE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial HMEEELGENBEKI G L&
position and the movements during the year are as (N
follows:

Unrealised
Fair value profit  Impairment
change of ~ Undistributed  arising from  on inventories
financial profits of PRC intra-group and trade Deferred Cumulative
instruments  subsidiaries  transactions  receivables income tax losses Total

ERMRLTE BER
SRIA PEMEOEN  RAELN  ERENAE
DYEZE  RAREA  REREA AE EEMA  RHEER it
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBIOOD
ARBTL  ARBTZ  ARBTR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2017 WZE-+t£-B-H (2919 2,040) 3501 1,924 1,761 - 2,47
Charged/(credited) o fke/ (GA)

consolidated statement of profit A G B%R (#i750))

or loss (Nots 53) 3305 (2,365) (646) (1,125) 129 - (312

At 31 December 2017 and RZE—tf

1 January 2018 +-A=+-8k
“2-\¥-f-H 476 (4,405) 2,875 799 2,190 - 1,935
Charged/(credited) to nka/ (A ER
profit or loss (\ots 5(3) (Writs) 347 3977 1) 1,024 7,657 6,395 19,379
Charged to reserves Note 8 T B 1E (#7i28) - - - - - 243 243
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+zh=t-A 83 ) 2854 1,623 9847 6,638 21,567

2018F 3 ESABE (RE)ARAT @
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27 Income tax in the consolidated statement 27 & tB&E R RETHHNFFER
(4&)

of financial position (continued)

(c) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of
financial position:

(c)

Net deferred tax assets & B B TSR 5 5% T AR A
recognised in the consolidated ~ EXEFIBE EFE
statement of financial position

Net deferred tax liabilities & OB TSRO R B AR Y
recognised in the consolidated — IEXLF:{1E & (&% 58
statement of financial position

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

The Group did not recognise deferred tax liabilities in
respect of the PRC dividend withholding tax relating
to certain undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2018 since the Group controls
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries. Based
on the assessment of the management, as of 31
December 2018, the undistributed profits amounted to
approximately RMB967,673,000 (2017: approximately
RMB870,336,000) will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

@ Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018

BOF BRI REIR:

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥ETTT

(d)

21,985 7,672

(428) (5,737)

21,557 1,935
AERELEBEAE

REBWEGHREWNBEATNR-Z
—N\F+_A=+—HBHEEET
K5 B s A B A R B IR B TR N R
BREEMIBAE RATRAEE
PRI ST B A AR AR B R - BB
EEEG BE_T-N\FE+=
A=+—H XoBE&aF&ELHA
R #967,673,0007T (=T —+4F:

4 A R #870,336,00070) # T & K
AFEREAREKDE -
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28 Capital, reserves and dividends 28 5 -RERRE
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) I BE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REEBSHERS OO FEY LF
balances of each component of the Group’s RERHEBREHEN MRS
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated RoARDAIEBRERLHRENE
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in FERNEBEEEFE O

the Company’s individual components of equity between
the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

Equity
settled Retained
share- based profits/
Share Share Exchange Other payment  (accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve loss) Total
IEHEEN
HRRA REEA/
B& RHEE EXRE Hibfe  ERGRHEG (R5HER) #it
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i3 AEEFT AEEFTL AEEFT AEEFTL AEEFT AEEFT AEBEFIL
284) 260l 280v) 2801
At 1 January 2017 R=Z—+%-F-H 8,605 813211 89,593 66 3,622 2,512 917,609
Share issued under share RERRETHETREG
option schemes 28(c)fi) 122 7,908 - - (2,495) - 5,530
Equity settled share-based INEREEMNRA B
payment transactions ARAFZS ) - - - - 6,704 - 6,704
Shares issued for the Placement 1B — MR ERE & B 17k (3
under general mandate 28(c)fii) 168 178,897 - - - - 179,065
Profit for the year FEREH - - - - - 20,784 20,784
Dividend approved in respect ~ BEFEHAERS
of the previous year - - - - - (37,145) (37,145)
Other comprehensive income Hip2EhE - - (48,308) - - - (48,308)
Asat 31 December 2017and  MZF—+FFZA=+-AR
1 January 2018 (notg) —2-N\§-R-H(Hi#) 8,89 1,000,011 41,285 66 7,831 (13,849) 1,044,239
Share issued under share BEBREERITRE
option schemes 28(c)fi) 127 61,384 - - (6,918) - 54,593
Equity settled share-based INEREEMNRA B
payment transactions ERAZRS ) - - - - 4,075 - 4,075
Profit for the year FEREF - - - - - 64,758 64,758
Dividend approved in respect ~ BEFER RS
of the previous year 280)i) - - - - - (91,622) 91,622
Other comprehensive income Hi 2 Ak - - 40,916 - - - 40,916
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+-A=+-B 9,022 1,061,395 82,201 66 4,988 (40,713) 1,116,959
Note: The Group, including the company, has initially Yoz RER (BEAAT)ER
applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018, —E-NF-—HA—B¥%
Under the transition methods chosen, FE A B RR B 7 s A2 BN R
comparative information is not restated. See 1557 K BIFR B 75 4 25 2E Al
Note 1(c). FOT  BIZFTIEZEMIBE
FE KRB LR EF -
Rix1(e) e

2018F 3 ESABE (RE)ARAT
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28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 28 ¥& - -H#ERRKRE (&)

(b) Dividends

() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year

(b) B

()

Final dividend proposed after R iREHALEREEZS

the end of the reporting RHABREBARKEZ S
period of RMB Nil cents (ZE—+t%F:

(2017: RMB7.8 cents) ARE78%7) (FBER
(equivalent to Nil cents AW (ZE—t5F:
(2017: HKD9.6 cents)) 9.6%1) )

The final dividend proposed after the end of the year
has not been recognised as a liability as at the end
of the reporting period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year.

=]
T

FRENELRBEFEAR
£

2018 2017
S e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT 5 AR T

- 87,017

(i)

Final dividend in respect of BEFACHERSINZ

the previous financial year, E— B0 R EE REARR
approved and paid during BEAARYT 8D

the year of RMB7.8 cents —E—tF: AR
(2017: RMB3.5 cents) 3.57) (FBER
(equivalent to HKD9.6 cents ~ 9.6761lll (=T —+ 4 :
(2017: HKD3.9 cents)) 3.9%4L) )

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018

RBERR RAFEERR
EEORAREHRERZA

& -

FAESHERZNZ L —1ER
B FEENELAKREFEA
KRE -

2018 2017
—E-NF Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT AW T T

91,622 37,145
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28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 28 BE&€  -#ERKRE (&)

(c) Share capital (c) B
(i) Authorised and issued share capital () ZEREBRITERE
Number of
shares Amount
R EE &8
'000 HK$’000
T FHET
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of FR%0.0178 T2
HK$0.01 each gl 50,000,000 500,000
Number of Nominal value of
shares ordinary shares
RHO#E EBEREE
Note '000 HK$'000 RMB'000
izt T T ARETRT
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR:
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 1,081,771 10,817 8,605
Shares issued under REERER B BTRO
Share Option Scheme (il 13,826 138 122
Shares issued for the Placement FtE & %47 () (i) 20,000 200 168
At 31 December 2017 and RZZT—+tF
1 January 2018 +ZA=+-8%
—Z-\¥-A—H 1,115,597 11,155 8,895
Shares issued under REERER BB TRO
Share Option Scheme (i) 16,125 161 127
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\%
+=-A=+-H 1,131,722 11,316 9,022

2018F 3 ESABE (RE)ARAT @
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28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Shares issued under Share Option Scheme

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe
for 16,125,000 ordinary shares in the Company at
a consideration of approximately RMB54,593,000
(2017: 13,826,000 ordinary shares in the Company
at a consideration of approximately RMB5,530,400).
RMB6,918,000 was transferred from the equity
settled share-based payment reserve to the share
premium account (2017: RMB2,495,000).

Shares issued for the Placement under general
mandate

On 29 December 2017, an aggregate of
20,000,000 shares were allotted and issued at
HKD10.80 per share. The net proceeds after
deducting placing commission, professional
fees and all related expenses, is approximately
RMB179,065,000.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

()

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of
the Company are distributable to the shareholders
of Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividends is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018

(B =AHEAN UARKEDIR)

28 E& -REERE (&)

(c) A& (#&

(i)

(iit)

REBIKE B RITIR G

FA-BREETEUNRRE
# A R #54,593,0007T 32 B A
A 7]16,125,0008% & 3@ % (=
T—tF BEREHARKE
5,530,400 7 #%13,826,000
fRAR ) - B AR & E R
MAEERNRERHBARE
6,918,000 L8 & = IR 10 &
BER(ZZE—tF: AR%
2,495,0007T ) °

RIE—RREREERTRG

RZZE—+tF+=-A=+h
B A8 KEK%H10.80/% T
2% & #1774 $£20,000,0000% B
9 o FT1S SR IBF 58 (KSR BE
Efle BXEBELDHEMEA
$ &) # /B AR 179,065,000

JG °

(d) HEHEERAZR

U

BG&EE

REFEHFERRE (KE
) ARBRMDEER LW
B2A Nk TARBRR A
RAEEEBREREERAZ
B ARBMNARENEREZR
BiBiEFIFERIMRE -
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28 B -REERE (&)

d) RENEERAR(E)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(i) Exchange reserve

(i) EZRE

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
financial statements of operations outside Mainland
China which are dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in note 1(w).

(iij) PRC Statutory reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the PRC, the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in
the Mainland China are required to appropriate 10%
of their after-tax-profit (after offsetting prior year
losses) as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital. The transfer to this
reserve must be made before distribution of profits
to parent companies.

The statutory reserve can be utilised, upon approval
by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated
losses or to increase capital of the subsidiary,
provided that the balance after such issue is not
less than 25% of its registered capital.

(iii)

PN A ERBRE BRI
SR S MR T H) —
DISNEZRR  HERETRE
B RE1 (W)PT B & ST BUR R 32

o B E 1

WP BERERRE ARAR
REA MR R EERE R
AERERPEEARAUR
AREE R RENA10%
(REHETFBRR) BALE
EHEE BEERBESRER
& A #950% 4% 1 - 8 R T %
[ AR A & 2 B 23 IRk A A
AT

AERBFEARELERT
A] A A 8 Rt B 1R SOE 0t
BABMEN HERABET
& R ME R EL T B AN KO
25% °

2018 FH E#MBE (KE)BERLA
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28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 28 BE&€ - -#ERKRE (&)

715=

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (d) REEHNMEERARE (Z)

(iv) Other reserve (iv) BEfEmE
The other reserve of the Group as at 31 December REBR-_E—N\KZZE—+
2018 and 2017 represents the difference between F+-_A=+—BHEMGH
(i) the carrying amount of share capital of QT #75() QT Great Chinaff& 7~
Great China; and (i) the nominal value of the share BRE & : B (i) AR AR & A &
issued by the Company in exchange for all the RZE—WERNAZ+K
issued share capital of QT Great China under the AER R EHRABRIRQT Great
reorganisation of the Group completed on 26 June China® 32 31T A 31T 2
2014. fefp 2 EEZ B E5E -

(v) Equity settled share-based payment reserve () UERZEURGZERENT
The equity settled share based payment reserve ARE s 45 B AR (0 B E B A
comprises the portion of the grant date fair value FIFE B RIERIE QM1 (s)(i)FT
of unexercised shares options granted to the AR AER A A
directors and employees of the Group that has VST HRERAR TAEESE
been recognised in accordance with the accounting EREBZARITEERENE
policy adopted for share-based payments in Note B A A TFEE -

1()(i.

(vi) Fair value reserve (i) AFEGE
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net NP EFEEREAEBFE
changes in the fair value of other financial assets e EERSREHRNAD
held by the Group as at the end of each reporting FEZRFEZEHFHE (MBREL
period net of deferred tax, and is dealt with in FIE) - Wi R E1(c)i) M 1()
accordance with the accounting policies in Notes (FTEEET R -

1(c)(i) and 1(I)(i).
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28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 28 BE&€  -#ERKRE (&)

115

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

d) RENEERAR(E)

(vii) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount
of reserves (including share premium and
retained profits) available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was approximately
RMB1,020,682,000 (2017: approximately
RMB986,162,000).

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for its shareholder and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure with reference
to its debt position. The Group’s strategy is to maintain
the equity and debt in a balanced position and ensure
there are adequate working capital to service its debt
obligations. The Group’s gearing ratio was approximately
56.0% at 31 December 2018 (2017: approximately
50.2%).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(vii) BRI IREED

RZE—NF+ZR=+—
A Aok T AR A KE
BEANGEE (BERMDR
BERBEMN BEEFORA
R #1,020,682,0005t (=&
—+t%F : ¥y AR 986,162,000
K

(e) EXERE

AREEREKRNYE A B ARE
AEE B E N BB EE
ROk TR R A BA S A
AMGREA - 48R IR R 7 5 Bl 3
BB St e 3 R A B R R g o

AEEEREHEANEEREARN
RiE AHI S EVE E 3K F RO B3R
TR BEERME = PR [0 R 8 4 15
REENRANGERE L2 2
FFE YAREBEEBRNE(L
HEEARRE-

AEBE2BEBHKELRERER
RE-AEENREERGESH
BEENEEFTE BRECHEE
BeXMHEFR - RZE—N\F+=
A=+—H XEEHNEXERE
tE & B 4956.0% (ZE—+EF 4
50.2% ) °

AR B REAATH B R RGP
FEINEE AR TE FTIR H

2018 FH E#MBE (KE)BERLA
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29 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents and derivative financial assets is limited
because the counterparties are banks, for which the
Group considers to have low credit risk.

The Group does not provide financial guarantee which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade and other receivables

For the year ended 31 December 2018, certain amounts
of sales were related directly to the related parties (Note
31(b)).

The management considers that related parties are
under influence of the Group’s Controlling Shareholder,
hence no material credit risk exists on sales to related
companies.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018

29 TRIEREERRK A VE

AEERABREBBRTELRERE R
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29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 €@ EAKEE L AEE
(continued) (#&)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (@) EERRK (&)

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At the end of the
reporting period, 30.50% (2017: 14.59%) and 79.90%
(2017: 63.8%) of the total trade and bills receivables
were due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the date
of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 3
months past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

ESRAMBEUNE (F)
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29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 €@ EAKEE L AEE
(continued) (%)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (@) EERR (&)

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status
is not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

The Group derecognised bills receivable when it
transferred bank acceptance bills to suppliers through
endorsement. Bill holders in due course preserve right
of recourse against the Group in case of dishonor of
the bills. As at the year ended 31 December 2018,
the outstanding bills endorsed with recourse totalled
approximately RMB166,409,000 (2017: approximately
RMB148,296,000), which represents the Group’s
exposure to credit risk. All of these bills are due within
one year.

The Group only accepts bank acceptance bills issued
by major banks or banks with qualified rating in the
PRC and thus considers that the credit risk associated
with such bank acceptance bills to be insignificant. The
Group had not suffered any losses in this respect during
the year.
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29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 €@ EAKEE L AEE

(continued) (&
(a) Credit risk (continued) (@) EERRK (&)
Trade and other receivables (continued) EBESREMEKSE (&)
The following table provides information about the TREIWRARZZE—NF+ A
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade =+ —BAEE@IEEERREO
receivables as at 31 December 2018: HWERLREZE SR ENTEEEZE
BiE
Expected  Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
RAERR REAE BERE

RMB'000 RMB’'000
% ARBETTT ARBTT

Current (not past due) BIEY (R HR) 0.00% 2,832,085 -
1 -90 days past due BEI1ZE90H 0.00% 992 -
91 - 180 days past due #HI912£180H 21.09% 128 (27)
181 - 360 days past due #H1812£360H 100.00% 155 (155)
More than 1 year past due I HAFRIA14 100.00% 349 (349)

2,833,709 (531)
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29 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The Group keeps assessing the expected loss rates
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience
over the past years, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the end
of the reporting period over the expected lives of the
receivables.

There was no material impact on trade receivables for
the initial application of the new impairment requirements
under IFRS 9.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the board of directors when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.
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29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 €@ EAKEE L AEE

(continued) (#&)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RBESREM (&)
All non-interest bearing financial liabilities of the Group HRAFTESREBER —FANE MK
are carried at amount not materially different from their BR_E—N\F+_A=+—HJE
contractual undiscounted cash flow and all the financial ERESE WAEENAERES
liabilities are with maturities within one year or repayable BREBEEHEEESLYAMRIRSR
on demand as at 31 December 2018. EHAMESBETE
The following tables show the remaining scheduled TRIWAAEBRREHRIZEELD
maturities at the end of reporting period of the Group’s KRR BE S RENSRAG (81
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual BREMN RS (B FE)RIBERR
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments SHRBITHNERAENR B 7%)
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on HTHE T HHE

rates current at the end of the reporting period):

Total

contractual

undiscounted

cash flow/
within 1 year Carrying
or on demand amount

EHRUE

R REBEHE
—FRREER BREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®EF T ARBEF T
Bank borrowings BITER 1,199,692 1,178,241
Trade and other payables & 5 & H fth fE {~f 7k 18 3,061,432 3,061,432
At 31 December 2018 R-_ZE—NEFE+-_A=+—H 4,261,124 4,239,673
Bank borrowings |ITIER 1,097,400 1,078,119
Trade and other payables & 5 K H fth & 1~ 5018 2,830,117 2,830,117
At 31 December 2017 R-_E—+tF+-_A=+—H 3,927,517 3,908,236

2018 FH E#MBE (KE)BERLA
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

288

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk arises primarily from bank borrowings. As at
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group
does not obtain any bank borrowings at variable interest
rates. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk. Details of the interest rates
and terms of bank borrowings are disclosed in note 21.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
bank borrowings, and sales and purchases which give
rise to loan balances, cash balances, receivables, and
payables that are denominated in a foreign currency,
i.e. a currency other than the functional currency of
the operations to which the transactions relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily USD and
RMB.
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29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 €RIEMREE N A F¥E

(continued) (4&)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥mEb (&)
(i) Exposure to currency risk () BH¥EpEE
The following table details the Group’s major TRIFVWAEBNRZH{EEK
exposure at the end of each reporting period to FIASHEITEEERER %%
currency risk arising from recognised assets and BRI AREREELE
liabilities denominated in a currency other than EAHEE BB AEERNI e
the functional currency of the Group to which they BRI INE A EMmMEL -
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of MEFLEAmMS  EERZEIUA
the exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated BT R I A S S B KA
using the spot rate at the end of each reporting ENHAfE R E o
period.
usD RMB
EY ARY
2018 2018
—E-N\E§ S —E-N\E
RMB’000 ' RMB’000
AR¥ET T BT ARBTR
Cash and cash equivalents B RREEEY 644 569 11,178 9,445
Trade and other receivables & 5 & E B Y71 1E 149,233 326,338 - 89,567
Trade and other payables ‘é’%&ﬁmﬁﬁ* i (561,118) (817,262) (44,303) (50,517)
Bank loans and borrowings k17 E % R E (446,108) (148,980) - -
Gross exposure to EMERAEBS
currency risk (857,349) (639,335) (33,125) 48,495
Notional amounts of EERTEXBNELEEEE
exchange rate derivatives 1,605,406 4,519,511 - -
— Forward contracts —EHEH 452,045 841,866 - -
- Option contracts —HEAY 1,153,361 3,677,645 - -
Net exposure to ERERAEFE
currency risk 748,057 3,880,176 (33,125) 48,495

2018F 3 ESABE (RE)ARAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Py F e IZﬁEI

31 December 2018 —E— \F+_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEERPI UAREIITR)

29 TRIEREERRK X VE
(&)

(d) E¥mEK (£)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

(ii) SBE D

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) and other components of consolidated
equity that would arise if foreign exchange rates to

TR DA B TR A
(RRBEN) REE S O
s E A AR (find AN 5% [ S FE B
EﬂiﬁiﬁHﬂEIEZ%lJ?REAEQ A

which the Group has significant exposure at the end FEmMEEENRERE  BEAT
of the reporting period had changed at that date, BEEMREREEREBIITE)N
assuming all other risk variables remained constant. BB & 8 o
2017
—tF
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) =i{-M8  (decrease) Effect
in foreign  Effect on CHNIGETE  in foreign Effect on on other
D EULEIN (i Il oo I exchange  profit after  component
rates tax  of equity rates tax of equity
SEE= HED RS R
R/ HEHE HEHH R/ HERBR AtBHH
(FH)  RFXE ¥e (TR) ENFE 5%
% RMB’000 RMB’000 %  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARBTR
Usb e 5 31,792 - 5 164,907 -
(5) (31,792 - (5)  (164,907) -
RMB ARHE 5 (1,383) - 5 2,026 -
(5) 1,383 - (5) (2,026) -

Results of the analysis above represent an MRS R4 sE T ANEE
B E R EMBRTR

S ) e £ BB i N ) B B B2

aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits

measured in the respective functional currencies, BHEEYRRERARNIFIT
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling [EXRBE B AR D427

as at the end of the respective reporting periods for

Z e

presentation purposes.
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29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 €@ EAKEE L AEE

(continued) (&
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥mEb (&)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BREZH (E)

The sensitivity analysis above assumes that the Pt BB S AT Th (R ER YN L [
change in foreign exchange rates had been applied RYEBEFEBEREHEAE
to re-measure those financial instruments held BREREEARAIFEAER
by the Group which expose the Group to foreign HEINERRNSRTIAE B
currency at the end of the respective reporting EAEBRRARBENTER
periods, including inter-company payables FEW I B ZBEBIULE T A
and receivables within the Group which are WERANEEEE A INE G
denominated in a currency other than the functional JE DX TEERGINE
currencies of the lender or the borrower. The B IEREA B AERNEFZY
analysis excludes differences that would result from EMEANETR M LA
the translation of the financial statements of foreign —E -+ FHRINEEETT

operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
The analysis has been performed on the same basis

for 2017.
(e) Fair value (e) DFE
(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value () BRAFEIEYEHTA

The following table presents the fair value of the TREVWAEEERITAEHND

Group’s financial instruments measured at the TEH ZZEZeRnTAERNGEE

end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, RIEEEMEESE WHRER

categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy BRI EHEERE135ED
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. EEAEMRAETEHN =G TEE

The level into which a fair value measurement BE-BAFLEAENENE

is classified is determined with reference to the LR 2EMTNEE R EZTA

observability and significance of the inputs used in WMAHENERELEE N

the valuation technique as follows: BETE:

e level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using . E ML E (EFE A E R
only Level 1 inputs i.e. Unadjusted quoted wAYE (BRET=HME
prices in active markets for identical assets or EEEXAERNERMS
liabilities at the measurement date MAZHBEREB)FTED

AFE

2018 FH E#MBE (KE)BERLA
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ek BB 1EHAIN - LAAREHIR)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 €RIEMREE N A FE

(continued) (A& )
(e) Fair value (continued) (e) DFE(£Z)
(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value () BRAFEIENELHTA
(continued) (4&)
° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using . B2EE & B E f2d
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which ABE (Bl REeiED B4
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant 1R R ASE) B
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are REREATA]EREG A
inputs for which market data are not available HEFEN AN FEE T
B A BB RETISH
HEGOEUN €7
° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using o EBMSLME:FHREATD
significant unobservable inputs R ABBTENAF
(=]
The Group has a team headed by the assistant RNEBE B AHUMIEEEERIE
chief financial officer performing valuations for HEENEGE SR TE (BHE
the financial instruments, including other financial DEENTEEERFBR2HE
assets which are categorised into Level 2 of the e EE)EITEE - 2B %
fair value hierarchy. The team reports directly to the BEERBBEERSE REHR
chief financial officer. A valuation report with analysis SHIRREENE AL EES
of changes in fair value measurement is prepared at BB GERSE  WHB
the end of each reporting period, and is reviewed B EE SRR N HE A o

and approved by the chief financial officer.

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2018 categorised into

RZB-NF+=A=+t-BNAVEFELEAR

2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—EB-N\¥ B B2 & &3
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®T R AR¥T R AR¥BTR

Assets: 5E:
Derivative financial assets TEeBEE
~ Foreign currency option —SNEHEAL
contracts 105,251 - 105,251 -
Liabilities: a%:
Derivative financial liabiliies T4 & B & &
- Foreign currency forward ~ —JMNEREIAH
contracts (201) - (201) -

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 €RIEMREE N A F¥E

(continued) (#&
(e) Fair value (continued) () AFE(£E)
(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value () BRAFEIEYELHTA
(continued) (%)

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2017 categorised into
RZB—+F+_A=T—BHNRATEFENEAR
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—Z—+F ER1 B#2 B3
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT  ARETR ARETT ARETR

Assets: BE:
Derivative financial assets T4 & BB E
- Foreign currency —SMEHRIES 4
option contracts 7,073 - 7,073 -
- Other financial assets -HiemEE 873,486 - 873,486 -
Liabilities: 8%
Derivative financial liabilities 74 4 B4 & &
- Foreign currency —MEERHEH
forward contracts (17,555) - (17,555) -
- Foreign currency —NEHESH
option contracts (434) - (434) -

2018F 3 ESABE (RE)ARAT
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31 December 2018 —E— \F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(e) Fair value (continued)

U

(i)

Financial instruments carried at fair value
(continued)

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts
in Level 2 is determined by using the forward
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period
and comparing to the contractual rates, with the
resulting value discounted back to the present
value.

The fair value of foreign exchange option contracts
in Level 2 is determined by using the Black-
Scholes-Merton model. The observable inputs for
valuation were described in note 18.

The fair value of non financial assets in Level 2 is
determined using discounted cash flow models.
The discount rate used is derived from the relevant
government yield curve as at the end of each
reporting period plus an adequate constant credit
spread.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2018.
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30 Commitments 30 &IE
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 (@ R=ZE—NF+=-—A=+—HiH
December 2018 not provided for in the financial REZERMBEHRRLERE
statements were as follows: BEHNEEREREOT:
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBET T
Contracted for EETA 178,811 127,477
(b) As at 31 December 2018, the total future by A=ZZE—N\FE+=ZA=+—8"
minimum lease payments under non- BEATHESEHIENNE
cancellable operating leases were payable as REEKBENTELZEOT :
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREETTT
Within 1 year 1F R 5,117 3,214
After 1 year but within 5 years 1FEZBREER 3,389 192
8,506 3,406
The Group leases a number of properties under NEFBREBERKLHEHNHEELZIEY
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial X -MO—RVIFZR/RINEIF A
period of 1 to 3 years, at the end of which period all BRI REFERE AL
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes BB IESAEE -

contingent rentals.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

31 EXEBRLIRS

31 Material related party transactions

In addition to the related party information disclosed

M 57 55 B 7S =R 3R E b 2B o0 BT I 2R A9 A B
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered Vil éfﬂ&l\ CNEBET LA N E KB AT

into the following significant related party transactions:

S

Name of related parties

MBAHE £8

Relationship with the Group
HE 5 E A BA R

— CK Telecom Limited (“Heyuan CK”)*
(‘TERBE R RE CTR) BR AT

—FAEERMERE OR) BRA R (DDREA )

— Guangzhou CK Telecom Limited (“Guangzhou CK”)

Controlled by Mr. He Ningning

P fa) B2 B8 5T A 12

Controlled by key management of the Group

(‘BMPERBERNEZREER AT
—BMNARERNREERAR ([EMEA])

— Van Telecom Limited (“Van Telecom PRC”)
(‘MEZRRAR QAR

— LR RERAA ([HELRERE])

— C-Flex Electronic (Heyuan) Ltd.*(“C-Flex Electronic”)
(BAEEFCTR)BRAF)

—-AEEFOTR)BRAT(TALEEF])

— CK Telecom Asia Pacific Ltd.

—CK Telecom Asia Pacific Ltd.

— Chengdu CK Technology Limited* (“Chengdu CK”)
(‘BEBFE AR B R A E])

—EAE AR BR AR ([AKEFEA )

— C-Flex Electronic (Huangshi) Ltd.*(“Huangshi C-Flex”)
(BEATEEFRIEERARA

—BEOAREEFHEAERAR ([EAEE])

— Heyuan Youhua Micro Electronic Technology Company

Limited* (Former name “Huizhou Youhua Micro

Electronic Technology Company Limited”) * (“Heyuan

Youhua”)
(TIRREREERKAR QA"
—ARREMHER R BR QA
(A [BMNREWEFRIRERA
— Dongguan Xinxu Optical Limited.* (“ Dongguan Xinxu”)
(REFBALBHERRF)
—REMBHREBARLGF ([REHBI)

The English translation of the companies’ names is for reference
only. The official names of these companies are in Chinese.
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A {28 B8 5T A fE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F& B AIERIN AAREFIR)

31 Material related party transactions N ERBEEAIRS (&

(continued)

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (@ TEEBAEHMH
Key management personnel are those persons holding TEERABRETER EEE
positions with authority and responsibility for planning, EHRE EEREHASEEESD
directing and controlling the activities of the Group, RANEEEZBRBOAL BFER
directly or indirectly, including the Company’s directors. NAE=SE-
Remuneration for key management personnel of the TAEEFTEERASFINREDH
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s RARIES (WK sF6misE) ka
directors as disclosed in Note 6 and certain of the T ES (WK Z7#EE)
highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 7, is as SREMT
follows:

2018 2017
—z-nx [T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARETF T
Short-term employee benefits SHIEBEF 7,205 6,835
Post-employment benefits BER 2R T 109 66
Equity compensation benefits & HE 7H (B 48 A 1,052 1,379
8,366 8,280

The above remuneration to key management personnel FHETEEBABTFMHERIET

is included in “staff costs” (Note 4(b)). A (HMfsE4b)) °

2018F 3 ESABE (RE)ARAT
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

31 Material related party transactions

(continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

(BRABEERPI UAREIITR)

N ERBEEAIRS (&

(b) HEBLINXS

Sales of products to
— Heyuan CK

Purchases of products from
— C-Flex Electronic
— Huangshi C-Flex
— Van Telecom PRC
— Heyuan Youhua
— Dongguan Xinxu

Rental expenses to
— Chengdu CK
— Van Telecom PRC

EmET
— AR A]

EmiE A
~FEET
~ERTE
— 0 2 R
—ARRE
~ R

NHEERXT
— R #ER PRI
— ML R E
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2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
25,939 78,821

- 15,937

24,749 2,899

85 9

76,126 25,090
84,824 -
185,784 43,935

90 124

2,847 2,452
2,937 2,576
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31 Material related party transactions

(continued)

(c) Balances with related parties

At 31 December 2018, the Group had the following

balances with related parties.

(i) Due from related parties

31 December 2018 — =&
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F&

(c) ERRAEETS &8k

—N\F+-A=t+—H
SEERI AARKETIR)

N ERBEAIRS (E)

RZZE—NF+_A=+—H 'K
EE BB T AR

() FEREHES

2018 2017
—2-N\F —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBETTT
Trade-related g5 1HHE
Trade receivables B 5 WA
— Heyuan CK — A JREa Al 4,242 21,893
(i) Due to related parties (i) FETEHS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFT
Trade-related E 5 1HeE
Trade and bills payable B RNRBERENERE
— C-Flex Electronic — AEE - 391
~ Van Telecom PRC — MR R P 26 6
— Huangshi C-Flex —=mAEE 20,853 3,267
— Heyuan Youhua — AR R E 63,609 20,670
- Dongguan Xinxu — B 18,463 -
102,951 24,334
The amounts due from/to related parties as at 31 TZ-N\F+ZA=+—8H
E—t+tF+ZH=4—

FEU FE 1< A B 75 SR IE 7
#HEA FRWEMEE-

n=
December 2018 and 31 December 2017 were &=
expected to be recovered/repaid within one year. H-

H

2018F 3 ESABE (RE)ARAT
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

31 Material related party transactions
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Operating lease payments

As at 31 December 2018, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are payable to Chengdu CK and Van Telecom PRC as

(B =AHEAN UARKEDIR)

N ERBEAIRS (&)

(d)

REBETR

RZF-NE+-A=+—8"R
RN A B AR S M A FE A AR PG AT
RMELZ R R BEA R EEHEN

follows: FRAAFET ¢
2018 2017
—z- 5 [EEEEE SN
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBETF T
Within 1 year 1FERN 3,482 1,062
After 1 year but within 5 years 1B EBREER 3,351 131
6,833 1,193

The Group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 3 years, at the end of which period all terms
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
continuing connected transactions

The transactions in relation to sales of products to
Heyuan CK, purchases of products from Van Telecom
PRC and C-Flex Electronic as disclosed above constitute
connected transaction or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The relevant disclosures required by Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules are set out in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” of the Directors
Report.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018

(e)
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31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

32 Company level statement of financial 32 NEIREEBAR TR
position
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B at AR T ARBETF T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RENB AT 22,744 18,670
Investments in associate TEBENT 229,407 258,318
Amount due from a subsidiary &Y — 8 B R & FRIE 549,082 522,761
801,233 799,749
Current assets REEE
Amount due from a subsidiary & 4g — & Bt & 2 &) F08 361,216 335,963
Cash and cash equivalents BHeNREEEYD 1,662 182,955
362,878 518,918
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk H M REM T 2 2,671
Amount due to a subsidiary J?EH B EVNCIE/SE 47,150 271,757
47,152 274,428
Net current assets REBEEFRE 315,726 244,490
Total assets less current HEERABER
liabilities 1,116,959 1,044,239
CAPITAL AND RESERVES  EXRf#E
Share capital &N 28(c) 9,022 8,895
Reserves & 28(a) 1,107,937 1,035,344
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 1,116,959 1,044,239
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors EFEEgR T NF=-A=Z+THAZE
on 25 March 2019. A 7 A g e
He Ningnin e ss
_ g' 9 Directors Bx
Wang Jiangiang F ok

2018F 3 ESABE (RE)ARAT
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

33 Significant accounting estimates and

judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements
and other uncertainties affecting application of those policies
and the sensitivity of reported results to changes in condition
and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing
these financial statements. The principal accounting policies
are set forth in note 1. The Group believes the following
critical accounting policies involve the most significant
judgements and estimates used in the preparation of these
financial statements.

(a) Loss allowance for trade receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade
receivables by assessing the ECLs. This requires the
use of estimates and judgements. ECLs are based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the end of reporting period.
Where the estimation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will affect the carrying amounts
of trade receivables and thus the impairment loss in the
period in which such estimate is changed. The Group
keeps assessing the expected credit loss of trade
receivables during their expected lives.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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33 Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(b) Net realisable value of inventories

(c)

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. These estimates are based on the
current market conditions and the historical experience
of selling products with similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer
preferences and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management reassesses these
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
an asset may not be recoverable, the asset may
be considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss
may be recognised in profit or loss. The carrying
amounts of assets are reviewed periodically in order
to assess whether the recoverable amounts have
declined below the carrying amounts. These assets
are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline
has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
recoverable amount.

PR R EE

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kx BAEFEAIN LAARETSR)

33 EXRGEHEFTRAE (&)

(b) FENTEEFE

(c)

FENAERFEDNBEEELB
2P (A AT S ERA R ST R AR
FAEITIHE R HIERTAAR « % F b
SOERBA MR REERNUEE
EmBE&ER A elEF R
HEOEE RBEFE FHEBRETE
BHRBOTHMERERE -
AEERERERRENT GRS
&t e

W% BERRERE

T 15 LB R B B Y BR T (B A e DK
Yeml - RIZEERERSAS[CR
Bl YR EBSERBERRE-
BEMNKRAESTHETERN K
AEATREEERELRE THREER
REE-EEHHIBERESH BT %
FEEM LR E R g AW B
B AREESETRERD Wb
BER TS REESREA KD
TR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

33 EXGEHAETRAE (&)

33 Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(c) Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment
(continued)

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and the value in use. In determining
the value in use, expected cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgment relating to level of
sales volume, sales revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of sales volume, sales
revenue and amount of operating costs.

(d) Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual value.
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation and amortisation
expenses to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation and
amortisation expenses for future periods are adjusted
prospectively if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

34 Comparative figures
The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at
1 January 2018. Under the transition methods design,

comparative information is not restated. Further details of the
changes in accounting policies are disclosed in Note 1(c).

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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35 Immediate and ultimate controlling party

As at 31 December 2018, the directors consider the
immediate controlling party of the Group to be QT Investment,
which is incorporated in the BVI, and the ultimate controlling
party of the Group to be Mr. He Ningning.
36 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2018 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.

31 December 2018 — =&
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F&

35

36

EJJ TR ML

—N\F+-A=t+—H
SEERN AARETITR)

EERBRERA
R-E—\F+ZA=+—R HERAH

K%IE’JE%& BT RRREBRELES
EMAIZE EKIRE - AN B R & R
R R EELL-

=

=t- Eifﬁ};aﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬁ’fﬁfﬁ]
REMBMERT - T EAI K2
BNAREE

5’~/E
BENEMBERERNEBEE B T\E.EJF‘;E
AZBeCBEMZIRER  #al &R M
- X FIER]  #TRI: Eﬂ']&ﬁ%%ﬁﬁéai—
Z-NF+_R=+—HIEFEHRKRE
Mo BRI FEM B RRLARER  HPE
FRIATATRE AN B -

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RT3 BEHRN RGN
SHMBEN

IFRS 16, Leases

BIFR I B iR S ERIF 165 HE

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments

B BREZREREEQR0RN EHEE S THEM

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 20715-2017 Cycle

RN EREERN —FE—aFE T FHHNFRIE

Amendments to IAS 28, Long-term interest in associates and
Joint ventures

BReat R %

£285% (B3] A) REENFGLAE

1 January 2019
—ZT-NF—-—H—H
1 January 2019
—hF—HA—H

1 January 2019
—hF—HA—H

1 January 2019

—NE—A—H
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

36 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2018 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects
of the IFRS 16 which may have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements. Further details of the
expected impacts are discussed below. While the assessment
has been substantially completed for IFRS 16, the actual
impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards may
differ as the assessment completed to date is based on
the information currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before the standards are initially
applied in the Group’s interim financial report for the six
months ended 30 June 2019.The Group may also change its
accounting policy elections, including the transition options,
until the standards are initially applied in that financial report.

IFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(k), currently the Group classifies leases
into finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the
lease arrangements differently, depending on the classification
of the lease. The Group enters into some leases as the
lessee.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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36 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2018 (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continueqd)

IFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under
a lease. However, once IFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no
longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease
the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments and will
recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over
the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect
not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e.
where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of
low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application of the
new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in
both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the
expense recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the
period of the lease.

31 December 2018 — =&
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F&

36

EJJ TR ML

—N\F+-A=t+—H
SEERN AARETITR)

:‘I'—EIJJ:'EIEF‘_EﬁEﬁF’ﬁF']
REMMNIERT - FHETEA R
BHWRERE (&)

ERRE AR5 ERIE165E HE
(%)

EHBERM B RS EE165%E TG K
B B ARIRE K8 1R S F oK
EARNT A - AT — BRABEFR
HFERNE165E AEARTBEIME
HERGERE B XATRENE
MRR - AHARZERERERE S
BRIEIDEBUM T A EMARNOAK:
AIRMERRK A ARARIZBR&KE
HEMFHNRERRIGTEHEAE:
NEGHAEREN [ERE] EE - RUT
ERZEEMAER AHEAKREREE
BEREEERMELNN B RE
REEENE  MIFRERBBRENEY
NEAGELEERRBELEHOMESE
MG (ER—HATRET A &
HMAMEEZEIS R RABARESR
HE (AMEMA12A AT ) MEEE
BENHEE R&RFBERAT B8
HENEHNR R GEEER

BB RELENFIRBEEIEZER
SEERBEOAEARDE BB LK
BREDBEAKEHE)NEFTRIESN
%o RHERAF e EAREREERA
BAMEN RFEROBENEER
i 52 B S O B ] o

2018 FH E#MBE (KE)BERLA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Py F e IZﬁEI

31 December 2018 —ZE— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kS E AN LAARESR)

NE+ =

36 Possible impact of amendments, new 36 & £ — &

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2018 (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continueqd)

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. As allowed by IFRS 16, the Group plans
to use the practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements are, or contain,
leases. The Group will therefore apply the new definition of
a lease in IFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered into on
or after the date of initial application. In addition, the Group
plans to elect the practical expedient for not applying the new
accounting model to short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of IFRS 16 and will recognise the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to
the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019 and will not
restate the comparative information. As disclosed in note
30(b), at 31 December 2018 the Group’s future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
amount to RMB8,506,000 for properties, the majority of
which is payable either within 1 year or after 1 year but within
5 years as at the end of reporting period. Upon the initial
adoption of IFRS 16, the opening balances of lease liabilities
and the corresponding right-of-use assets will be adjusted to
RMB6,392,000 and RMB6,392,000 respectively, after taking
account the effects of discounting, as at 1 January 2019.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets, the Group expects that the transition adjustments
to be made upon the initial adoption of IFRS 16 will not be
material. However, the expected changes in accounting
policies as described above could have a material impact on
the Group’s financial statement from 2019 onwards.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2018

H
=+- EIJJ:EFE 3 1
REMEMERT - T EA K
BHNARELE (&)

BRI s ERIE165E HE
(%)

BRI REENFIHEN —F—NF
—A—BRZERABNFERBER-
EBRM RS ELE16RAFFOENR
™ AEEFEEREREE 2T ERE
HRARFBEBRXESHENF ML
AR At NEEBRBERY SRS E
AE 6P MEERN EEREERANIIA
FER B BIS 2 IRATSI B 4Y < esh » ANEE
B EETHEMEEREREEEE
RAFETRANEREE -

REEGEEBRALEBITNENER
BRI 75 R 5 22 R 51657 - W ASTERR
RERMREBEEBEAR T —NF—
A—BHEEHRENRE T AgEil
BB R o WA sE30(b ) FTifER - I =
Z-N\F+_A=+—8 AEERTA
BOEGEEHE THREAZEEENT A
A R #8,506,0007T + £ K3 5 78R W
HFHRFANINIFERERSFAZMN R
06 ER AN B IR B 7 3 22 B BB 165% 1% -
KErRMRTE RZT—NF—HA—H8
WHEBERARERAEEENRVLE
#189 RlFEE AR6,392,0007T & A
R ¥6,392,0007T °

REREHEEBEREABREEIN A&
[ 78 B VI RA B AN B B B T s 5 2 A1 28
165)751“5&9’7&5/)#& ENEE K o AT

METBRNBEREH A AEE
fo NERNFBRMEEEERNY

o

s






	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	公司介紹
	五年財務概要
	主席報告
	管理層討論與分析
	董事及高級管理層之履歷詳情
	董事會報告
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	合併損益表
	合併損益及其他全面收益表
	合併財務狀況表
	合併權益變動表
	合併現金流量表
	合併財務報表附註
	封底



